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November 13,2024

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the New Hampshire Department of Energy (Department) to enter into an amendment to an
existing SOLE SOURCE contract Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. dba Community Action
Partnership Hillsborough and Rockingham Counties, Manchester, NH, Vendor #177198, for the
Senior Energy Assistance Services (SEAS) Program by increasing the price limitation by $31,684
from $34,968 to $66,652 and by extending the completion date from September 30,2025 to
September 30, 2027 effective upon Govenor and Executive Council approval.

This contract was originally approved by Govemor and Executive Council on November 22,2022
(Item #66). 100% Other Funds (Transfer from NH DHHS).

Funds are available in Fiscal Year (FY) 2025 and anticipated to be available for FY 2026 and 2027 in
the account Fuel Assistance upon the continued appropriation and availability of funds in the ftiture
operating budget, with the authority to adjust encumbrances through the Budget Office if needed and
justified.

FY 2025 FY 2026 FY 2027

02-52-52-520010-33540000-074-500587

Grants for Pub Assist & Relief $ 10,343 $ 17,073 $4,268

EXPLANATION

This amendment to a contract is SOLE SOURCE based on historical performance of the Community
Action Agencies (CAA) in the New Hampshire Fuel Assistance Program (FAP), their outreach and
client service capabilities. The Department proposes to continue to subcontract with the five CAAs
who have successfully provided FAP services at the local level for more than three decades. The
CAAs work closely with Department's FAP Administrator in the implementation of the program.
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who have successfully provided FAP services at the local level for more than three decades. The
CAAs work closely with Department's FAP Administrator in the Implementation of the program.

This Department contract provides the Community Action Agency with the program funds to support
the Senior Energy Assistance Services (SEAS) Program. The SEAS Program makes home energy
more affordable for households with members who are 60 years of age or older, who are experiencing
a home energy hardship, and who are not eligible for the state's Fuel Assistance Program under the
current income limits. The CAAs determine eligibility for the Fuel Assistance Program and are able
to efficiently distribute these funds to households in need that are not eligible for the Fuel Assistance
Program.

A federal grant provided by the Administration for Community Living (Title IIIB Supportive
Services) awarded to the New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services (NH DHHS)
Division of Elderly and Adult Services provides funding for the Senior Energy Assistance Services
Program. A Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) for this program was originally approved by
Governor and Council on March 23,2022, Item #25, and amended by the Governor and Executive
Council on September 25,2024, Item #34.

In the event that the Other Funds become no. longer available, General Funds will not be requested to
support this program.

espectfully s itted.

Jared S. Chicoine

Commissioner



NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

SUBJECT: SENIOR ENERGY ASSISTANCE SERVICES CONTRACT

SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC dba COMMUNITY ACTION
PARTNERSHIP HILLSBOROUGH AND ROCKINGHAM COUNTIES

AMENDMENT#!

This Amendment is between the State of New Hampshire Department of Energy. 21
South Fruit Street, Concord, Merriniack County, NH 0330! (hereinafter referred to as the
"State"') and Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. dba Community Action Partnership
Hillsborough and Rockingham Counties, 40 Pine St, Manchester, Hillsborough County, NH
03103 (hereinafter the "Contractor").

(

Pursuant to an Agreement (hereinafter referred to as the "Agreement"), as approved by
the New Hampshire Governor and Executive Council on November 22,2022, Item #66, the
Contractor has agreed to provide certain Services, per the terms and conditions specified in the
Agreement and in consideration of payment by the State of certain sums as specified therein.

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of Section 17 of the Agreement, the Agreement
may be modified or amended only by a written instrument executed by the parties thereto and
only after approval of such modification or amendment by the New Hampshire Governor and
Executive Council; and

/  •>

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to amend the Agreement in certain
respects;

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and of the covenants and
conditions in the Agreement as set forth herein, the parties agree to the following:

1) Amendment and Modification of Agreement. The Agreement is amended and
modified as follows:

A) Completion Date: Amend Subparagraph 1.7 of the Agreement by striking
the current completion date of September 30,2025 and inserting in place
thereof the date of September 30,2027.

B) Price Limitation: Amend Subparagraph 1.8 of the Agreement by striking
the current sum of $34,968 and inserting in place thereof the total sum of
$66,652.

C) Exhibit C - Payment Terms: Amend Exhibit C, first and second paragraph
by striking the current sum of $34,968 and inserting in place thereof the
total sum of $66,652. Amend Exhibit C, third paragraph, by striking the
current completion date of September 30,2025 and inserting in place
thereof the date of September 30,2027.

US DOE Award « 2I01NHOASS. 2201NHOASS. 23o'lNHOASS, 240INHOASS Contractor's Initials Ut . E)ate
SNHSSEAS23 ALN: 93.044 PageTin' I
Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. dba Community Action Partnership Hillsborough snd Rockingham Counties



D) Exhibit D: Amend period covered by this certification to "September 21,
2022 to September 30,2027."

E) Exhibit E: Amend contract period dates to "September 21,2022 to
September 30,2027."

2) Continuance of A2reement. Except as specifically amended and modified by
the Terms and Conditions of this Amendment, obligations of the parties hereunder
shall remain in full force and effect In accordance with the terms and conditions
set forth in the Agreement as it existed immediately prior to this Amendment.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have hereunto set their hands as of the day and year
written below.

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
NH Department of Epergy

..■MtilDate:/^ I' ^ / By;
red S. Chicoine, Commissioner

' Southern New Hampshire Services, lnc.,'dba
Community Action Paitnership Hillsborough and

^  . Rockmgham Countit

Date:

""mnalee Lozeau.^hief Executive Officer

Approved as to form, execution and substance:

,  OFFICEP^^TBE^^TORNEY GENERAL
10/15/2024

Dale: By:
Assistant Attorney Genera)

I hereby certify that the foregoing contract was approved by the Governor and Council of the
State of New Hampshire at their meeting on 2024.

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

By: ^

Title:

US DOE Aw«Td # 2IOINHOASS. 2201NHOASS. 2301NHOASS. 2401NHOASS Contractor'# Initials Date
SNHSSEAS23 ALN: 93.044 PageT^
Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. dba Comrnunity Action Pannership Hillsborough and Rockingham Counties



state of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, DavM M. Scanlan. Secretary of State of the State of New HDmpshirc, do hereby certify that SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE

SERVICCS INC. is a New llainpshire Nortprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on May 28. 1965.

I further certify that alt fees and documents required by the Secretary of Stale's ofHce have been received and is in good standing

as (ar as this office is concerned.

Business (D-. dSSM

Certificate Number: 0OOM52O89

o

A

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF.

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the Slate of New Hampshire,

this Isl day of April A.O. 2024.

David M. Scanlan

Secretary of State



CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

1, OrviHe Korr . hereby certify that:
(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporalion/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 arh a duly elected Clerk/Secretarv/Qffteer of Southern New Hamoshire Servicea. Inc. dba Community Action

Partnership Hilisborouoh and Rockinoham Counties. ^ ^ ,
(Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duiy caiied and
held on September 9 . 2024 . at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

VOTED: That Donnalee Lozeau. CEO. Rvan Clouthier. COO: James Chaisson. CFO. and Cara Aiiberti.
Financiai Analyst (may list more than one person )is duty authorized.on behalf of Southern New Hampshire
Services. Inc. to enter into contracts or agreements with the State of Nevy Hampshire and any of its agencies or
departments and further is authorized to execute any and aii documents, agreements and other instruments, and
any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to
effect the purpose of this vote.

3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repeaied and remains in fuil force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment .to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this CertiTicale of Authority. I further certify that il is understood that the State of
New Hampshire wfll rely on this certificate as evidence that the per8on(s) listed above currently occupy the
p08ition(8) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contacts with the State of New Hampshire,
all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated Wl/ay
fgnature of Elected Officer
Name: Orville Kerr

Title: Secretary

Rev. 03/24/20



CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
OATS IHH/OG/VYYY)

03/2V2024

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(8). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.-

IMPORTANT: If tha cartlflcata holdar Is art ADOmONAL INSURED, tha pollcy(iaa) must hava ADDITIONAL INSURED prevlslent or ba andorsad.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subfact to tha tarms and conditions of tha policy, cartain pollclas may raquira an andorsamani A statamant on
this cartlflcata doas not confar rlgtrts to tha cartlflcata holdar In llau of such andorsamant(s).

aaoouCEa

Cross Insuranoa-Manchastar ■

1100 Elm Straat

kitanchastor NH 03101

OianneSoto

(603) 889.3218 (603)84M331

manch.cartsOcrossagancy.com

■mmms) affokoino covciuee NAICS

iNsuiteR A: Philadaipllia Indemnity Ins Co 16058

Msumo

Souiham Naw Hampshirs Sarvlcas. Inc.

_ POBox5040

Manchastar NH 03108-5040

goyggn g. Midwest Employen Casualty Corp 23812

■•SUMRC :

WSURMD;

KSURCRC:

MSURCRF:

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 24-2$ SNHS REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANOING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO VAIlCH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

iiiir
LTR TVRIOPINSURANCe POUCYNUMBER

POUeVEFF
IMtVDOrYYYYI

POUeVEXF
(WMrOO/YYYYI UMrrs 1

A

X COMHEdCIALOSNERAL LIABIUTY

e 1 X| OCCUR

PHPK2870953 04J01/2024 04/01/2025

EACH OCCURRENCE ' , 1.000.000

"|cbUMS-MAO PJAUflC TOREUTED , 100.000 ^

MEO EXP (AiW ana aananl , 5,000

PERSONAL A AOV IKIURY , 1,000.000

[oein ACCREGAT6 UMTT APPUES PCR GENERAL AOOREOATE , 2.000.000

□ poucY Sect (3
OTHER:

PR00UCT8 • COMPtOP AOO , 2.000.000

b s

A

AUTOHoane uab«jtv 1

PHPK2e709S2 04/01/2024 04^1/2025

COMSINEO SINGLE UMIT
(Eaaeedann t 1.000.000

X ANT AUTO

HEOULEO
TOS
WKNVNEO
rrOSONLY

SOOILY INJURY (Paraanon) s

OWNED
AUTOS ONLT
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

6C
AU

eoOLY INJURY (Par aacManq t

NC
AU

PROPERTY OAJMOE
(Par aeetdani) t

1  1 i

A

X UMSRELIA LIAS

EXCESS UAS

OCCUR

CLAWS MAOe PHUB905SS9 04A}1/2024 04A>1/202S
EACH OCCURRENCE f 5,000.000

AGGREGATE , 5.000.000

1 OBO 1 Xl RETENTION » 'O-®® |

B

WORKERS COatPCNSATION
ANDEMPUrrtRS'UASaJTV YfN
ANT PROPRIETOWMATNEAfCXECUnVE rTD
OPnCERMEMSER EXCLUOCO? | ^ |
(Maneatary fei i0<)
H ft. datofta undar
OESCRWnON OP OPERATIONS MtWr

NfA HCKS20240000S34 (3a - NH) 01/01/2024 01/01/2025

OTH-
^ STATUTP PR

EL EACH ACCIDENT , 1.000,000

E L CXSEASC-EA EMPLOYEE , 1,000,000

E L CXSEASe • POUCY UMIT , 1.000.000

A
ProfessionaJ LlstXIIty

PHPK2870953 04/01/2024 04/01/2025

Each Prof Inddent

Aggregaie
51,000.000

52,000,000

OtSCRVnON OP OPUATXMia 1 LOCATIONa / VtHCLCa (ACORO lei. AddHMfiR R*mw1u Schi*»N. nwy b* «nM(M4 If inora tpw* I* raquiraa)

Rafar to policy for exclusionary endorsements and sptdsi provisions.

NH Oapartmani of Energy

21 South Fruit Street

Concord NH 03301
1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POUCIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZEO REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (201M3)

O19SS-2015ACORO CORPORATION. AD rights rMCrVMl.
Ths ACORD ntm* and lego art rtglstartd tnarits of ACORO
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT -th Co way

To the Board of Directors of

Southern New Hampshire Services. Inc. and Affiliate

Report on the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Southern New Hampshire Sen/ices.
Inc. and Affiliate (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the combined statements of
financial position as of July 31, 2023 and 2022, and the related combined statements of
activities and changes in net assets, functional expenses and cash flows for the years then
and the related notes to the combined financial statements.

In our opinion, the combined financial statements present fairly, in alt material respects, the
financial position of Southern New Hampshire Sen/ices, Inc. and Affiliate as of July 31, 2023
and 2022, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent
of the Southem New Hampshire Sen/ices, Inc. and Affiliate and to meet our other ethical
responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements related to our audit We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these combined
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of intemal control
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement. whether due to fraud or error.



In preparing the combined financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether
there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about
Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and Affiliate's ability to continue as a going concern
within one year after the date that the financial statements are available to be issued.

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the combined financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement. whether due to fraud or emor, and
to issue an auditors' report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing
Standards will always detect a material misstatement when It exists. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentation, or the override
of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood
that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable
user based on the combined financial statements..

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and
Government Auditing Standards, we:.

•  Exercise professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the combined financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis,
evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the combined financial statements.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Southern New Hampshire Services. Inc.
and Affiliate's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

• Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered In the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc.
and Affiliate's ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain
internal control-related matters that we identified during the audit.



Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the combined financial
statements as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as
required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for
puiposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the combined financial statements.
Additionally, the combining schedules of financial position and combining schedules of
activities are presented for additional analysis and are not a required part of the combined
financial statements. Additionally, the supplementary information as required by New
Hampshire Housing is presented for additional analysis and is not a required part of the
combined financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was
derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the combined financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the combined financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the combined, financial statements or to the
combined financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of Arherica. In our opinion, the
information is fairly slated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a
whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
March 11. 2024, on our consideration of Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and Affiliate's
internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The
purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion
on the effectiveness of Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and Affiliate's internal control
over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed
in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Southern New Hampshire
Services. Inc. and Affiliate's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Dover. New Hampshire
March 11,2024



SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES. INC. AMD AFRLIATF

COMBINED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
JULY 31.2023 AND 2022

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash

Investments

Grants receivable

Accounts receivable

Prepaid expenses

Total current assets

PROPERTY

Land

Buildings and improvements
Vehicles and equipment

Total property

Less: accumulated depreciation

Property, net

OTHER ASSETS

Restricted cash

TOTAL ASSETS

2023

$  10.382.755
10.089.918

4.657.945

1.075.088
311.983

26.517.689

4.060.574
14.624.467
1.748.567

20.433.608

6.392.579

14.041.029

500.770

2022

$ 11,441,623
9.696,836
4,458.963

949.902
129.210

26.676.534

3,575.080
13,936,225
1.470.617

18.981,922

6.720.057

12.261.865

511.966

$ 41.059.488 S 39.450.365

UABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Current portion of long term debt
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll and related expenses
Accrued compensated absences
Other liabilities

Refundable advances

Tenant security deposits

Total current liabilities

LONG TERM LIABILITIES

Long term debt, less current portion shown above

Total liabilities

NET ASSETS

Without donor restrictions

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

87.597
2,053.707
1.952.587

421.706
235,052

2.209.618
82.007

7.042.274

1.389.230

8.431.504

32.627.984

83.656

991,023
1,646,168
407.125

222.094

4.390.640
95.757

7.836,463

1.905.793

9.742,256

29.708.109

$ 41,059,488 $ 39.450,365

See Notes to Combined Financial Statements

4



SOUTHERN NEW.HAMPSHIRE SERVICES. INC. AMD AFFIUATE

COMBINED STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JULY 31. 2023 AND 2022

REVENUES, GAINS AND OTHER SUPPORT
Grant revenue

Program service fees
Local funding
Rental income

Gifts and other contributions
Interest and dividend income

Unrealized loss on investments

Miscellaneous

In-kind contributions

Forgiveness of debt
Gain on disposal of property

Total revenues, gains and other support

2023 2022

$ 110,665.844 $ 131,572,939
804,331 930,848
192.419 162.140

1,134,229 1.248.788
286,973 375,231
463.090 403,230
(60.130) (1,101,886)
160.034 162,429

1.406.827 992.197
440,000 900,000
495,109 8.545

115.988726 135.654.461

See Notes to Combined Financial Statements

5

EXPENSES

Program services
Child development 10,344,050 9,709.703
Community services 1,380,399 li365!889
Economic and workforce development 5,576,367 4,855.488
Energy 21.055,560 IsisBI^OS
Language and literacy 217,448 355,546
Housing and homeless 65.332,498 94,232.589
Nutrition and health 2,206.763 2,192705
Special projects 2.031.500 1 798!981
Volunteer services 119,653 109,401
SNHS Management Corporation 2,726.036 2.458!985

Total program services 110,990,274 132,661.072

Supporting activities
Management and general 2.078,577 1.977.716

Total expenses 113.068.851 134.638.788

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 2.919.875 1,015,673

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 29,708,109 28.692,436

NET ASSETS. END OF YEAR S 32,627,984 $ 29,708,109



SOlfTHERH MgW HAMPSHIRE 8ERVlCE8.iWC. AMD AFRLiATE

COMBINED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31. 2023

EXPENSES

Payro!!
Payroll taxes
Frit>se tMnefits
Workers compertsation insurar^ce
Unemployment
Retiremerrt berteTrts

Consuttant erxJ contractual

Travel and transportation
Conferences and meetings
Occupancy
Advertising .
Supplies
Equipment rentals and maintenance
Insurance

Telephone
Postage
Printirtg and publications
Subscriptions
Program support
Interest

Depreciation
Assistance to clients

Other expense
Miscellaneous

In-kind expenses

SUBTOTAL

Eliminations

TOTAL EXPENSES

Child

Development

$ 4,687.629
349.470

1,443,535
82,817
13,237

342,791

50.990

92,430

706,464

134

303,547

3.805

23,033
86.059

1,402
3.026

6.016

6,411
162.997
349.924

316.567

14.710
1.406.827

10,474,721

1130.671)

Community

Services

$  531.680

40.160

88.342

5.964

1.219
48.717

274.726

16,212
14,430

153.012

5.915
22.767

911

45.759

17,736

5.272

110,075

20,641

11,386

2.113

1.003

1.418.060

{37.661)

Economic and

Workforce

Development

$  2,009.063
151,567
440,413

3,854

5,089
153.650

300,288

48,501

508,703

8.628

16.260

8.610

2,720

37,596
1,010

43,484

1,737,805

108.073

1,183

5,586.497

(10,130)

Program Services

Energy

1,938,086
146,475
503,089

10,384

5,495
119,027

1,347,342
46,755
9.636

136,509

130,317

31,905

22,872
36.512

36,476

696

29.932

8.534

16,521.194
26,625
4.215

21.113,876

(58,316)

Language artd
Literacy

S  203,503

14,583
20.634

4.371

549

5.769

878

168

30.171

25

4,592

443

4.561

1,668

25

292,240

(74.792)

Housing
and Homelesa

$  1.431.041
108,336
295.713

2.074

2.692
67.638

1.154.158

2,611

190.186

71,740
589

6,572
45,272

16.742

6,627

61,950,040
2,503
1,879

65.357.221

(24,723)

Nutrition

and

857.455

64,713
210.743
21.143

2,398
58,784

12.482

32,691
830

71.981

75

283,941

27.842

4.317

70.491
2.468

12.683
521.650

2.379

2.527

2,262.193

(55.430)

S 10.344.050 $ 1.380.399 S 5.576,367 $ 21.055.560 $ 217.448 $ 65.332.498 $ 2.206.763

See Notes to Combined FIrtancial Statements
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SQUTWERW WeW HAMPSHtRE SERVtCEa. tNC. AND AFFIUATE

COMBINED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31. 2023

EXPENSES

Payrol
Payrol taxes
Fringe benefits
Wodcers compensation insurance
Unemployment
Retirement benefits

ConsuQanl ar>d contractual

Travel ar>d transportation
Conferences and meetings
Occupancy
Advertbing
Supplies
Equipment rentals and maintenance
Insurance

Teiephorte
Postage
Printing arrd publications
Subscriptions
Program support
Interest

Depreciation
Assistanca to clients

Other expense
MisceRaneous

In-kind expenses

SUBTOTAL

Eliminations

TOTAL EXPENSES

Support
Program Services Services

SNHS Martsgement

Special Volunteer Management Total Program and 2023

Prelects Services Corooradon Services Total

$  64.397 S  78,563 S  702.669 S  12,504.086 $  1,329,230 $  13.833.316

4.773 5.550 .51.177 936.804 95.465 1.032,269

2.551 25.583 211.953 3.243.456 178.241 3.416.697

306 145 10.911 142,769 4.432 147.201

135 233 1.392 32,439 2.884 35.323

5.715 6,920 53.840 863.771 130.495 684.266

1.862.405 335 137.435 5,161.039 205.722 . 5,366,761

3,699 3.910 49.033 296.010 4,693 300.903

5.972 - 34.047 64.915 1,074 65.988

12.000 . 689.228 2.498.254 59,745 2.557.999
. 1.047 1.574 17.398 25 17.423

264 3.041 19,653 856.450 23.581 880.031

22.835 13 18.642 115.595 5.989 121.584

2.244 1.762 51.156 160.437 10.468 170,935

2.750 3.751 31.762 337,390 17.767 355,157
. 665 718 59.481 11.475 70.956
. . . 8,298 - 8.298

. 1.169 1,895 129 2.024

1.143 . 89.936 237.102 - 237.102
. . 45.072 51.483 51.483

43.940 . 393.865 715.039 4.114 719,153

3.500 . 35.401 81.131.200 . 81.131.200

11.879 424 12.233 482.796 400 483.196

252 3.326 96.859 125.981 66 126;047
. . 1.406.827 - 1.406.827

2.070.780 135.270 ■ 2.740.057 111.450.915 2.084.225 113,535.140

(39.280) (15.617) (14.021) (460.641) (5.648) (466.289)

$ 2.031.500 S  119.653 S 2.726.036 $ 110.690.274 S  2.078.577 S  113.068.651

See Notes to Combined Financial Statements
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SQUTMERM MgW MAMPSMtRE SERVlCgS. INC. AMD AFFILIATE

COMBINED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31. 2022

PfOflram Sarvlcea

Economic and Nutrition

Child Community Workforce Language and Housing and

pevelopmep^ SfTvlcef Develooment Enerov )r)teracv f  Horneisfff Health

EXPENSES

Payroll $ 4.682,659 S  556.156 $  1.990.951 S  1.547.109 $  236,067 $  2,016,252 $  864,686

Payroll taxes 348,302 42.274 149,819 117.947 17,294 153.374 .  65.249

Fringe benefits 1.503.860 97.032 429.260 421,614 26,123 363,941 241.067

Workers compensation insurance 97,375 7,094 4,336 11.681 5,631 4.375 24,217

Retirement benefits 345.542 51.651 166,504 114,842 9,313 59,619 64,339

Consultant and contractual 52.542 289.776 309.531 1.922.755 1.017 927.682 10,004

Travel and transportation 70.049 14,684 37.586 42.224 491 1,928 15.486

Conferences and meetirtgs • 10.660 - 5.378 - 1,016 825

Occupancy 634.228 147.065 554.837 129.718 29.924 52.641 56.192

Advertisirtg 1,168 - 1,660 13,322 100 50 150

Supplies 269.441 24,289 15.592 105.391 12.122 81,566 254.026
Equipment rentals and mainteriance 17.789 3.090 5,139 12.244 10.403 16.919 10.377

Irrsurance 19,075 47.462 5.982 23.078 - 2.463 4.717

Telepbofte 71.994 17,062 37,827 40.509 3.114 24.751 79.510

Postage 1,628 7 1.432 29.767 246 25.363 3.753

Printirtg and publications 1.488 4.588 - 16,531 645 - -

Subscriptions • • - 704 - -  ' -

Program support 1,873 120.345 - 20,585 - - 4,617

Interest 7,811 - - - - -

Depreciation 133.424 19.673 44.930 8.533 2.906 - 13,778

Assist8r>ce to clients 238.519 23.297 1.107.003 11.032.479 - 90.504.018 486.684

Other expense 346.271 2.616 4.642 10,508 - 3.203 4.744

MisceBaneous 12,952 44.591 1,036 1.696 ISO 2,088 1.822

In-kind expenses 992.197 . . - - .

SUBTOTAL 9,830.207 1.525.612 4.868,067 15,628,615 355.546 94.243.249 2.206.243

Eliminations (120.504) (159.723) (12,579) (46.830) (10.660) (13.538)

TOTAL EXPENSES % 9.709.703 S  1.365.889 $ 4.655.488 S 15,581,785 $  355.546 $ 94,232,589 $  2.192.705

Sea Notes to ComblRed Financial Statements
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SQUTMgRN NgW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES. IMC. AWO AFPIUATE

COMBINED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES (ConUniml)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31. 2032

Program Servlca»
Support
Servicas

SNHS Management
Special Volunteer Management Total Program and 2022

Prelects Services Corporation Services General Total

EXPENSES

Payroll $  70.027 $  66,266 S  680,957 S 12,693.150 $  1,258,823 $  13,951,973
Payroil taxes 5,334 4,777 51,276 955.646 91,302 1.046.948
Fringe benefits 5.415 17,932 124.330 3,230,574 172.052 3,402,626
WorKers compensation insurance 631 146 12,763 166.249 4,964 173,213

Retirement benefits 5.851 5.739. 51,873 875.273 123,402 996,675
Consultant artd contractual 1.576.097 2.790 154,643 5,246,637 181,115 5.427.952
Travel and transportation 2.535 1.347 43,639 229,969 6,137 236,106
Conferences and meetings 1.687 • 36.679 56.425 2,276 58,701
Occupancy 20,274 - 653.118 2,277,997 44,863 2.322,860
Adyerttslr>g 25 500 1,641 18.636 338 16,974
Suppfies 9.264 3.099 22.434 797,224 44,635 641,859
Equipment rentals and maintenance 5.673 21 10.928 94,583 1,052 95,635
Insurance 3.706 1,762 46,929 155,174 16.931 172.105

Telephone 2.770 3.137 24,285 304.959 14,673 319.632
Postage 7 752 766 63,721 11.966 75,687
Printing and publications • - 1,477 24,729 . 24,729
Subscriptions - 900 665 2,269 1,029 3.298

Program support 3.336 • 73,105 223,661 . 223,861
Interest . - 47.746 55,557 . 55,557
Depreciation 48.286 . 395.803 667.333 4,114 671,447
Assistaitce to clients 41.099 • 24.779 103.457,878 . 103,457,878
Other expense - 7,175 379,359 1.539 360,898
Miscelaneous 120 213 66.702 131,370 209 131,579
ln-kli>d expertses - - 992.197 . 992.197

SUBTOTAL 1.802,317 109,401 2.533.713 133.102,970 1,981,420 , 135,084.390

Eliminatlorrs (3.336) (74.728) (441.896) (3,704) (445.602)

TOTAL EXPENSES S  1.798.981 S  109.401 S  2.458.985 S 132.661,072 S  1.977,716 5  134,638,788

Sm Notes to Combined Financial Statements
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES. INC AND AFFILIATE

COMBINED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JULY 31 > 2023 AND 2022

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Change In net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change In net assets to
net cash from operating activities;
Depreciation
Gain on disposal of property
Unrealized loss on investments

Forgiveness of debt
Loss on construction

Decrease (increase) in assets:

Grants receivable

Accounts receivable

Prepaid expenses
Increase (decrease) in iiabilities:

Accounts payable
Acaued pay^ and related expenses
Accrued compensated absences
Other liabilities

Refundable advances

Tenant security deposits

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITtES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property
Proceeds from disposal of property
Purchase of investments, reinvested dividends and capital gains

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of long term debt

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE lOECREASE) IN CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH. BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH. END OF YEAR

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Cash paid during the year for interest

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF NONCASH FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Building Improvements in the current year in accounts payable

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH

Cash

Restricted cash

Total cash and restricted cash

2023

$  2.919:875

719.153
(495,109)

60.130

(440,000)

(198,982)
(125,186)
(182.773)

495,206

306.419

14.581
12.958

(2.181.022)
(13.750)

891.500

(2.144.901)
709.171

(453.212)

(1.838.942)

(72.622)

(72.622)

(1.070.064)

11.953.589

S 10.883,525

2022

%  1,015.673

871,447
(B.545)

1.101.886
(900.000)
70.044

(1.007,324)
(171.292)

7.482

299.323
458.824

(17.372)
(21.028)

2.966.502
6.525

4.472.150

(1,058.436)
45,428

(402.006)

(1.415.014)

(68.765)

(68.765)

2.988,371

8.965.21B

S 11.953.589

51.483 S 55,557

$  567.476 S

$ 10.382.755 S 11.441,623
500.770 511.966

$ 10.863.525 $ 11,953.589

See Notes to Combined Financial Statements
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES. INC. AND AFFILIATE
1

I  NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JULY 31. 2023 AND 2022

NOTE 1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(

General

Southern New Hampshire Sen/ices, Inc. and affiliate (the Organization) is a
nonprofit umbrella corporation that offers an array of services to the elderly,
disabled, and low-income households in New Hampshire's Hiilsborough County
and Rockingham County. The Organization's programs provide assistance in the
areas of education, child development, employment, energy and its conservation,
housing, and homelessness prevention. The Organization is committed to
providing respectful support services and assisting individuals and families in
achieving self-sufficiency by helping them overcome the causes of poverty. The
primary source of revenues is derived from governmental contracts. Sen/ices are
provided through Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and SNHS
Management Corporation.

Basis of Accounting

The Organization prepares its combined financial statements utilizing the accrual
basis of accounting in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America.

iBasis of Presentation

The combined financial statements of the Organization have been prepared in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (US GAAP), which
require the Organization to report information regarding its financial position and
activities according to the following net asset classifications. The classes of net
assets are determined by the presence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions.

Net assets without donor restrictions - Net assets that are not subject to
donor-irriposed restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in
performing the primary objectives of the Organization. These net assets
may be used at the discretion of the Organization's management and the
Board of Directors.

Net assets with donor restrictions - Net assets subject to stipulations
imposed by donors, and grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary in
nature; those restrictions will be fulfilled and removed by actions of the
Organization pursuant to those stipulations or by passage of time. Other
donor restrictions are perpetual in nature, whereby the donor has stipulated
the funds be maintained in perpetuity.

Donor restricted contributions are reported as an increase in net assets
with donor restrictions. When a restriction expires, net assets are
reclassified from net assets with donor restrictions to net assets without

donor restrictions in the statement of activities.
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AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JULY 31. 2023 AND 2022

I

)As of July 31, 2023 and 2022, the Organization had no net assets with donor
restrictions.

Combined Financial Statements

;AII significant intercompany items and transactions have been eliminated from the
basic combined financial statements. The combined financial statements include

'the accounts of SNHS Management Corporation because Southern New
'Hampshire Services. Inc. controls more than 50% of the voting power.

i Southern New Hampshire Services. Inc and SNHS Management Corporation are
'governed by separate boards of directors and each Organization files its own form
(990 with the IRS. See combining schedules on pages 25 and 26 of these financial
i statements.
\

Estimates

The preparation of combined financial statements in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect certain reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date
of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the reported period. Actual results may differ from these amounts.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purpose of the combined statements of cash flo\ws, the Organization
considers all unrestricted highly liquid debt instruments purchased with a maturity of
three months or less to be cash equivalents. The Organization has no cash
equivalents as of July 31. 2023 and 2022.

Current Vulnerabilities Due to Certain Concentrations

The Organization is operated in a heavily regulated environment. The operations of
the Organization are subject to the administrative directives, rules and regulations of
federal, state and local regulatory agencies. Such administrative directives, rules
and regulations are subject to change by an act of Congress or Legislature. Such
changes may occur with little notice or inadequate funding to pay for the related
cost, including the additional administrative burden, to comply with a change.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Organization maintains its cash balances at several financial institutions
located in New Hampshire and Maine. The balances are insured by the Federal
Deposit Insurance Organization (FDIC) up to $250,000 per financial institution. In
addition, on October 2. 2008, the Organization eritered into an agreement with its
principal banking partner to collateralize deposits in excess of the FDIC insurance
limitation on some accounts. The balances, at times, may exceed amounts covered
by the FDIC and collateralization agreements. It is the opinion of management that
there is no significant risk with respect to these deposits at either July 31, 2023 and
2022.

12



SOUTHERN

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JULY 31. 2023 AND 2022

^Accounts and Grants Receivable
I All accounts and grants receivable are stated at the amount management
expects to collect from balances outstanding at year-end. Receivables are
recorded on the accrual basis of accounting primarily based on reimbursable

i contracts, grants, and agreements. Balances outstanding after management has
I used reasonable collection efforts are written off through a charge to bad debt
: expense and a credit to the applicable accounts receivable. Management does
[not believe an allowance for uncollectible accounts receivable is necessary at
: July 31.2023 and 2022.

I

I Support and Revenue Recognition
!

i Contracts with Customers

'■ Program fees are reported at the amount that reflects the consideration to which
ithe Organization expects to be entitled for providing childcare services to its
! clients.

! Generally, the Organization bills customers and third-party payors several days
I after the services are performed. Revenue is recognized as performance
I obligations are satisfied. Performance obligations are determined based on the
• nature of the services provided by the Organization. The Organization measures
^ the performance obligations of its childcare services to the point when it is no
' longer required to provide services to the client, which is generally weekly for
' childcare services. These services are considered to be a single performance
i obligation.

: Revenue for performance obligations satisfied at a point in time is recognized
' when services are provided, and the Organization does not believe it is required to
provide additional services to the client.

j Based on the nature of services provided by the Organization and due to the fact
that all of the Organization's performance obligations are related to contracts with

! a duration of less than one year, the Organization has elected to apply the
optional exemption provided in FASB ASC 606-10-50-14(a) and. therefore is not
required to disclose the aggregate amount of the transaction price allocated to

' performance obligations that are unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied at the end of
the reporting period.

, The transaction price for childcare services is based on standard charges for
i services provided to clients. Under the terms of the State of New Hampshire

Department of Health and Human Services childcare subsidy programs,
reimbursement for childcare services provided may differ from established rates. It
Is the Organization's policy to set its rates to be consistent with current
reimbursement rates. Therefore, amounts due do not include significant variable
consideration subject to retroactive revenue adjustments due to settlement of

'  reviews and audits.
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES. INC. AND AFFIt lATF

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JULY 31. 2023 AND 2022

The Organization has elected to apply the practical expedient allowed under
FASB ASC 606-10-10-4 for applying the revenue standard to a portfolio of
contracts with similar characteristics. The Organization accounts for the contracts
within each portfolio as a collective group, rather than individual contracts, based
on the payment pattern expected in each portfolio category and the similar nature
and characteristics of the clients within each portfolio. The portfolios consist of
major payor classes for childcare services. Based on historical collection trends
and other analysis, the Organization has concluded that revenue for a given
portfolio would not be materially different than if accounting for revenue on a
contract-by-contract basis.

The Organization has also elected to apply the practical expedient allowed
under FASB ASC 606-10-32-18 for the financing component, as the period of
time between the service being provided and the time that the client or third-
party payor pays for the service is typically one year or less.

Private Grant Revenue and Contributions

Private grant contributions are recognized when cash, securities or other
assets, an unconditional promise to give, or notification of a beneficial interest is
received. Conditional promises to give are not recognized until the conditions on
which they depend have been substantially met. Support that is restricted by the
donor is reported as an increase in net assets without donor restrictions, if the
restriction expires in the reporting period in which the support is recognized. All
other donor-restricted support is reported as an increase in net assets with
donor restrictions, depending on the nature of the restriction. When a restriction
expires, (that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is
accomplished), net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified to net assets
without donor restrictions and reported in the combing statements of activities
as net assets released from restrictions.

Grants and Support

Grant revenue is derived from various federal grant agreements and various
state and private entity passthrough grant agreements and contracts to provide
funding support of the Organization's programs and services provided by the
Organization including childcare, child development, social, health, nutrition,
employment, language, energy, and special needs services to families enrolled
in the Organization's programs. The Organization has evaluated its grant
agreements against applicable accounting standard guidance and determined
that the grant agreements are contributions (nonreciprocal transaction)
conditioned upon certain performance requirements and/or incurrence of
allowable qualifying expenses. Amounts received are recognized as revenue
when the Organization has incurred expenses in compliance with specific
provisions of the grant agreements.
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICgS. INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JULY 31. 2023 AND 2022

Refundable advances result from unexpended balances from these conditional
contributions and will be subsequently recognized as contribution revenue when
donor conditions are met. Federal and state grant revenue comprised
approximately 95% and 97% of total revenue in the fiscal years ended July 31.
2023 and 2022, respectively.

In-Kind Donations

The Organization records various types of in-kind support including professional
services and materials. Contributed professional services are recognized if the
service received creates or enhances long-lived assets or requires specialized skill,
are provided by individuals possessing those skills, and would typically need to be
purchased if not provided by donation. Contributions of tangible assets are
recognized at fair value when received. In-kind revenues and expenses for the
years ended July 31, 2023 and 2022 are $1,406,827 and $992,197. respectively
(See Note 12).

Investments

The Organization carries investments in marketable securities with readily
determinable fair values and all investments in debt securities at their fair values
in the combined statements of financial position. Unrealized gains and losses
are included in the change in net assets in the accompanying combined
statements of activities.

Property

Property acquired by the Organization is capitalized at cost if purchased or fair
value if donated. It is the Organization's policy to capitalize expenditures for these
items in excess of $5,000. Major additions and renewals are capitalized, while
repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred. Depreciation is calculated
using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets, which
range from three to forty years. Depreciation expense for the years ended July
31, 2023 and 2022 was $719,153 and $671,447, respectively.

Property purchased with grant funds are owned by the Organization while used in
the program for which they were purchased or in other future authorized
programs. However, the various funding sources have a reversionary interest in
the fixed assets purchased with grant funds. The disposition of property, as well
as the ownership of any proceeds is subject to funding source regulations.

Advertising

The Organization uses advertising to promote programs among the people it
serves. The production costs of advertising are expensed as incurred.
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SERVICES. INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JULY 31. 2023 AND 2022

Income Taxes

Southern New Hampshire Services. Inc. and SNHS Management Corporation
are exempt from Federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal
Revenue Code and are not private foundations. As such, they are exempt from
income tax on their exempt function income.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The Organization allocates its expenses on a functional basis among its various
programs and support services. Expenses that can be identified with a specific
prograrh and support services are allocated directly according to their natural
expenditure classification. Other expenses, that are common to several functions,
are allocated by management based on effort. Supporting services are those
related to operating and managing the Organization and its programs on a day-to-'
day basis. Supporting services have been subclassified as follows:

Management and General - Includes all activities related to the Organization's
internal management.

New Accounting Pronouncement

In February 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued
Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842), to increase
transparency and comparability among organizations by recognizing lease assets
and lease liabilities on the statement of financial position and disclosing key
information about leasing arrangements for lessees and lessors. The standard
applies a right of use model that requires, all leases with a lease term of more
than 12 months, to recognize an asset representing its right to use the underlying
asset for the lease term and liability to make lease payments to be recorded. The
adoption of ASU 2016-02 did not have a material impact on the Organization's
results of operations and cash flows. There were no material amounts to be
recognized as operating right of use asset or operating lease liability at July 31,
2023, due to limited leases having a term greater than 12 months.

NOTE 2. RESTRICTED CASH

The Organization, as stipulated in many of the loan agreements associated with
the housing projects included in SNHS Management Corporation, is required to
maintain separate accounts, and make monthly deposits into certain restricted
reserves for the replacement of property and other expenditures. In addition, the
Organization is required to maintain separate accounts for tenant security
deposits and any surplus cash that may result from annual operations. These
accounts are also not available for operating purposes and generally need
additional approval from oversite agencies before withdrawal and use of these
funds can occur.
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES. INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JULY 31. 2023 AND 2022

NOTE 3. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

The framework for measuring fair value provides a fair value hierarchy that
priorrtizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value. The
hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and the lowest priority to
unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements). Valuation techniques maximize the
use of relevant observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs.

The three levels of the fair value hierarchy under Financial Accounting Standards
Board Accounting Standards Codification 820, Fair Value Measurements, are
described as follows:

Level 1: Inputs to the valuation methodology are unadjusted quoted prices for
identical assets or liabilities in active markets that the organization has the ability
to access at the measurement date.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level I that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly, such as:

• Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets;

• Quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities In inactive
markets;

• Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or
liability;

•  Inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by
observable market data by correlation or other means.

If the asset or liability has a specified (contractual) term, the Level 2 input must be
observable for substantially the full term of the asset or liability.

Level 3: Inputs that are unobservable for the asset or liability.

The following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets
measured at fair value. There have been no changes in the methodologies used
at July 31, 2023 and 2022.

Mutual Funds: Valued at the net asset value of shares held on the

last trading day of the fiscal year, which is the basis for transactions
at that date.

The following table sets forth by level, within the fair value hierarchy, the
Organization's assets at fair value as of July 31:
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NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JULY 31. 2023 AND 2022

2023

Total mutual funds

at fair value

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

2022

Total

^ S 10.089.918

Total mutual funds

at fair value

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

S 9.696.836 - L

Total

^ $ 9.696 836

NOTE 4. INVESTMENTS

The Organization's investments are presented in the financial statements in the
aggregate at fair value and consisted of the following as of July 31:

2023 2022

Market

Value Cost

Market

Value Cost

Mutual Funds $10.089.918 $ 9.694.288 $ 9 696.836

The Organization had unrealized losses on investments of $60,130 and
$1,101,886, at July 31. 2023 and 2022, respectively.

The activities of the Organization's investment account are summarized as
follows:

Fair value - beginning of year

Dividends and capital gains, reinvested
Unrealized loss

Fair value - end of year

2023

$ 9,696.836

453,212

f60.1301

2022

$ 10.396.716

402,006
f1.101.8861
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NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JULY 31. 2023 AND 2022

note 5. LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY

The Organization's financial assets available for expenditure, that is. without donor
or other restrictions limiting their use. within one year of the statement of financial
position date comprise the following as of July 31:

Cash

Investments

Grants receivable

Accounts receivable

Total financial assets available within one year

2023

$10,382,755
10.089.918
4,657.945
1.075.088

2022

$11,441,623
9,696.836
4,458,963
949.902

None of the financial assets are subject to donor or other contractual restrictions.
Accordingly, all such funds are available to meet the needs of the Organization in
the next 12 months. In addition, the Organization maintains several reserve funds
for property taxes, insurance expenses, and repair and replacement or emergency
needs which are required by financing authorities. These funds may tie wrthdrawn
only with the approval of the financing authority and are not considered by the
Organization to have donor restrictions.

The Organization manages its liquidity by developing and adopting annual
operatifig budgets that provide sufficient funds for general expenditures in meeting
its liabilities and other obligations as they become due.

NOTE 6. LONG TERM DEBT

The long term debt at July 31. 2023 and 2022 consisted of the following:

2023 2022
SNHS. Inc

Mortgage payable to bank, secured by real estate
located on Temple St., Nashua, NH, payable in
monthly installments of $2,182 plus interest through
2030. Interest is at 4.00% at July 31, 2023 and
2022. $ 162,615 S 182.389
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES. INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JULY 31. 2023 AND 2022

2023 2022

SNHS Management Corporation

Mortgage payable to City of Manchester, secured
by real estate located in Manchester, NH. A balloon
payment of $11,275 was due on June 30, 2010.
Interest is at 0.00%. SNHS, Inc. is currently
negotiating with the City of Manchester to obtain
forgiveness. 11,275 11,275

Mortgage payable to New Hampshire Housing
secured by real estate located on Pleasant St..
Epping, NH, payable in monthly installments of
$1,084 including interest through 2042. Interest is
at 3.50%. 174.800 181,569

Mortgage payable to the City of Nashua secured by
real estate located on Vine St., Nashua, NH.
Mortgage will be forgiven only if real estate remains
low-income housing for 30 years. Interest is at
10.00%, annually if requirements are not met. This
barrier was met during the year ended July 31,
2023 and the mortgage was forgiven in full and
recognized into income (See Note 10). - 20,000

Mortgage payable to New Hampshire Community
Loan Fund secured by real estate located on. Vine
St., Nashua. NH. Mortgage will be forgiven only if
real estate remains low-income housing for 30
years. Interest is at 10.00%, annually if
requirements are not met. This barrier was met
during the year ended July 31, 2023 and the
mortgage was forgiven in full and recognized into
income (See Note 10). - 250,000

Mortgage payable to bank, secured by real estate
located on West Pearl St., Nashua, NH. Mortgage
will be forgiven only if real estate remains low-
income housing for 40 years. Interest is at 0.00%.
This barrier was met during the year ended July 31,
2023 and the mortgage was forgiven in full and
recognized into income (See Note 10). - 170.000
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NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JULY 31. 2023 AND 2022

2023 2022
Mortgage payable to MH Parsons and Sons
Lumber, secured by real estate located on Crystal
Ave., Derry, NH. payable in monthly installments of
S3.715 including interest through 2031. Interest is
at 5.50%. 295.423 322.593

Mortgage payable to New Hampshire Housing
secured by real estate located in Deerfield, NH.
payable in monthly installments of $3,327 including
interest through 2033. Interest is at 7.00%. 289,789 308,698

Mortgage payable to New Hampshire Housing
secured by real estate located in Deerfield, NH with
annual principal repayments equal to 25% of cash
surplus due through 2032. Interest is at 0.00%. 392.925 392.925

Mortgage payable to New Hampshire Housing
secured by real estate located in Deerfield, NH with
annual principal repayments equal to 25% of cash
surplus due through 2032. Interest is at 0.00%. 150.000 150.000

1,476,827 1,989,449

Less; current portion due within one year 87.597 83.656

$1.389 230 5 1.905.793

The schedule of maturities of long term debt at July 31. 2023 is as follows:

Year Ending
July 31 Amount

2024 $ 87,597
2025 80,491

2026 84,899
2027 89,564

2028 94,498
Thereafter 1.039.778

Total $1.476.827
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NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JULY 31. 2023 AND 2022

NOTE 7. OPERATING LEASES

The Organization leases various facilities under several operating leases, total
lease payments for the years ended July 31, 2023 and 2022 equaled $923,323
and $864,053, respectively. The leases expire at various times through 2025.
Some of the leases contain renewal options that are contingent upon federal
funding, and some contain renewal options subject to renegotiation of lease
terms. Annual leases with the Organization for the years ended July 31, 2023 and
2022 totaled $229,188 and $221,737, respectively. These leases have been
eliminated in the combined financial statements.

The schedule of future minimum lease payments at July 31. 2023 for the
operating leases is as follows.

Year Ending
Amount

2024 $  78.161
2025 12.524

Total $  90.68^

NOTE 8. ACCRUED COMPENSATED BALANCES

At July 31, 2023 and 2022 the Organization accrued a liability for future annual
leave time that its employees had earned in the amount of $421,706 and
5407,125, respectively. Any hours not used by the end of the calendar year are
forfeited.

NOTE 9. RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Organization has an Employer-Sponsored 403(b) plan offering coverage to all
of its employees. Participating employees must contribute at least 1% of their
wages, while the Organization contributes 10% of their wages. The retirement
benefit expense for the years ended July 31, 2023 and 2022 was $994,266 and
5998,675, respectively.

NOTE 10. FORGIVENESS OF DEBT

During the year ended July 31, 2023, the Organization realized forgiveness of
debt income in connection with three mortgage payables to the City of Nashua.
The real estate located in Nashua, New Hampshire remained as low-income
housing for a length that satisfied the criteria for debt forgiveness from the City of
Nashua. Forgiveness of debt income totaled $440,000 for the year ended July
31. 2023 on the accompanying combined statement of activities (Note 6).
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NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JULY 31. 2023 AND 2022

During the year ended July 31, 2022. the Organization realized forgiveness of
debt income in connection w/ith a mortgage payable to the City of Nashua. The
real estate located on Vine St. in Nashua. New Hampshire remained as low-
income housing for 30 years which satisfied the criteria for debt forgiveness from
the City of Nashua. Forgiveness of debt income totaled $900,000 for the year
ended July 31. 2022 on the accompanying combined statement of activities.

NOTE 11. RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Cotton Mill Square

In 2015, SNHS Management Corporation entered into a contract as part of the
Community Development Investment Tax Credit Program with the Community
Development Finance Authority (CDFA) and was awarded $1,000,000 to provide
funding for the development and adaptive reuse of an abandoned historic cotton
mill in downtown Nashua. New Hampshire. Under this program, the Project
(Cotton Mill Square) created 109 units of housing and was required to reserve 55
of these units for low to moderate income households.

As stipulated by the contract and after a 20% program fee retained by the CDFA,
SNHS Management Corporation entered into a subrecipient agreement with the
owners of the Project (Cotton Mill Square LLC) to provide a promissory note and
mortgage of the remaining award amount of $800,000. The 20 year note to Cotton
Mill Square LLC is non-interest bearing and the principal is forgivable at a rate of
5% each year if the Project maintains the required minimum of 55 low to moderate
income household units.

The Cotton Mill Square Project was awarded the certificate of occupancy on
August 22, 2014 and remains in full compliance with the required regulations as of
July 31. 2023 and 2022. SNHS Management Corporation feels that it is extremely
unlikely that the Project will fall into noncompliance in future periods. Therefore.
SNHS Management Corporation has not recorded any contingent receivable or
liability related to this transaction. The note repayment is accelerated if the units
fall out of compliance.

In October of 2017, the subrecipient agreement with Cotton Mill Square LLC was
amended to cease the annual 5% debt forgiveness. This modification effectively
holds the promissory note balance at $720,000 which will now be forgiven in full at
die end of the agreement as long as the Project maintains compliance with the
original terms of the agreement. This modification did not change the contingent
receivable or liability with SNHS Management Corporation.

NOTE 12 IN-KIND CONTRIBUTIONS/SERVICES

The Organization records the value of in-kind contributions according to the
accounting policies described in Note 1.
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES. INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JULY 31. 2023 AND 2022

The fair value of gifts in kind included contributions.in .the financial statements and
the corresponding program expenses for the year ended July 31, 2023 and 2022, is
as follows:

2023 2022

Volunteer hours

Head Start and Early £1.406.827 £992.197
Head Start

NOTE 13. RECLASSIFICATIONS

Certain reclassrfications have been made to the prior year's financial statements,
which were taken from the July 31. 2023 financial statements, to conform to the
current year presentation.

NOTE 14. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Management has made an evaluation of subsequent events through March 11,
2024, which represents the date on which the combined financial statements
were available to be issued and determined that any subsequent events that
would require recognition or disclosure have been considered in the preparation
of these combined financial statements.
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SQUTHERM NEW HAMPSHIRC SERVlCgS. INC. AHD APPtUATg

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF FINANCIAL POSITION
JULY at. 2023

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash

investments

Grants receivable

AccourMs receivable

Prepaid expenses
Due from related parties

Total current assets

PROPERTY

Land

Buildings and improvements
Vehicles and equipment

Total property

Less; accumulated depredation

Total property, net

OTHER ASSETS

Restricted cash

TOTALASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Current portion of tong term detil
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll and related expenses
Accrued compensated absences
Other HabiSties

Re^mdable advances

Tenant security deposits
Due to related parties

Total current iiaointlee

NONCURRENT UABIUTIES

Long term debL less current portion shown above

Total tafaiilties

NET ASSETS

Without dor>or rastrictiona

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASS^

SNHS. Inc.

ASSETS

SNHS

Managemam
Corporation SutvTotal EllmmatJon

t  1^61,357 S 9.121.398 S 10.382.758

4.613.855

251.407
5.288.049

11.414.668

10.089.918

44.090

1.075.088

60.576
(2.672.032>

17.719.038

10.089.918

4.657.945

1.075.088

311.983
2.616.017

29.133 706

(2.616.017)

(2.616.017)

30.781 469.989 500.770

t  15.611.183 S 28.064.322 t 43.675.505

UABIUTIES AND NET ASSETS

Total

S 10.382.755

10.089.918

4.6S7.945

1.075.088

311.983

26517.689

646.805 3.413.769 4.060.574 4.060,574
3.969.256 10.655.211 14.624.467 14.624.467
1.498 975 249.592 1.748.567 1.748.567

6.115,036 14.318.572 20.433.608 20.433,606

1 949 307 4 443 377 6.392.579 6.392.579

4,165 734 9.875.295 14.041.029 14.041.029

500.770

S (2.616.017) 8 41.059.488

i  19.966

1.892.132

280.586

212.307

1.694.546

29.459

2.672 032

$  67.631

161.575
1.671.999
421.706

22.745
515.072

52.548

(56.015)

i  87,597

2.053.707

1.952.587

421.706

235.052
2.209.618

82.007

2.616.017

S

(2.616,017)

i  87,697
2.053,707
T.952.587

421,706
235,052

2,209.818
82.007

6.801,030 2.857.261 9.658.291 (2.616.017) 7.042.274

142.649 1.246.581 1,389.230 1.389.230

6.943.679 4.103.842 11.047.521 {2,616.017> B.431.504

8.667.504 23 960.480 32.627.984 32.627.984

$  15.611.183 S 28.064.322 S 43.675.505 3 (2.616.017) S 41.059.488
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SQl/THERH HEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES. it4C. AND AFRLrATE

COMBtMNG SCHEDULE OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31. 202S

Sch9dul9 8

SNHS

Man«0emtnt
SNHS. Inc. CgrpgrpUgn Sub-Total Elhnlnatron Total

REVENUES. GAINS AND OTHER SUPPORT
Grant reveniM

ProQWn servic*
Local funding
Rental Incorne

Gnis end otner conirtbuUona

Interest end cfivldend income

Unrealized loss on mvestments

Misceltaneous
Forgiveness of debl
Gain on disposal of property
hvkind contriaubons

S 110.965.844

275.039

266.926

820

124.603

16,301
1,406.627

S

766.393

192,419

1.363,417
20.047

462.470

(60.130)
35.431

440.000
478.808

5 110.665,844
1.041.432

192.419

1.363.417 ■
286.973

463.090

(60.130)
160,034
440.000

495.109
1.406.827

S

(237,101)

(229.188)

S 110.665.844
804,331

192.419

1.134.229
266,973

463.090
(60.130)
160,034
440.000

495.109
1.406.827

Total revenues, oakts and other support 112.758.160 3,696.855 116.455.015 (466.289) 115.988.728

EXPENSES

Pregrem eervicee
Child doMlopment
Community services
Economic and worfcforce development
Energv
Language and Vteracy
Hous'rtg and homeless

Nutrtbonand health

Special prelects
Volunteer services

SNHS Managemeni Corporation

10.474.721

1/418.060

5.586,497

21.113.876

292.240

65.357,221

2.262.193

2.070.780

135.270
2.740.057

10.474.721

1.418.080

6.586.497

21.113.876
292.240

65.357.221

2.262,193
2.070.780

135.270
2.740,057

(130,671)
(37,661)
(10,130)
(56,316)
(74.792)
(24.723)

(55.430)
(39.280)
(15,817)
(14.021)

10.344,050

1.380.399

5.576.367
21.055,560

217.448

65.332,498

2.206.783
2X)31.S00

119.653
2.726.036

ToUi program services 108.710.858 2.740.057 111.450.915 (460.641) 110.990.274

Supporting activities
Mansgement and general 2.084.225 2.084.225 (5.648) 2.078.577

Total expenses 110.795,083 2.740.057 113.535.140 (466.289) 113.068.851

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 1.961,077 958.798 2,919.875 • 2,919.875

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 6.706.427 23.001.682 29.708.109 . . 29.708.109

NET ASSETS. END OF YEAR S  6,667.504 S 23.960.480 S  32,627.964 $ S  32.627.984
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WHISPERING PINES n

(FORMERLY: EPPIWG SENIOR HOUSING ASSOCIATES LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
(PROJECT NO. A1999fl1-M6l

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSfTION
JULY 31.2023 AND 2022

assets

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash

Prepaid expenses

Total current assets

RESTRICTED CASH
Insurance escrow

Tax escrow

Replacement reserves
Operating reserve

Total restricted cash

PROPERTY

Land

Buildings and improvements

Total properly

Less accumulated depredation

Property, net

OTHER ASSETS

Tenant security deposits

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Current portion o' rnortgage note payable
Accounts payable

Accrued expenses

Total current liabilities

LONG TERM UABILITIES

Due to affiliate

Mortgage note payable, less current portion as shown above
Tenant security deposits

Total long term liabilities

Total liabilities

NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

2023

$  18,114
9.492

27.606

1.074

4.767
42,339
55,427

103.607

166,600
598.178

764.778

110.612

653.966

13.504

7.010
4,364

328

11.702

47,697

167.790

13.504

228.991

240.693

557.990

2022

16.249
6,648

22.897

3,120

4,959
27.778

79.495

115.352

166,600
598.178

764.778

93.216

671.562

14.643

S  798.683 S 824 454

6.769
5,448
49

12.266

29,575

174,800
14.643

219.018

231.284

593,170

$  786.6M s 8g^>*S4

P
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WHISPERING PINES II

fFQRMERLYr EPPING SENIOR HOUSING ASSOCIATES LIMITED PARTNERSHIPS

IPRQJECTNO.A199991.046I

STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JULY 31. 2023 AND 2022

2023 2022
INCOME

Rental income $  171,902 $  175,309

Interest income 8 11

Interest Income restricted 2.537 172

Other income 3,680 5.400

Total income 178.127 180,892

OPERATING EXPENSES

Administrative 43,135 39,451

Utilities 42,357 45,744

Maintenance 74.601 62,802

General 29.371 26,246

Total operating expenses 189.464 174,243

INTEREST EXPENSE 6;247 6,479

INCOME ILOSS) BEFORE DEPRECIATION (17.564) 170

Depreciation 17.596 17.494

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS (35,180) (17.324)

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 593,170 610,494

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR $  557,990 $  593,170
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/FORMERLY: EPPING SENIOR HOUSING ASSOCIATES LIMtTPD PARTNERSHtP^
/PROJECT WO A199991.0Afi^

SCHEDULES OF RENTAL OPERATIONS EXPENSES
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JULY 31. 2023 AND 2022

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Management fee
Salaries and wages
Fringe benefits
Legal
Investment and management fee
Telephone
Other administrative expenses

Total administrative ext)ense$

UTILITIES

Electricity
Fuel

Water and sewer

Other utility expense '

Total utility expenses

MAINTENANCE

Trash removal
Snow removal

Elevator repairs and contract
Custodial supplies
Repairs, materials
Repairs, contract

Total maintenance expense

INTEREST, NHH MORTGAGE NOTE

DEPRECIATION

GENERAL EXPENSE

Real estate taxes

Payroll taxes
Retirement benefits

Workman's compensalicn
Insurance

Total general expense

TOTAL RENTAL OPERATIONS EXPENSES

2023 2022

14,400
11,803

3.376
4.443

399
8.714

43,135

17,226
12,218

12,913

42.357

2,512
16,214
3.482

15

44.680

7.698

74,601

6.247

17.596

20,392
902

1.074

553

6.450

29.371

14.400
6,816

2.043
3.971
6,120
1,687
4.414

39,451

17.056
15,579
11.630
1:479

45,744

2,533
12,496

3.756
295

35,522
8.200

62,802

6.479

17.494

19,648
515

50

351

5.682

26.246

$  213.307 $ 198,216
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WHISPERINS PINES II
/FORMERLY: EPPIMG SEWIQR HQUStNG ASSOCIATES LIMITED PARTNERSHIPS

/PROJECT MO. A1M991^6^

SCHEDULES OF RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JULY 31. 2023 AND 2022

SOURCES OF FUNDS:

Rental operations

2023* 2022

INCOME

Tenant paid rent
HAP rent subsidy

$  157,554

14.348

$  157,575

17.734

Total rental receipts 171.902 175.309

Interest income

Service income

Other income

2.545
2,345

1 335

183
2,635

2.765

Total rental operations receipts 178,127 180.892

EXPENSES

Administrative

Utinties

Maintenance

General

lr\terest

43,213

43.426
74,269

32,215
6,247

39.008

41.718
63,138

25.539
6.479

Total rental operations disbursements 199.360 . 175,832

CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) RENTAL OPERATIONS BEFORE
AMORTIZATION OF MORTGAGE (21,233) 5.010

AMORTIZATION OF MORTGAGE (6.769) (6.537)

CASH USED IN RENTAL OPERATIONS AFTER DEBT SERVICE (28.002) (1.527)

OTHER DISBURSEMENTS

Net receipts (payments) from management agent
Net withdrawals (deposits) from reserve accounts
Purchase of property

18,122
11,745

(556)
(6,128)
(8.070)

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH 1,865 (14.281)

CASH, BEGINNING OF YEAR 16,249 30,530

CASH. END OP YEAR I  18,114 $  18,249
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/FORMERLY; EPPIMG SENIOR HOUSING ASSOCIATES LIMITED PARTNERSHIPS

fPROJKgTNP.A189981W)

SCHEDULES OF RESTRICTED CASH RESERVES AND ESCROWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JULY 31.2023 AND 2022

DESCRIPTION OF FUND:

Rpstilcted Accounts:

For the Year Ended July 31.2023

Deposits

Balance

Beginning of Funding of Interest
Year Reserves Earned

Withdrawals

Exoendttures

Balance

End of

Year

Operating reserve S 79.495 $ - $ 1,523 S (25,591) $ 55.427

Insurance escrow 3,120 6,204 114 (8,364) 1,074

Tax escrow 4,959 20,527 139 (20,858) 4,767

Replacement reserve

TOTAL RESTRICTED CASH

RESERVES AND ESCROWS

27,778 13,800 761 . 42.339

f..JJ5JS2 £- _2^ s... /54.8131 S 103.607

For the Year Ended July 3L 2022

Operating reserve

Insurance escrow

Tax escrow

Replacement reserve

$  79,373 S

2,911 6.443

5.228 19,010

21,712 11.850

122 S

5

9

36

(6,239)

(19,288)

(5.820

$  79,495

3,120

4,959

27.778

TOTAL RESTRICTED CASH

RESERVES AND ESCROWS ^ 1Q9 224 S 37.303 £. J22 S m 3471 $ 115 352
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(FORMERLY: EPPING SENIOR HOUSING ASSOCIATES LIMITED PARTNERSHIP!

(PROJECT NO.A199991-Q46^

SCHEDULES OF SURPLUS CASH

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JULY 31. 2023 AND 2022

2023 2022

Net loss $  (35.180) $ (17.324)

Add:

Depreciation 17.596 17.494

Deduct

Interest income from reserve accounts

Required prindpat payments

Required payments to replacement reserves

(2,537)

(6,769)

(13,800)

(172)

(6,537)

(11,850)

Add other NHHFA approved items:

Investor services fee 6,120

Cash deficit $  (40.690) $ (12.269)
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^FORMERLY: EPPING SEMIOR HOUSING ASSOGIATES LIMITED PARTMERSHIP^

fPRQJSCTNQ.A1WM1-W)

YEAR-TO-DATE COMPILATION OF OWNERS' FEBDISTRIBUTION

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JULY 31. 2023 AND 2022

Maximum

Allowable Distributions

Year Distribution Received Balance

12/31/2001 $  243,855 S $  243,855

12/31/2002 243,855 -
487,710

12/31/2003 243.BS5 5.695 725,670

12/31/2004 243.855 7.200 962.325

12/31/2005 243,855 ,  - 206,180

12/31/2006 243.855 6,120 ^443,915

12/31/2007 243,855 - ■■ .687,770

12/31/2008 243,855 -
•..931,625

12/31/2009 243.855 - 2,175,480

12/31/2010 243,855 - 2,419.335

12/31/2011 243.855 - 2.663,190

12/31/2012 243.855 - 2,907,045

12/31/2013 243,855 ■7.200 3,143.700

12/31/2014 243.855 - 3,387,555

12/31/2015 243.855 -
3.631,410

7/31/2016 142,249 - 3,773.659

7/31/2017 243.855 - 4,017,514

7/31/2018 243,855 - 4.261.369

7/31/2019 243,855 -
4.505,224

7/31/2020 243.855 -
4,749.079

7/31/2021 243,855 - 4,992,934

7/31/2022 243,855 - 5,236,789

7/31/2023 243.855 - 5.480,644
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J.B. MILgTTE MANOR

^FORMERLY: J.B. MILETTE LIMITED PARTNERSHIP*

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
JULY 31.2023 AND 2022

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash

Prepaid expenses

Total current assets

RESTRICTED CASH

Tax escrow

Replacement reserves

Operating reserves

Total restricted cash

PROPERTY

Land

Buildings and improvements

Total property

Less accumulated depreciation

Property, nei

OTHER ASSETS

Tenant security deposits

TOTAL ASSETS

ASSETS

CURRENT UABIUTIES

Accounts payable
Accnjed expenses

Total current liabilities

LONG TERM LIABILITIES

Due to affiliate

Mortgage note payable
Tenant security deposits

Total long term liabilities

Total liabilities

NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS

TOTAL LIABILITITES AND NET ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

2023

S  18,628
12.694

31.322

97.522

97.522

176.000
1.191.515

1.367,515

220.105

1.147.410

17.977

5.232

1.287

6.519

119.427

17.977

137.404

143.923

1.150.308

2022

20,017
10.768

30.785

6.556
115,584

70.051

192,191

176,000
1.174.605

1,350,605

185.773

1.164.832

16.408

S 1 294 231 $ 1.4Q6.216

3,944
1.105

5.049

119,202

270.000
18,408

407.610

412.659

993,557

s 1 294 231 s 1,406,216
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J.B. MILETTE MANOR

fFORMERLYt J.B. MILETTE LIMITED PARTNERSHIPS

STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JULY 31. 2023 AND 2022

- 2023 7022

INCOME

Rental income $  209,138 $  195,796

Interest income 12 10

Interest income restricted 68 93

Other Income 1,683 985

Totalincome 210,901 196,884

OPERATING EXPENSES
Administrative 69,901 74,425

Utilities 66,959 59.878
Maintenance 93,611 59,321

General 39,347 37,821

Total operating expenses 289.818 231.445

LOSS BEFORE DEPRECIATION AND FORGIVENESS OF DEBT (78.917) (34,561)

Depreciation (34.332) (32.741)
Forgiveness of debt 270,000 900,000

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 156.751 832,698

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 993.557 160.859

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR $  1.150,308 S  993,557

35



J.B. MILETTgMAMQR

fFORMERLY: J.B. MILETTg IIMITFD PARTNERSHIPS

SCHEDULES OF RENTAL OPERATIONS EXPENSES
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JULY 31. 2023 AND 2022

2023 2022
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Management fee $ 17,688 $ 17,688
Salaries and wages 50,761 42,968
Fringe l)enefits 5.912 3^843
Legal . 6.172 4.583
Telephone 119 1,540
Other administrative expenses 9,249 3.823

Total administrative expenses 89,901 74.425

UTIUTIES

Electricity 29.620 30.929
Fuel 24.853 15,424
Water and sewer 12.486 11,912
Other utility expense ^ 1.613

, Total utility expenses 66.959 59,878

MAINTENANCE

Trash removal 3.265 2,969
Snow removal 10,956 9,360
Elevator repairs and contract 6,079 5,769
Custodial supplies 543 826
Repairs, materials 66,772 33,772
Repairs, contract . 5,996 6,605

Total maintenance-expense 93.611 59.321

DEPRECIATION 34.332 32.741

GENERAL EXPENSE
Real estate taxes 19,563 21,938
Payroll taxes 3,871 ' 3,281
Retirement benefits 2.436 2,077
Workman's compensation 1.648 1.467
Insurance 11,829 9,038

Total ̂ neral expense 39.347 37.821

TOTAL RENTAL OPERATIONS EXPENSES $ 324,150 $ 264.186
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J.B. MILETTE MANOR

^FORMERLY: J.B. MILETTE LIWHTED PARTNERSHIPS

SCHEDULES OF RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS

SOURCES OF FUNDS:

Rental operations

2023 2022

INCOME

Tenant paid rent $
HAP rent subsidy

179,903
29.235

$  172,359
23.437

Total rental receipts 209,138 195,796

Interest income

Service Income
80

1.683

103

985

Total rental operations receipts 210.901 196,884

EXPENSES

Administrative

Utilities

Maintenance

General

69,155
64.314

95.532
41.273

74,686
60,931

56,276
39,512

Total rental operations disbursements 290.274 231,405

CASH USED IN RENTAL OPERATIONS (79.373) (34.521)

OTHER DISBURSEMENTS

Net receipts from management agent
Net wtthdrawals (deposits) from reserve accounts
Transfer to tenant security deposit accourjt
Purchase of property

225

94,669

(16.910)

69,492

(15,695)
17

(17,275)

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH (1.389) 2.018

CASH, BEGINNING OF YEAR 20,017 17,999

CASH, END OF YEAR { 18,626 $  20,017
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J.B. MILgTTgMAMQP

^FORMERLY: J.B. MILETTE LIMITgP PARTMFRSHiPt

SCHEDULES OF RESTRICTED CASH RESERVES AND ESCROWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JULY 31. 2023 AND 2022

DESCRIPTION OF FUND:

Restricted Accounts:

For the Year Ended July 31. 2023

Operating reserve

Tax escrow

Replacement reserve

Deposits

Balance

Beginning of Funding of
Year Reserves

$  70,051 S

6,556

115.584 15,600

TOTAL RESTRICTED CASH

RESERVES AND ESCROWS S 192.191 ^

interest

Earned

Withdrawals

Expenditures

Balance

End of

Year

20 $ (70.071) $

2  (6.558)

-1® (33.708) 97,522

15-6QQ L M $ f11Q.M7) S ^7522

For the Year Ended Julv 31. 2022

Operating reserve

Tax escrow

Replacement reserve

$  70,015 $

6.552

99.929 IS'.eOO

36 $

4

55

$  70,051

6,556

115,584

TOTAL RESTRICTED CASH

RESERVES AND ESCROWS S 176.496 S IfifiOO J ^ ̂
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J.B. MtLETTg MANOR

fFQRMERLY: J.B. MILETTE LlMrTED PARTNERSHIPS

SCHEDULES OF SURPLUS CASH

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JULY 31.2023 AND 2022

2023 2022

Net loss $  156,751 $ 832,698

Add:

Depreciation

Reserve for replacement withdrawals not capitalized
34,332

33.708

32,741

Deduct:

Interest income from reserve accounts

Required payments to replacement reserves

(68)

(15,600)

(93)

(15,600)

Add other NHHFA approved items:

Forgiveness of debt income

Cash deficit

(270,000) (900,000)

S  (60.877) $ (50,254)
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SHERBURNE WOODS

fFQRMERLY: SNHS DEERFiELD ELDERLY HOUSING UMITED PARTMPRSHIP^
fPROJECT HO HAP PBA 901.n?-nsi

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
JULY 31.2023 AND 2022

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash

Prepaid expenses

Total current assets

RESTRICTED CASH

Insurance escrow

Tax escrow

Replacement reserves
Operating reserves

Total restricted cash

PROPERTY

Land

Buildings and improvements

Total property

Less accumulated depreciatiort

Property, net

OTHER ASSETS

Tenant security deposits

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT UABIUTIES

Current portion of mortgage note payable
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Deferred revenue

Total current liabilities

LONG TERM UABIUTIES
Due to affiliate

Mortgage note payable, less current portion as shown at>ove
Tenant secuiity deposits

Total long t^ liabilities

Total liabilities

NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS

TOTAL LIABIUTIES AND NET ASSETS

2023

52.119
9.378

61.497

950

5.728
213.685
69.541

289.904

211.000
932.700

1.143.700

124.370

1.019.330

16.159

20,275
971

552

21.798

73.732
812.439
16.159

902.330

924,128

462,762

2022

99.295
8.701

107.996

2.761

6,414
207.873
68.049

285,097

211,000
932,700

1.143.700

99.515

1.044.185

16.261

$ 1-386 890 S 1453 539

18.908

29,355

823

11,695

60.781

84.358

832.715
16.261

933.334

994,115

459,424

?  i.isa.saa
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SHERBURWEWQQPS

(FORMERLY: SNHS DEERFIELD ELDERLY HOUSING UMITEP PARTMPRSMIp^
IPROJECTNO. HAP PBA 9Q1-02.Q5>

STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JULY 31. 2023 AND 2022

INCOME
2023 2022

Rental income

Interest income
$  260.356

37

$  267.614
44

Interest Income restricted 6.079 435
Other income 3.950 3.876

Total income 270.422 271.969

OPERATING EXPENSES

Administrative

Utilities

Maintenance

General

52.690
37.510

92,814
38,206

45.122
35.470

76,135
32,936

Total operating expenses 221,220 189.663

INTEREST EXPENSE 21.009 22,284

INCOME BEFORE DEPRECIATION 28,193 60,022

Depreciation 24.855 23.580

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 3,338 36.442

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 459.424 422.982

NET ASSETS. END OF YEAR S  ' 462,762 S  459.424
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SHERBURMgwnnns

(FORMERLY: SNHS DEERRELD ELDERLY HOUSING LIMITED PARTNFRRHIP1
(PROJECT NO. HAP PBA 901^24)51

SCHEDULES OF RENTAL OPERATIONS EXPENSES
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JULY 31. 2023 AND 2022

2023 2022

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Advertising $ 500 $ 63
Management fee 18,000 18.000
Salaries and wages 24.180 isieos
Fringe benefits 661 2!476
Legal . '505
Telephone 237 2.180
Other administrative expenses 9.112 8.292

Total administrative expenses 52.690 45,122

UTIUTIES

Electricity 19.092 20,171
Fuel 12.381 9,093
Water and sewer 6.037 5,064
Other utility expense - 1.142

Total utility expenses 37,510 35.470

MAINTENANCE

Trash removal 2,737 3,007
Snow removal 25,370 27,185
Custodial supplies ■ 396
Repairs, materials 50,691 31,512
Repairs, contract 14.016 14.035

Total maintenance expense 92,814 76.135

INTEREST 21.009 22.284

DEPRECIATION 24.855 23.580

GENERAL EXPENSE

Real estate taxes 26,617 25,449
Payroll taxes 1.849 1,041
Retirement benefits 1.349 50
Wor1<man's compensation 1,157 701
Insurance 7.234 5,695

Total general expense 38.206 32.936

TOTAL RENTAL OPERATIONS EXPENSES $ 267.084 $ 235,527
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SHERBUBNE WOODS
^FORMERLY-. SNHS DEFRFIgLD PLDPRLY HnilStNQ LIMITgP PARTMPRSMIPl

fPRQJECT WO HAP PRA

SCHEDULES OF RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JULY 31. 2023 AND 2022

SOURCES OF FUNDS:

Rental operations

2023 2022

INCOME

Tenant paid rent $
HAP rent subsidy

-.24,060
124.601

$  137.382

H1.927

Total rental receipts 248,661 279.309

Interest income

Service income

Other Income

6.116

2,510
1.440

479

2,435

1.441

Total rental operations receipts 250.727 283.664

EXPENSES

Administrative

Utilities

Maintenance

General

Interest

52.989

39,292

93,861
38.910
21.009

45.102
33,401

75.725
33,759
22.284

Total rental operations disbursements 246.061 210,271

CASH PROVIDED BY RENTAL OPERATIONS BEFORE

AMORTIZATION OF MORTGAGE 12,666 73,393

AMORTIZATION OF MORTGAGE (18.909) (17,633)

CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) RENTAL OPERATIONS AFTER DEBT SERVICE (6,243) 55,760

OTHER DISBURSEMENTS

Fixed asset addition placed in service prior year paid in current year
Net payments from management agent
Net deposits from reserve accounts
Transfer tenant securtty deposits

(25.500)
(10.626)
(4.807)

(10.504)
(26,827)

(50)

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH (47.176) 18,379

CASH, BEGINNING OF YEAR 99,295 80,916

CASH. END OF YEAR S 52.119 $  99.295
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SHERBURNgWOODS

fFORMERLY:SNHS DEERFIELD ELDERLY HQUSJMG LIMITED PARTNERSHIPS

/PROJECT WO.HAP PBA 901-02^5

SCHEDULES OF RESTRICTED CASH RESERVES AND ESCROWS

. FOR THE YEARS ENDED JULY 31. 2023 AND 2022

DESCRIPTION OF FUND:

Restricted Accounts:

For the Year Ended July 31.2Q23

Deposits Withdrawals

Balance

Beginning of Funding of
Year Reserves

interest

Earned Expenditures

Balance

End of

Year

Operating reserve $ . 68,049 $ - S 1,492 $ - $  69,541

Insurance escrow 2,761 5,483 101 (7,395) 950

Tax esaow 6.414 25,876 174 (26,736) 5,728

Replacement reserve 207.873 27.000 4,312 (25,5001 213,685

TOTAL RESTRICTED CASH

RESERVES AND ESCROWS s 2S&.097 S 58.359 s 6079 159.6311 S 289.904

For the Year Ended Julv 31.2022

Operating reserve

lnsurar>ce escrow

Tax escrow

Replacement reserve

$  67.945 $

3,046 5.230

6,707 26.828

180.572 27.000

104 $

5

25

301

(5,520)

(27.146)

S  68,049

2,761

6,414

207,873

TOTAL RESTRICTED CASH '
RESERVES AND ESCROWS £ 258.270 S 59.058 g. ^ $ (32.6W1 S 285,097
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SHERBURNE WOODS

fFQRMERLY: SNHS DEERFIELD ELDERLY HOUSING LIMITED PARTNERSHIPS

(PROJECT NO. HAP PBA

SCHEDULES OF SURPLUS CASH

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JULY 31. 2023 AND 2022

2023

Net income

Add:

Depreciation

Deduct:

Interest income from reserve accounts

Required principal payments

Required payments to replacement reserves

Cash surplus (deficit)

3,338

24.855

(6.079)

(18,909)
(27,000)

$  (23.795) S_

2022

36.442

23,580

(435)

(17,633)
(27.000)

14,954
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SHERBURMgWQOnS

fFQRMERLY:SNHS DEERFIELD ELDERLY HOUSING LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

(PROJECT NO.HAP PBA 901-02-05

YEAR-TO-DATE COMPILATION OF OWNERS' FEEyDISTRIBUTION

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JULY 31. 2023 AND 2022

Year

Maximum

Allowable

Distribution

Distributions

Received Balance

12/31/2003

12/31/2004

12/31/2005

12/31/2006

12/31/2007

12/31/2008

12/31/2009

12/31/2010

12/31/2011

12/31/2012

12/31/2013

12/31/2014

12/31/2015

12/31/2016

12/31/2017

7/31/2018

7/31/2019

7/31/2020

7/31/2021

7/31/2022

7/31/2023

S 113,850

113,850

113,850

113,850

113,850

113.850

113,850

113,850

113.850

113,850

113.850

113,850

113.850

113.850

113.850

66,413

113,850

113.850

113.850

113,850

113,580

113.850

227.700

341.550

455,400

569,250

683.100

796.950

910,800

1.024,650

1.138,500-

1.252,350

1,366.200

1,480.050

1.593.900

1,707,750

1,774,163

1.886,013

2,001.863

2,115,713

2.229,563

2,343,143
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SOtffHgRM NEW HAMPftHtHE SgRVtCgS IMC. AND AFPtUATg

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31.

ASSISTANCE

USTINO

NUMBER

FEDERAL GRANTOR/

PASS.THROUGH GRANTOR/PROGRAM TITLE

U.S. Deptrtnwnt of AoricuHuw

Spocisl SuppiementsI NutrWon Progtwn for
Womef). lAfsnts. and Children (WIG)

Child and AdtiS Cars Food Program
Food Distribution Cluster

Commodity Supplemental Food Program

Child Nutrition Cluster

Summer Food Service Program lor Chadren

Total U.S. Departmenl of Agticuilure

U.S. Deosftment of Housing and Urtrsn Deytfoorrrent

Emergsrtcy Solulions Granl Program
Section 8 Project-Based Cluster

Section 8 Moderate Retiabriitstion Single Room Occupartcy

Total U.S. Oeparirrtenl ol Housing and Urban Devetopmem

U.S. DeoartmentofLatwr

WlOA Cluster

WIOA Adult Program

Total U.S. Department ol Labor/WlOA Cluster

U.S. Deoftment ol Education

Adult Education • Basic Grants to States

Adult Education • Basic Grants to Slates

Total U.S. Oeperimeni ol Education

U.S. Deoactntent ol Treasury

Emergency Rectial Assisunce Program
Erttergency Rental Assistance Program
Emergertcy Rental Assistance Program
Emergency Rental Assistance Program

Coronavirus'Slaia and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds

Total U.S. Department of Treasury

See Notes to Schedule of Expandtturss of Federal Awards

PASS-THROUGH

GRANTOR'S NAME

FEDERAL

GRANTOR'S NUMBER

10.557

10.558

Stats of NH. Department of Health & Human Services

Stats of NH. Departrnent of Education

214NH703W1003 S 1.308.419

843,295

10.565 Contmunity Action Program BaDurap-Marrima^ Counties 202220Y800544 28.648

10.559 Slate of NH. Department of Education

9

135.114

2.315.476

14.231 Stats of NH. DHHS. Bureau of Homeless & Housing E-21-OC-33-0001 9 130.864

14.249

9

464.891

595.755

17.258 State of NH. Dept of Resources and Economic Development 02-6000918 9

9

2.831.564

2.831.584

84.002

84.002

Stale of NH. Department of Education
State of NH. Departnwni of Education

67011-AeE Manchester

67011 -ABE Portsmouth

9 52.865

33.449 66.314

S 86.314

21.023

21.023

2t.023

21.023

New Hampshire Housing Authority

New Hampshire Housing Authority

New Hampshire Housing Authority

Now Hampshire Housing Authority

ERAOOt2 AND ERA043S

ERAEOOie

ERAE0019

ERA0012AND ERA0435

$ 19.781.852

41.364.860

1,327.999

84.903 62.559.714

21.027 New Hampshire Housing Auttiority ERAE00t9

9

2.900.423

55.460.137
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES. INC. AND AFFtLlATE

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31.2023

FEDERAL GRANTOR/

PASS.THROUQH ORANTORA>ROGRAM TITLE

ASSISTANCE

U9TING

NUMBER

PASS-THROUGH

GRANTOR'S NAME GRANTOR'S NUMBER

FEDERAL

EXPENDITURE

Coroontlon for Nationsl and Communttv Ssrviess

Retired and Senior Volunteer Program 94.002 20SRANH002 $ 127.613

Total Corporation for Nelionel and Community Services 3 127,813

UA Deoartment of Enerov

Weotherizitlon Assistance lor Low-Income Persons 81.042 Slate of NH. Office of Energy & Planning DE-EE000793S $ 1.067.179

Total U.S. Deparlment ol Energy 3 1,067.170

U.S. Deoartment of Health & Human Services

Aging Cluster

Special Programs for tire Aging. Trtle III, Part B,
Grants for SupportNe Services and Senior Centers

93044 State of NH, orAce of Energy & Ptannmg 18AANHT355 S 13.113

Temporary Assistarwe tor Needy FemlHes
Temporary Assistance for Needy Fsmibes

93.SS8

93.SS6

State of NH. OHHS

Stale of NH. OHHS

22NHTANF

23NHTANF

S 2,003,232

135.412 2,138,644

Low Income Home Energy Assslance (Fuel Assistance)
ARPA-Low income Home Energy Assistance (Fuel Assistatice)
Low Income Home Energy AssistarKa (BWP)

93.568

93.568

93.566

State of NH. Office of Energy & Planning
Slate of NH. OfTice of Energy & Planning
State of NH, Office of Energy & Ptannir^g

2101NHLtEA

LIHEAP ARP22 & LIHEAP-US-OHHS

2301NHLIEA

13.433.743

3.749.169

477,892 17,660,824

Community Services Block Grant
CV- Community Services Block Grant

93.569

93.569

State of NH. OHHS

Slate ol NH. OHHS

2201NHCOSR

2201NHCSC3

1,430.570

059.710 2.390,280

Community Services Block Grant - Discretionary 93.570 Slate of NH. DHHS 2201NHCOSR 45,063

Low Income Household Water Assisttewe Program (LIWAP) 93.499 State of NH, Office of Energy & Plartnirtg 220tNHLWC5'6 247.834

Head Start Cluster

Head Start/Early Head Start
ARPA-Head Start/Early Head Start

93.600

93.600

OICH01060205

01HE0004740101

7,593,011

496.553 8,091,564

Sm Notes to Schsdute of Expondituros of Fodonl Awards
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SOUTHERN NEW HAWPSHtRE SERViCea. tMC. AWD AFFIHATE

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OP FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31. 2023

FEDERAL GRANTOR/

PASS-THROUGH GRANTOR/PROGRAM TITLE

U.S. Dwi»ftm«nt of H—lth A Humin Sfvlct (eontlftuadt

CCDF Cluttsr

Child Cam and Osvelopmenl Block Grants

CNM Care Mandatory Matching Funds

Preschool Dev^opment Grant Birth through five

Total U.S. Oepartment of Health & Human Services

ASSISTANCE

USTINO

number

93.57S

93.S8e

93.434

PASS-THROUGH

GRANTOR'S NAME

FEDERAL

State of NH, DSSK

State of NH. DSSH

Unrversity of New Hampshire

GRANTOR'S NUMBER

2201NHCC0F

2201NHCCOF

90TP0060

1.50S.543

S31.993 2.040.436

^0.809

5  32.666.587

TOTAL »  1<IS.1S2.»4S

See Notes to Scliadula of Expenditures of Federal Awards
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31. 2023

NOTE 1 BASIS OF PRESENTATION
The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule)
includes the federal award activity of Southern New Hampshire Services. Inc.
and Affiliate under programs of the federal government for the year ended July
31, 2023. The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for
Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a
selected portion of the operations of Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and
Affiliate, it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes
in net assets, or cash flows of the Organization.

NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of
accounting. Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles
contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not
allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.

NOTES INDIRECT COST RATE
Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and Affiliate has elected not to use the
ten percent de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under the Uniform Guidance.

NOTE 4 SUBRECIPIENTS
Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. had no subrecipients for the year ended
July 31. 2023.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL

REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT

AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors of

Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and Affiliate

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained In Government
Auditing Sfandards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States , the combined
financial statements of Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and Affiliate {a New Hampshire
nonprofit organization), which comprise the statements of financial position as of July 31, 2023
and 2022 and the related statements of activities, and cash flows for the years then ended,
and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated
March 11. 2024.

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the combined financial statements, we considered
Southern New Hampshire Services. Inc. and Affiliate's internal control over financial reporting
(internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Southern New Hampshire
Services, Inc. and Affiliate's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of Southern New Hampshire Services. Inc. and Affiliate's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements, on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented,
or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during
our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not
identified.
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Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Southern New Hampshire .Services,
Inc. and Affilfate's combined financial statements are free from material misstatement, we
performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was
not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results
of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards:

Purpose of This Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the organization's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the
organization's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable
for any other purpose.

Dover, New Hampshire
March 11,2024
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH
MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE

REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Board of Directors of

Southern New Hampshire Services, inc. and Affiliate

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

Opinion on Each Major Federai Program

We have audited Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and Affiliate's compliance with the
types of compliance requirements identified as subject to audit in the 0MB Compliance
Supplement ihai could have a direct and material effect on each of Southern New Hampshire
Services, Inc. and Affiliate's major federal programs for the year ended July 31, 2023.
Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and Affiliate's major federal programs are identified in
the summary of auditors' results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs.

In our opinion, Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and Affiliate complied, in all material
respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct
and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended July 31. 2023.

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
Stales; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements. Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal
Awards (Uniform Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform
Guidance are further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance
section of our report.

We are required to be independent of Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and Affiliate
and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with relevant ethical requirements
relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal program.
Our audit does not provide a legal determination of Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc.
and Affiliate's compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above.
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Responsibilities of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the
design, Implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the
requirements of laws, statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant
agreements applicable to Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and Affiliate's federal
programs.

Auditors' Responsibiiities for the Audit of Compiiance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with
the compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and
express an opinion on Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and Affiliate's compliance
based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is riot absolute
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform
Guidance will always detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting
material noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control. Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it
would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of the report on compliance about
Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and Affiliate's compliance with the requirements of
each major federal program as a whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Government
Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance, we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error,
and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures
include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding Southern New Hampshire
Services. Inc. and Affiliate's compliance with the compliance requirements referred to
above and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances.

• Obtain an understanding of Southem New Hampshire Services, Inc. and Affiliate's
internal control over compliance relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and report on internal control over
compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Southem New Hampshire Services, Inc.
and Affiliate's internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is
expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and
material weaknesses in internal control over compliance that we identified during the audit.
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Report on Internal Control over Compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a
control over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a
type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe
than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in
the Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed
to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material
weakriesses or significant, deficiencies in internal control over compliance. Given these
limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. However, material
weakriesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance may exist that were
not identified.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the
requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other
purpose.

Dover, New Hampshire
March 11.2024

66



SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES. INC. AND AFFILIATF

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31. 2023

SUMMARY OF AUDITORS' RESULTS

unmodified opinion on whether the combined financial

accordance with GAA^^ Hampshire Services, Inc. and Affiliate were prepared in
2. No signifiMnt deficiencies disclosed during the audit of the combined financial statements

are reported m the Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control Over Financial
Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial
S>tatements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards No material
weaknesses are reported.

3. No instances of noncompliance material to the combined financial statements of Southern
New Hampshire Services, Inc. and Affiliate, which would be required to be reported in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards were disclosed during the audit.

4. No significant deficiencies in internal control over major federal award programs are
reported in the Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and
on Internal Control Over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance No material
weaknesses are reported.

5. The auditors' report on compliance for the major federal award programs for Southern New
Hampshire Services, Inc. and Affiliate expresses an unmodified opinion on all major federal
programs. '

6. There were no audit findings that are required to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR
section 200.516(a).

7. The progr-ams tested as major programs were; U.S. Department of Health and Human
Services; Low-Income Home Energy Assistance Program. ALN 93.568; U.S. Department of
Energy; Weatherlzation Assistance for Low-Income Persons, ALN 81 042 and U S
Department of Treasury; Emergency Rental Assistance. Program, ALN 21.023;

8. The threshold for distinguishing Type A and B programs was $3,000,000.

9. Southern New Hampshire Services. Inc. and Affiliate was determined to be a low-risk
auditee.

FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT
t

None

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS AUDIT

None

66



SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31. 2023

There were no findings or questioned costs that were required to be reported in the Schedule
of Findings and Questioned Costs for the year ended July 31, 2022.
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RYAN C

CLOUTHIER

OBJEaiVE

Seeking a leadership role which will allow me the opportunity to utilize and build upon my knowledge and
passion for the work performed by Community Action Agencies in the state of New Hampshire, while at the
same time being the support and strength for the Communities we serve.

EXPERIENCE

Chief Operating Ofnccrl Southern New Hampshire Services Inc.
FEB. 2018-PRESENT

Serving as part of the Executive Management Team and is responsible for providing inspiring leadership to the
Southern New Hampshire Services (SNHS) senior management team and developing a performance culture to
ensure the effective management of a comprehensive array of over sixty programs. The Chief Operating Officer
will tie the various component programs including: nutrition; housing; energy; workforce development; income
enhancement; education; and elderly services to the agency, to each other, and to the general community, by
promoting and communicating the mission of Community Action. In conjunction with the Chief E.xccutive
Officer and Fiscal Officer the ChiefOperating Officer provides the stewardship of'SNHS by being actively
involved with the agency's high-performance senior leadership team in the development, implementation, and
management of the program content as well as annual budgets. Responsible for ensuring that services and
programs provided fulfill the agency's mission, and are in compliance with all federal, state, funding, and city
regulations, certifications, and licensing requirements.

Energy and Housing Operatious Director | Southern New Hampshire Services Inc.
2016-2018

Responsible for providing the various SNHS Energy and Crisis programs. Information Technology, Housing and
Maintenance programs with mission, vision and leadership. Responsible for the planning, implementation, and
evaluation of all facets of fiscal and program management, effectiveness while providing general oversight for all
of the program's administration and day-to-day management, including budget management, grant writing and
purchasing.' Also responsible for maintaining a working relationship with governmental officials, local boards
and agencies in developing and managing the programs. In conjunction with the Executive Director and Fiscal
Officer this positions provides the stewardship of SNHS by being actively involved with the agency's high-
performance senior leadership team in the development, implementation, and management of program content as
well as annual budgets. Responsible for ensuring that services and programs provided fulfill the agency's
mission and are in compliance with all federal, state, funding, city, certifications, and licensing requirements.

Energy Direclor | Southern New Hampshire Services Inc.
2013-2016

Responsible for coordination, implementation, budgeting, overall supervision and management of the Fuel and
Electric Assistance Programs, Crisis Programs, Weatherization Program. Lead Hazard Control Program, and
YouthBuild Program for Hillsborough and Rockingham Counties. Develop and Maintain relationships with
federal, state and local grantors. Intervene on behalf of the Community Action pertaining to the Core Utility
Weatherization Energy Efficiency Programs. Maintains a strong working relationships with OCA, NH Legal
Assistance, Office of Strategic Initiative, DOE. Liberty Utilities, Eversource, NHEC, Unitil, NHHFA, NREL,
Apprise and other local non-profit and private companies in the industry. Participates in multiple Healthy Home
strategic planning committees.

Weatherization Director | Southern New Hampshire Services Inc.
2006-2013

Responsible for coordination, implementation, budgeting, overall supervision and management of the
Weatherization, Lead Abatement, and YouthBuild Programs for Hillsborough and Rockingham Counties.
Developed and Maintain relationships with federal, state and local grantors. Intervened on behalf of the
Community Action Association during the merge of Liberty Energy and National Grid Gas along with filings
pcnaining to the Core Energy Efficiency Programs. Developed strong working relationships with OCA, NH



Legal Assistance, Office of Energy and Planning. DOE, Liberty Energy, Eversource. NHEC. Unitil, NHHFA,
NREL, Apprise and other local non-profit and private companies in the industry. Served on the Department of
Energy special task force designed to implement a National Best Practices Manual for JTA/KSA for
Weatherization Energy Auditor Certification. Participated in a "One Touch*' pilot eft'ort which became a
statewide practice and has received national recognition

Energv Auditor | Southern New Hampshire Services Inc.
2004 - 2006

Responsible for performing field energy audits of low income residential properties; record the data in written
and computerized formats to determine cost effectiveness of conservation measures needed; generate work order
specs for the contractors. Conduct proper follow through and field inspections to assure quality installations and
client satisfaction.

Network Analyst | Genuity
2004 - 2006

Responsible for monitoring the Genuity Dial up network supporting AOL Domestic and International subscribers
including Japan, USA and Canada. Responsibilities include isolating and troubleshooting problems/outages and
configuration issues, on different types of Cisco routers, Lucent APX s, MAX's, and Nortel CVX's.
Troubleshooting consists of isolating problems through head to head testing with different Tclco's. Also
responsible for creating, troubleshooting, and closing tickets in a group ticketing queue. Demonstrated strengths
in the areas of interpersonal skills and negotiation.

EDUCATION

2000 NH Community Technical College
1994-1998: Dover High School
Other: Weatherization written and field certification, Department of Energy Quality Control Inspector
Certification, multiple national and regional weatherization best practices trainings. Intro to Cisco routers, Tl and
T3 design and troubleshooting training, ATM and Frame Relay network design training, LAN and WAN
training. 0C3, OC48, and OC192 design and troubleshooting training, BPl Energy Analyst. Lead contractor
abatement Certification, RRP certification, OSHA 30 hour worker safety, DOE Lead Safe Weatherization .
certification.

SKILLS

Problem solving

New Business Development

Social Media

Public Speaking

Data Analysis/Analytical thinking

Strategic Planning

Operations Management

Contract Negotiations

Team and Relationship building

Planning and forecasting

Budget and Financial management

Leadership

Community Assessment

Computer skills specific to job include,
TREAT. NEAT, OTTER, FAP/EAP

Microsoft 365, PowerPoint, Outlook,

Word, Excel. Web, EmpowOR and CSST
and many others that can be beneficial.

9 ACTIVITIES/ACCOMPLISHMENTS
♦  Numerous press articles related to Weatherization including visits from the Assistant Secretary of Energy

Efficiency from the Department of Energy and Vice President Joe Biden.

Member of the City of Nashua Healthy Homes Strategic Planning Committee.

Member of the City of Manchester Healthy Homes Strategic Planning Committee.

Union Leader 40 under 40 Class of 2015.

Vice President of the Neighbor helping Neighbor Board.

Member of the Energy Efficiency and Sustainable Energy Board.

Member of the Residential Ratepayers Advisory Board.



DONNALEELOZEAU

Community/Civic

Involvement' Current

• NH Community Action Partnership

• HB4 Cliff Effect Working Group,

Co-chair

• Governor's Office for Emergency.

Relief and Recovery Stakeholders
Advisory Board, Chair

• Whole Family Approach to Jobs NH

Chapter, Co-chair
• St. Joseph Hospital Board of

Directors, Quality Council Chair
• St. Mary's Bank Supervisory

Committee, Chair

• NH Healthy Families Board of

Directors

• -Mary's House Advisory Board

• The Plus Company
• NH Tomorrow Leadership Council

• Community College System of NH s
• American Council of Young Political

Leaders, Alumni Member

• State Workforce Innovation Board

Community/Civic
Involvement- Past

• Reaching Higher NH

• NH Center for Public Policies

Studies

• Governor's Judicial Selection

Commission

• Big Brothers Big Sisters Board of

Directors, Past President

• Greater Nashua Dental Connection

BOD, Founding Member

• Great American Downtown,

Founding Member
• Domestic Violence Coordinating

Council Nashua

• US Conference of Mayors
• No Labels

• Fix the Debt

• NH Center for Public Policy Studies

• Greater Nashua Chamber of

Commerce, Director

• Greater Nashua Workforce

Housing Coalition, Founding

Member

EXBERIENCE.

Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. (www.SNHS.org)
Manchester, NH (January 2016'Present)

Chief Executive Officer

• Development and oversight of Community Action Partnership serving
NH's two largest counties, Hillsborough and Rocklngham

• Cooperation and engagement with local, state and federal agencies and
organizations on issues and programs that intersect with the
Community Action Mission

• Work to fundamentally enhance the delivery of service to targeted
community to wrap services around clients and streamline the
application process by implementing the Whole Family Approach

City of Nashua, New Hampshire (2008-2016) - Elected

Mayor

• Full time overall day to day management and operations of 2nd largest
city in the state of NH with development and implementation of $245
million dollar (2016) annual budget

• Worked with elected boards including Board of Aldermen; Public
Works; Board of Education and others to prioritize and balance budget
requirements and the needs of the community

• Chaired Board of Public Works and the Finance Committee

• Successfully negotiated the City's purchase of the pubjicly traded
water company (Pennichuck) after a prolonged case before the NHPUC
and the NH Supreme Court

Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. (1993 - 2008) Manchester, NH

Director of Program and Community Development

• Assessed the need for services throughout Hillsborough County
through community outreach by developing partnerships,
collaborations and new initiatives with service providers and
businesses

• Negotiated purchases and contracts and presented projects before
local boards, commissions and departments relative to housing,
support services and economic development

• Designed and implemented strategies for developing working
relationships with town and city officials, local service providers and
appropriate private sector officials in order to project a positive image
of Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc.

• Founded Mary's House 40 units of housing for homeless women and
developed 219 units of Elderly Housing

• Pioneered initiatives for the Community Corrections and Academy

Programs

• Expanded Head Start Services and developed the program and secured
the site for Economic Opportunity Center



Past Community/CMc
Involvement Continued

• Greater Nashua Asset Building
Coalition, Founding Member

• New Hampshire Charitable

Foundation State Board,
Member

• Eagle Board of Review

Education and Training

• CCAP, Certified Community

Action Professional

• CCAP Proctor

• Rivler College, Nashua-

Undergraduate work in Political

Science

• Restaurant Management

Institute

• Mediation and Alternative

Dispute Resolution Training
• Leadership Institute, Aspen
• Justice of the Peace

NH State Representative, Hillsborough County, District 30
{1984 - 2000)-Elected

Deputy Speaker of the NH House of Representatives

(1996 - 2000)

• Addressed constituent concerns

• Assisted Non-Profit organizations and local businesses with governmental
concerns and steering legislation through the political process by working with
members and leadership in the NH House of Representatives and the NH
Senate and representatives of the Executive and Judicial branches

• Managed floor debates and supervised House Calendar content

• Responsible for functions of the House on behalf of or in the absence of the
Speaker

Committee Assignments:

• House Rules Committee, Vice Chairman

• House Legislative Administration Committee

• Joint Facilities Committee

• New Member Orientation, Chair

• House Corrections and Criminal Justice Committee, Vice Chairman

• House Judiciary Committee

• Criminal Justice Sub-Committee, Chairman

• State and Federal Relations Committee

Appointments:

• Joint Legislative Performance Audit and Oversight Committee

• Juvenile Justice Commission, Chairman

• Supreme Court Guardian Ad Litem Committee

• Superior Court Alternative Dispute Resolution Committee

• Work Force Opportunity Council

• Interbranch Criminal and Juvenile Justice Council

■  Subcommittee on Offenders, Chairman
■  Space and Prison Programming
■  Juveniles Subcommittee, Co-Chair

• National Conference of State Legislatures Law and Justice. Vice Chair

• Council of State Governments Intergovernmental Affairs, Corrections and
Public Safety

City Streets Restaurant, (1986-1991)

City Streets Diner, (2000 - 2003) Nashua, NH Co-Owner/Operator

• Operated 450 seat restaurant and banquet facility and effectively managed
financial accounts, staff and licensing requirements



JAMES M. CHAISSON

SUMMARY

Dedicated accounting professional with 8 years of non-profit experience and over 20 years of broad
experience in manufacturing, distribution, reorganizations, mergers and acquisitions, sales/operations
planning/forecasting and establishing & monitoring performance metrics in a manufacturing environment.
Experienced in private and public corporations, including 8 years in a private equity environment with a strong

focus on equity sponsor communication and liquidity management. Complete knowledge of P&L, balance
sheet, cash flow and cost accounting. Proven skills at staff leadership, training and development in a team
environment. Professional Experience:

•  Fiscal Officer In nonprofit organization
•  Controller In MFG & Distribution

•  Treasury and Cash Flow Management

•  Financial & Capital Budgeting, Reporting & Control

•  Cost Accounting Manager

•  General Accounting Manager

•  Business Performance Metric Establishment and Measurement

PROFESSIONAL EXPEIRENCE

Southern New Hampshire Services, Manchester, NH 5/2009-Present
Southern New Hampshire Services (SNHS) is a non-profit entity dedicated to helping people help themselves.
SNHS accomplishes this through a variety of programs offered at centers, offices, clinics, and intake sights
located throughout Rockingham and Hillsborough counties. The agency also oversees 29 housing facilities
with approximately 1000 tenants. SNHS receives and administers $36 million in program funds annually with
over 450 employees.

Chief Fiscal Officer 1/2017 to Present

•  Oversee financial and accounting compliance, maintaining controls and managing potential business
risks

• Manage the annual budget process and analysis activities

•  Prepare presentation for Board of Directors imeetings presenting the organization's financial results
•  Develop and maintain banking relationships

•  Manage the Annual Audit process

5en/or Accountant 5/2009-1/2017

Assisted Fiscal Director In overseeing all fiscal and financial activities including compliance with federal, state,
and funding source requirements as well as accordance with GAAP
•  Developed and implemented indirect cost calculation and interfaced with General Ledger
•  Monitored and prepared monthly budget vs actual reporting; recommended adjustments and forecast

spending

•  Created specialized reports for the individual grant's reporting requirements

•  Designed allocation methods for properly billing shared items to individual grants and programs
•  Prepared monthly agency program reviews for Fiscal Director's Board of Directors review



James M. Chaisson

WOOD STRUCTURES, INC. Biddeford, ME 2001-4/2009
WSI, is a highly leveraged business owned by Roark Capital, a private equity fund, headquartered In Atlanta,
GA. WSI is a $70 million manufacturer of roof and floor trusses, wall panels and a distributor of engineered
wood-products. The company's products are sold into the residential and light commercial construction
markets

Controller 2006-4/2009
Managed all aspects of accounting and reporting in a truss manufacturing plant as well as an engineered wood
products distribution location that included 2 locations in Maine and 1 in Massachusetts.

•  Calculated and assisted in the management of the company's covenants
• Worked closely with senior management during the sale process from the seller (Harbour Group) and

buyer (Roark Capital)

•  Identified cost drivers and implemented process changes to reduce the monthly closing cycle from 18
to 5 days

•  Conducted monthly reviews with the managers on financial results and measurement

•  Oversaw the payroll function of 160+ employees

Accounting Manager 2001-2006
Recruited to company to restore financial controls and establish best practices concerning both general ledger
and cost accounting processes. Responsible for overseeing the accounting of 2 locations in Maine and 1 in
Alabama.

•  Established the reporting protocols of the company used by both equity sponsors
•  Educated, motivated and developed a staff of 3 to succeed in their rolls of financial responsibility
•  Identified and implemented processes and procedures for all intercompany sales, transfers,

consolidation and eliminations

•  Streamlined the payroll process that included transferring to ah external supplier (AOP), which reduced
cost by 40%

•  Conducted physical inventories and defined their policies and procedure at all locations.

VISHAY SPRAGUE, Sanford, ME 1978-2001
Vishay Sprague is a division of Vishay lntertechno|ogy Inc. (NYSEL VSH) a global manufacturer of discrete
semiconductors and passive electronic components. The Sprague Division manufactures solid tantalum
capacitors with annual sales of $200 million and 1,400 employees.

Plant Cost Accounting Manager 1997-2001

Division General Accounting Manager 1995-1997

Division Ooerotion Accountant 1989-1995

Division Fixed Asset Accountant 1987-1989

Master Engineering Technician 1984-1987

Lead Production Technician 1978-1984

EDUCATION

NASSON COLLEGE Springvale, ME

B.S. in Business Administration



SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC.
The Community Action Partnership serving Hillsborough and Rockingham Counties

Mailing Address: PC Box 5040, Manchester, NH 03108
40 Pine Street, Manchester, NH 03013

Telephone: (603)668-8010 FAX: (603) 645-6734

List of Key Administrative Personnel
August 2024

Title Name Annual Salary Percentage Amount
Chief Executive Officer Oonnalee Lozeau $213,759 0.00% 0
Chief Operating Officer Ryan Clouthier $138,939 0.00% 0
Chief Financial Officer James Chaisson $155,009 0.00% 0



N0y08'22 Pnl2:52 ROUnSTATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE ^ ^ KUVlt
f fI  y% I ^ —''\J) \IJ 1-«0.73M9M

COMMISaONB? _,ir ■! _ I I a
j«ds.ct*»fne \ a\ n

DEPUTY COMMISSIONER Trt . (803)2710670Clvttoph.rJ.E^.Jr. ^ FAXNa271.t52B
VWtelK

PEPARTMEMT OF ENERGY www.energy.nh.9ev
21 S. Frua St. Suite 10

Conoord. N.K 03301-2429

October 24, 2022

His Excellency, Governor Christ(^)hcr T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House
Concord, New Hampshire 03301

(■

requested action
The Department of Energy respectfully requests authorization to enter into a SOLE SOURCE contract
with South^ New Hampshire Services, inc. (VC #177198), Manchester. NH. in the amount of $34,968
for the Senior Energy Assistance Services (SEAS) Program, effective upon Governor and Executive
Council approval through September 30. 2025. 100% Other Funds (NH DHHS).

Funds arc available in the account below as follows for FY23 and arc anticipated to be available in FY24
and FY25 upon the continued appropriation and availability of funds in the future operating budget, with
the authority to adjust encumbrances in each of the Slate Fiscal Years through the Budget Office if
needed and justified.

NH Department of Energy. Fuel Assistance FY2023 FY 2024 FY202.5
02-S2-52-5200IO-33540000-074-500587
Grants for Pub Asisist&Relief $13,1 13 $17,484 $4,371

EXPLANATION
This contract is SOLE SOURCE based on the historical performance of the Community Action
Agencies (CAAs) with the New Hampshire Fuel Assistance Program (LIHEAP). The Senior Energy
Assistance Services (SEAS) Program makes home energy more affordable for households with members
who arc sixty years of age or older, who arc experiencing a home energy hardship, and who are not
eligible for the state's Fuel Assistance Program under the current income limits. The CAAs determine
eligibility for the Fuel Assistance Program and arc able to efficiently distribute these funds to households
in need that are not eligible for that program.

A federal grant under the Older Americans Act funds (Title lilB) awarded to the New Hampshire
Department of Heahh and Human Services (NH DHHS) Division of Eldcriy and Adult Services provides
fundmg for the Senior Energy Assistance Services Program. A Memorandum of Understanding for this
program was previously approved by the Governor and Executive Council on March 23,2022, Item #25.

In the eyent that the Other Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not be requested to
support this program.

pectfully Submitted,

Jared Chicoine
Commissioner
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FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 12/11/2019)

agreemeni and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any cnfomutiott that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly idcniifled to the agency and agreed to in wriiing.prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. IDENTIFICATION.

l.l Slate Agency Name
New Hampshire Oepanment of Energy

1.2 Stale Agency Address
21 So. Fruit St.. Sie. 10

Concord, New Hampshire 03301 i

1.3 Contractor Name

Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc.
1.4 Contractor Address

40 Pine Street, Manchester, NH

1.5 Contractor Phone .

Number

(603) 668.8010

1.6 Account Number

02'52-52-5200lb-

33540000074-500587

S2SEAS23

1.7 Completion'Date
September 30.2035

1.8 Price Umiijtion
$34,968

i.y Contracting OtlKcr for State Agency-
Eileen Sroiglowxhi, Fuel Assistance Program Administrator

1.10 State Agency Telephone N
(603)271-8317

umber

1\(l Contractor Signature

yruukSn ULtaij^
1.12 Name and Title of Conlractor Signatory
Donnalee Lozeau, Chief Executive OfTicer

State Agency Simtu're 1.14 Name and Title of Slate Agency Signatory
Jarad Chicoine, Commissioner

l.l V Approval by the N.H. Department of Admmistrauon, Division of Pcradnncl (i/applicabJe)

' ̂y- Director. On:

1.16 Approv^byt^ftA^p^y General (Form. Substance and Execution) 0/opplicabfe)

On: 11/4/2022

1.17 Approval by the Governor and Executive Council (i/applicabfe)

G&Cltem nurnbgc;^^^^ G&C Meeting Dale: 2 2 2022

i^ECRETARY OF STATE

Page 1 of 5
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J. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The State of Kew
Hampshire, acting through the agency identified in block 1.1
C*Statel. engages contractor idcmified in block 1.3
(•Contractor^ to perfonn, and the Contractor shall perform, the
work or tale of goods, or both, identified and more particularly
described in the attached EXHIBIT B which is incorporated
herein by reference ("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPtETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Covernor and
Executive Council of the State ofNew Hampshire, if applicable,
this Agreement, and all obKgatkms ofthe ponies hereunder. shall
become effective on the date the Governor and Executive
Council approve this Agreement u indicated in block 1.17.
unless no such approval»required, in which case the Agreement
shall become efftciive on the datt the Agreement is signed by
the State Agency as shown in block 1.13 ("Effective Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to ihe
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior to
the Effective Date shall be performed at Ihe sole risk of ihe
ContTKior, and in the event that this Agreement does not become
cITectivc, the State shall have no liability to the Contractor,
including withoui limitation, any obligation to pay (he
Contractor for any costs incuned or Services performed.
Cooiractof must complete all Services by the Completion Dale
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONPmONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwiihflanding any provision of this Agreemeni to the
contrary, all i^ligations of the Slate hereuraler, including,
without liinilation. the continu^e of payments heieunder, are
contingent upon the aviiUbility and cominued appropriation of
funds affected by any state or federal legislative or executive
action that reduces, eliminates or otherwise modifies the
approprialion or availability of funding for (his Agreemeni and
the Scope for Services provided in EXHIBIT B. in whole or in
part. In no event shall the Stale be liable for any payments
hereunder in excess of such available appropriate funds. Ip the
evem of a reduction or termination of appropriated fbnds. the
State shan have the right to withhold payment until such funds
become available, if ever, and shall have the right to reduce or
tminaic Ihe Services under this Agrtemenr immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such reduction or termination.
The State shall not be required to transfer fbodi from any other
account or source to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the
event funds in that Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAVMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and Icrms ofpaymeni
are ittoified and more particularly described m EXHIBIT C
which b incorporated herein by reference.

Page 2

5 2 The payment by the State of the.ponlract price shalTbe the
only and the complete rcunburscment to the Contractor for all

expenses..of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the-
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the coovletc
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State shall
have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract price.
5.3 The State reserves the right to ofTset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement those
liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA 80:7
through RSA 80;7>c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
comrary, end notwithstariding unexpected circumstances, in no
event shall the total ofall payments authorized, or actually made
hereunder. exceed the Price Limitation sel forth in block 1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.
6.1 In connection with the perfonnance of the Services, the
Contractor shalj comply with all a^licable statutes, laws,
regulations, and orders of federal, stale, county or municipal
authorities which impose any obligation or duty upon the
Contractor, including, but not limited to. civil rights and equal
employment opportunity laws. In addition, if this Agreement is
fUnded in any pw by monies of the United States, the Contractor
shall con^ly with all federal executive orders, rules, regulations
and statutes, and with any tuJes, regulations and guidelines as the
State or the United States issue to unplement these regulations.
The Contractor shall also comply with all applicable intelleciual
property laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall not
discriminate against employees or applicants for employment
because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex, handicap, sexual
oricntalion. or national origin and will take afftrmative action to
prevent such discrimination.

6.3. The ConlrKtor agrees lo permit the Sute or United Sutes
access to any of the Contractor's books, records and accounts for
the purpose ofascenaimng compliance %rith all roles, regulations
and orders, and the covenants, term* and conditiora of this
Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all personnel
necessary to perform the Services. Contractor warrants that
•II personnel engaged in the Services shall be qualified to
perform the Services and shall be properly licensed and
otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable laws.
7.2 Unless otherwise authorized In writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months afler the
Completion Datt in block 1.7. the Contractor shall not hire, and
shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it ti engsged in a combined effort lo
perfonn the Services to hire, any person who is a State employee
or official, who is materially involved in the procurement.
of 5 V
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•dminwraiion or perfomunce of thb Agreemenl. This
provision shall survive termination of this Agreement.
7.3 The CoftiJiciing Officer specified in block 1.9. or his or her
successor, shall be the Stale's representtiive. In the event of any
dt^te concerning the interpretaiion of this Agreement the
Coeuraeiing Officer's decision shall be final for the State.

8: EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.
8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall consiiiuic an event of default hercunder CEvcni
of Default"):
8.1.1 Esilure to perform the Servtcea satisfactorily or on
schedule;
8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hercunder, and^or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition of
this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of DcfeuJi, the State may
. lake any one, or more, or all, of the following actions;
8.2.1 give the Contractor a wriiten notice specifying the Event of
Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the absence of
a greater or lesser specification of lime, thirty (30) days from the
date of the notice; and if the Evieni of Default is not timely cured,
lerainate this Agreemeni, cfTective two (2) days after giving the
Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractora written notice specifying the Event of
Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the

.period from the dale of such notice until such time as the State
deterrnines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor.
8.2.3 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
DeCsuli and set off against any other obligations the Sutc may
owe to the Contractor any damages the Slate suffers by reason of
any Event of Defouit; and'or
8.2.4 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
f>fautl. treat the Agreement as brcKhcd. tenninale the
Agrceracni and punue any of its remedies at law or in equity, or
both.

a J. No failure by the Stale to enfotec any provisions hereof after
any Event of Default shall be tlccmed a waiver of its rights with
regard to thai Event of Default, or any subsequent Event of
Default. No express (allure loenforee any Event ofDeiauli shall
be deemed a waiver of the right of the Sute to enforce each and
all of the provisiona hereof upon any further or other Event of
Default on the part of the Contractor.

9. TERMINATION. »

9.1 Notwithstanding pangrtpfa 8. the Sute may, at its sole
discretion, leminate the Agreement for any reason, in whole or
in part, by thirty (30) days written notice to the Conirictdr that
the Slate i.t exercising its option to terminate the Agreement.

9.2 In the event of an early lerminaiibn of this Agreement for
any reason other than the completion of the Services, the
Contractor shall, at the State's discretion, deliver to the

' Contracting Ofncer. not later than fifteen (15) days after the date
of termmaiion, a rcpon ("Tefmlnation Report") describing m
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject matter,
content, and number of copies of the Terminntion Report shall
be identical lo those of any Final Report described in the alucfaed
EXHIBIT a. In addition, at the Slate's discretion, the Contractor
shall, within 15 days of notice of early lerminailoo. develop and
submit to the State o Transnion Plan for aerviccs under the
Agreemenl.

10. DATA/ACCESSATONFrDENTIAUTY/
FRESERVA-nON.
10.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
information and things developed or obuined during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreemenl. inchiding, but not limited to. all studies, rq)orts,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, chins, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic
representitions, computer programs, computer printouu. notes,
letters, memoranda, papers, and documents, all u^ctbcr
finished or unfinished.
10.2 All dau and any property which has been received from
the Sute or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the Sute upon demand or upon termination
of this Agreement for any reason.
10.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91 -A or other existing law. Disclosure of dau requires
prior wrrtieo approval of the State.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In the
paformance of this Agreemem the Contractor is in ail respecu
an independent contractor, and is neither an agem nor an
employee of the Sute. Neither the Contractor nor arty of its
ofiicen. employees, agents or members shall have anthoriiy to
bind the Sute or receive any benefits, workers' compensation or
other emolumenii provided by the Sute to its employees.

12. assicnment/delecation/subcontracts.
12.1 The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written ratice. which
ahall be provided to the State at least fifteen (15) days prior lo
the assignment, and a written consent of the Sute. For purposes
of this paragraph, a Change of Control shall constitute
assignmcol. "Change of Control" means (a) merger,
consolidiiion, or a transaction or series of related transactkms in
which a third pany. together with iu affiiiaics, becomn the
direct or indirecl owner of fifty percent (50%) or owre of the
voting shares or similar equity interests, or combined voting '
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power of the Contractor, or (b) the ule of all or mibstanlialiy all
of the assets of (he Coatractor.
12.2 None of the Servtces shall be subcontracted by the
Contractor without prior written notice and consent of the State.
The State is entitled to copies of all subcontracts and assignment
agreements and xhall not be bound by any provisions contained
in a fubcontraci or an assignment agreement to which it b hot a
parly.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. Unless otherwise cxcn^ied by hw.
the Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless ibc State, its
ollicen and employees, firom and against any and alt cisims.
liabilities and costs for any personal injury or property damages,
patent or copyright infringement, or other claims asserted against
the Sttle, its ofTiceri or employees, which irise out of (or which
may be claimed to arise out oQ the acts or omission of the
Contractor, or aubcontracton, including but not limited to the
negligence, reckless or intentional conduct The Stale shall not
be ti^le for any costs incurred by the Contractor arbiog under
Ihb paragraph 13. Notwiihstanding (he foregoing, nothing herein
contained .shall be deetned to coostiluie a waiver of the sovereign
Immunity of the State, which immuniiy b hereby reserved to the
State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall survive the
termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
continuously maintain in force, and shall require any
subcontractor or assignee to obtain and nuintain in force, the
following irtsurance;
14.1.1 commercial general liability insurance against all (laims
of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts of not
less than SI,000.000 per occurrence and S2.000.000 aggregate
or excess; and
If 1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all property
subject to subparagraph 10.2 herein, in an amount not less than
80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall be
on policy forms and endorsements appro for use in the State
of New Hampshire by the N.H. Dqwrtment of Insurance. ar>d
bsued by insuren licensed in the Sute of New Hampshire.
I4J The Contractor aball ftimbh to the Contracting Officer
idemined in block 1.9. or hu or her successor, a cenificatefs) of
insurance for all insurance required under Ihu Agreement.
Contractor shall also furatsh to the Contracting OfTicer idecuined
In block 1.9. or Us or her successor. certificate(s) of insurance
for all rene W8l(s) of insurance required under ihb Agreement no
tiler than ten (10) days prior to the expiration date of each
iosurance policy. The certlficate(s) of insurance and any
renewab thereofshaJI be attached and are incorporated herein by
reference.

15. WORKERS* COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees) certines
and warrants that the Coniracior is in compliance with or exempt
from, the requiremeni.s of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A ("Workers'
Compensation ").
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the requirements
of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A. Contractor shall maintain, and
require any subcontracior or assignee to secure and maiiuain,
payment of Workers" Compensation in connection with
activities which the person proposes to undertake pursuant to this
Agreement. The Contractor shall furnish the Contracting OfTicer
idcntined in block 1.9. or his or her successor, proof of Workers'
Compensation in the manrKr described in N.H. RSA chapter
281-A and any applicable mnewal(s) thereof, which shall be
attached and are incorporated herein by reference. The Slate
shall not be re^KXtsibie for payment of any Workers'
Compensation premiums or for any other claim or benefll for
Contractor, or any subcontractor or employee of Comraclor,
which might arise under applicable Stale of New Hanq»hire
Workers* Compensation laws in connection with the
performance of the Servtces under this Agreement. .

16. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the time
of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid. In a United States
Post Onice addressed to the parties at the addresses given in
blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

17. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived
or discharge only by an itstniment in writing signed by the
parties hereto and only after approval of such amendment,
waiver or discharge by the Governor and Executive Council of
the Sute of New Hampshire unless no such approval is required
under the circumstances pursuant to Slate law. rule or polky.

18. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM. Thb Agreement shall
be gcvemed. interpreted end construed in accordance with the
laws of the Slate of New Hampshire, and U binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective successore
and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is the wording
chosen by the psrties to express their mutual inlem, and no rule
of construction shall be applied against or in favor of any party.
Any ac tions arising out of this Agreement shall be brought and
maintained in New Hampshire Superior Court which shall have
exclusive jurisdiction ihoeof.

19. CONFLICTING TERMS. In the event of a conflict
between the terms of this P-37 form (as modified in EXHIBIT
A) and/or iiiachmenis and amendment thereof, (he terms of (he
P-37 (as modified in EXHIBIT A) shall control.

20. THIRD Parties. THc parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.
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.2t. HEADINGS. The headings (hroughoui the Agreement are
for reference purposes only, end the words contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, an^lify or aid in the
interpretatiofl, construction or meaning of the provisions of this
Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying
provisions set forth in the attached EXHIBIT A are incorporated
herein by re ferencc.

23. SEVERABIL17*V. In ibeevent anyofthe provisions ofthis
Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdkiion to be
contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining provisions of
this Agreement will remain in full force and effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreerrtcnt. which may be
executed in a number of counterpans, each of which shall be
deemed an original, cortstitutes the entire agreement and
urtderstanding b^ween the parties, and supersedes all prior
Bgreemenis and urtderstandings with respect to the subject matter
hereof.
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

EXHIBIT A

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

1  On or before ihc date set fonh in Block 1.7 of the General Provisions, the Contractor shall deliver to
the State an independent audit of the Contractor's entire agency by a qualified independent auditor in
good standing with the state and federal govcnunent.

1.1 This audit shall be conducted in accordance with the audit requirements of the 2 CFR 200,
Subject P* Audit Requirements.

1.2 This audit report shall inclutic a schedule of revenues and expenditures by contractor or grant
number of all expenditures during the Contractor's fiscal year. The Contractor shall utilize a
competitive bidding process to choose a qualified financial auditor at least every four years.

1.3 The audit report shall include a schedule of prior years questioned costs along with an agency
response to the status of the prior years questioned costs. Copies of all 0MB letters written as
a result of audits shall be forwarded to MIDGE The audit shall be forwarded to NHDOE
within one month of the lime of receipt by the agency, accompanied by an action plan for
each finding or questioned cost.

2  The costs charged under this Agreement shall be determined as allowable under the cost principles
detailed in CFR 200 Subpad E- Cost Principles.

3  Program and financial records pertaining to this Agreement shall be retained by the agency for
3(thrcc) yean from the date of submission of the final expenditure report per 2-CFR 200.333 0
Retention Requirements for Records and until all audit findings have been resolved.

4  No portion of the funds paid under this Agrcancnl may be used for Ihc purpose of obtaining additional
Federal funds under any taw of the United Slates, except is authorized under the law.

5  CLOSE OUT OF CONTRACT All final required reports and reimborsemcni requests shall be submitted
to the State within thirty (30) days of (he completion date (Agreement Block 1.7).

6  The Dcparunent reserves the righl to extend this agreement for up to lwo(2) additional years, contingent
upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, written agreement of the parties and approval of
the Governor and Executive Council.

7  Paragraph 4 of the General Provisions is replaced as follows;

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreoncni to the contrary, all obligations of the State,
hereunder, including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or In pert, under this
Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds, including any
subsequeof changes to the appropriation or availability of ftinds affected by any state or federal
legislative or executive action dial reduces, eliminates or otherwise modifies the appropriation or
availability of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of Services provided in Exhibit B, Sco^ of
Services, in whole or in part. In no event shall the State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess
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of tppropnat«d or available funds. In the event of a reduction, tennination or modirtcation of
appropriated or available funds, the State shall have the right to withhold payment until such fUods
become available, if ever. The State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under
this Agreement immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, tennination or
modification. The State shall not be required to transfer funds frotn any other source or account into
the Aocount(s) idenlined in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account Number. Or any other
account in the event hinds are reduced or unavailable.

8  Amend paragraph 9.2 of the General Provisions by deleting the sentence: "The forni, subject maita,
content, and number of copies of the Termination Report shall be identical to those ofany Final
Report described in Exhibit B."

9  Amend paragraph 9 of the General Provisions by adding the following subporagraphs:

9.3 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early termination,
develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the Agreement, including but not
limited to. identifying the present and future needs of clients receiving services under the Agreement and
establishes a process to n>eet those needs.

9.4 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed infonnation
to supptm the Transition Plan, including but not limited to. any information or data requested by the State
related lb the lermmaiion of the Agreement and Transilipn Plan and shall provide ongoing communication
and revisions of the Transition Plan to the Slate as requested.

9.5 In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving services
undw the^Agrecment are transitioned to having services delivered by another entity including contracted
providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for uninicrruptcd delivery of services in the
transition Plan.

9.6 The Contractor shall establish s method of notifying clients and other affected individuals about the
transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its Transition Plan submiiied to
the Slate as described above.
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NEW HAMPSH IRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

EXHIBITS

SCOPE OF SERVICES

The Contnctor asrees (o provide Senior Energy Auiaiance Services (o qualified low>incoine individuals
and agrees to perform all such services and other work neccssaiy to operate the program in accordance
with (he principles and objectives set forth in the Fuel Assistance Program Proc^ures manual and (he
other guidance as detennined by the New Hampshire Department of Energy (NHDOE).

Senior Energy Assistance Services (SEAS) will be defined to include the following categories:

1  CXilrcach, eliglbUily determination, and certification of SEAS applicants.

2  Payments directly to energy vendon:
A Reimbursement for goods and services delivered.

3  Emergency Assistance in (he form of reimbursemeni for gtxxls <x services.

SNKS SEAS3J
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

EXHIBIT C

PAYMENT TERMS

In consideration of the satbfactory performance of ihc services as determined by (he State, the State agrees to
pay over to the Contractor the sum of $34,968.00 (which hereinafter U referred to as the **fuitds*^)

The following funds will be authori2ed:

$34,968.00 for Senior Energy Assistance Services (SEAS)

The dates for (his contract are upon Governor and Executive Council approval through September 30,2025.

Approval to obligate the above-awarded funds will be provided in writing by the New Hampshire Department
of Energy to (he Contractor. Reimbursements will be made to the Contractor only after written documentation
of cash needed is submitted to the Slate. Disbui^emeni of these funds shall be in accordarvce with procedures
established by the State.
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT D

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act ori988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C.
701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1. 12 of
the General Provisions, execute the following Certification:

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS
ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE-CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF LABOR

US DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the [>njg-Frec Workplace
Aclof 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 ct seq.); TheJanuary 31. 1989 regulations were
amended and published as Part II of the May 25, 1990 Federal Register (pages 21681-21691), and require
certification by grantees (and by inference sub-graiilees and sub-contractors) prior to award that they will
maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference
sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a slate may elect to make one certification to the Department in each
fcdaal fiscal year in lieli of certificates for each grant during (he federal Hscal year covered by the certification.
The certificate sel out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the Agency
awards the grant. False certifjcalion or violation of the certiftcalion shall be grounds for suspension of payments,
suspension or termination of grants, or government-wide suspension or debarmeni. Contractors using this form
should serul it to:

Fuel Assistance Administrator, New Hampshire Department of Energy,
21 So. Fruit St.. Stc. 10, Concord. NH 03301

(A) The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:

(a) Publishing a statement notifying employees (hat the unlawlul tnanufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession of or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's workplace
and specifying the actions (hat will be taken against employees for violation of such prohibition;

(b) Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about

(1) (he dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
(2) the grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
(3) any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
(4) (he penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations occurring in

the workplace.

(c) Making it a requirement (hat each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be
given a copy of (he statement required by paragraph (a);

(d) Notifying (he employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the grant, the employee will

(I) abide by the terms of the statement; and

P37 Exhibits D thru H
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CERTinCATtON REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS
ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS, cool*d

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION • CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF LABOR

US DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

(2) notify Iheen^oyer in writing ofhis or ber conviction for a vtolauoQ of a crimin*! drug
statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such conviction.

(e) Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subpartgr^b (dX2) from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Em^yers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every gram
ofH^ on whose part activity the convicted employee was working, unless the federal agency
has designated a centra) potni for the receipt of such tiotices. Notice shall include the
identiftcation number^t) of each affected grant:

(f) Taking one of the following actions, within 30 caleiular days of receiving notice under \
subparagraph (dX2). with respect to any employee who is so convicled:

(1) Taking appropriate personnel action against tttch an employee, up to and inchtding
tenninatioo, consistent with the requirements of the Rdiabilitation Act of 1973, as
amcoded;or

(2) Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabtihation program approved for such purposes by a federal, sute. or local health, law
enforcement, or other appropriate agency.

(g) Making a good fahh effort to continue to maintain a drug^free workplace through implementBtitm
of paragraphs (a), (b), (c), (d). (c), and (0-

(B) The grantee may insol In (he space provided below the site(s) for the perfonnancc of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, xip code) (list each location)

Check Q if there are woricplaces on file that are not identified here.

Southern New Hampshire Servicea September 21.2022 to September 30.2025

Contractor Name Period covered by this Certification

Donrtalee lozeau. Chief Executive Officer

Name and Title of Authoriied Contractor Represeruative

Representative Si Date

e
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT E

The CoGtractor tdencified in Section 1J of (he General Proviiions agrees to comply wiih the provbioos of Section
3l9orPublic Law 101-121, Oovemment wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and 31 U.S.C. 1352,
and turthcr agrees to have.the Contractor's representative, as identined in Sections 1.11 end 1.13 of the General
Provisions, execute the following Certification:

CERTinCATION REGARDING LOBBYING

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUM AN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION • CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF LABOR

US DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

Programs (indicate ̂ rplicable prognn) covered):
SEAS

Contract Period: September 21.2022 to September 30.2025

The undersigned certifies to the best of his or her knowledge and belief that:

<I) No federal apprcipi rated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the tmderslgned, to any
person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a member of
Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in connection
with (he awarding of any federal contract, continuation, rmewal, amendment, or modification of any
federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreernent (and by q>ecirtc mention sub-grantee or tub-
contractor).

(2) If any funds other than federal appropnated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influent an officer or employee of any ageocy, a member of Congress, an
ofTiccr or employee of Congrest, or an employee of a member of Congras in conncctkm with (his federal
contract, grera, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by spectfic mention sub-grantee or sub-contractor),
the undenigned Biall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, ̂Disclosure Form to Repon LoMiying"
in accordance with hi Irtstructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-1.

(3) The undersigned ̂ 11 require that the language of this certifieation be included in the award document for
sub-awards at all tien (including lubcontraas. tub-grams, and contracts under grants, loans, and
cotycrative agreements) and that all sub-cecipiems shall cenify and disclose accordingly.

This certification it a material reprtsentation of fKi upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was
made or entered into. Submission of this eertiftcation is a prerequisite for making or entering imo this transaction
imposed V Section 1352,TitleJl. U.S. Code. Any person who fkJU lo file the required certification shall be
s\d>ject tof civil penal^ of nofless than $10,000 and not more than SIOO.OOO for each such fidlure.

Chief Executive Officef
tractor Representati^ Signature CcmMor's Representative Title

Southern New Hampshire Servicea ■
Contractor Name Diie
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT F

•

The Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment, Suspension,
and Other Responsibility Matters, and (udhcr agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as idcnlified in
Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, execute the following Certification:

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER
RESPONSmiLITV MATTERS - PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

Instructions for Certification

(1) By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the ■
certification set out below.

(2) The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial of
participation in this covered transaction. If necessary,Jhc prospective participant shall submit an explanation
of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be considered in connection
with the NH DOE's determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective
primary participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation
in this transaction.

(3) The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when NH
DOE determined to enter into this transaction, if it is later determined that the prospective primary
pahicipant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies available to the
federal government, NH DOE may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

(4) The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the NH DOE agency to whom
this proposal (contract) is submitted ifal any time the prospective primary participant Icams that its
certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed circumstances.

(5) The terms "covered transaction," "debarred," "suspended." "ineligible," "lower tier covered transaction,"
"participant," "person." "primary covered transaction." "principal." "proposal," and "voluntarily excluded,"
as used In this clause, have (he meanings set out in the Definitions and Coverage sections of the rules
implementing Executive Order 12549; 45 CFR Part 76. See the attached definitions.

(6) The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that should the proposed
covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered transaction with
a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this
covered Iransaction, unless authorized by NH DOE.

(7) The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the clause
tilled 'Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion • Lower Tier
Covered Transactions," provided by NHDOE, without nrodificalion, in all lower tier covered transactions
and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

(8) A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a lower tier
covered transaction (hat it is rx)t debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded from the covered
transaction, unless tl knows that thecertincaiion is erroneous. A participant may decide the method and
frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each participant may, but is not required to,
check the Non*procuremenl List (of excluded panics).

(9) Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records in order
to render in good faith the certification required by (his clause. The knowledge and information of a
participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary
course of business dealings.

(10) Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, ifa participant in a covered
transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is suspended, debarred,
ineligible, or voluntarily excluded fmm participation in this iransaction. in addition to other remedies
available to the federal government, NH DOE may terminate this transaction for cause or default.
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMCNT, SUSPENSION. AND OTHER
RESPONSreiLITY MATTERS - PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS, cont'd

Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, and Other
RespcnsiMity Matters-Priina/y Covered Transactions

(1) The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, (hat it and its
principals:

(a) are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily
excluded from covered transactions by any federal department or agency;

(b) have not within a three-year period preceding (his proposal (contract) been convicted of or had a
civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or for a criminal olTense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (federal, state or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust statutes
or commission of cmbezzlemenl, iheh, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records,

<  making false statements, or receiving stolen property;
I
/

(c) arc not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(federal, state or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (I) (b) of
this certification; and

(d) have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
(federal, state or local) transactions tenninaied for cause or default.

(2) Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in (his certification.
such prospective participant shall attach an explanation (o this proposal (contract).

Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibitity and
Voluntary Exclusion • Lower Tier Covered Transactions

(To Be Supplied to Lower Tier Participantsf

By signing and submitting this lower, tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as defined in
45 CFR Part 76. certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief (hat it and its principals:

(a) are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily
excluded from participation in this transaciion by any federal department or agency.

(b) where (he prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such
prospective panicipam shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will irtclude this
clause entitled "Ortification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and Voluntary Exclusion - Lower /
Tiei Covered Transactions,** without modincation in all lower tier-covered transactions and in all solicitations for
lowv (ier<overed transactions.

(]
ContratiorRepre^ttative Signature

Southern New Hampshire Services

Chief Executive OfTicer

Contractor's Representative Title

Contractor Name Dale

S£AS210INHOASS
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT G

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT COMPLIANCE

The Contractor identified in Section i .3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
reprcserUative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of (he General Provisions, to execute the following
certification: '

By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to
comply with all applicable provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Aa of 1990.

Contractor R

Chief Executive Ofliccr

alive Signature Contractor's Representative Title

Southern New Hampshire Services /HM/c
Contractor Name Dale.
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT H

CERTIFICATION

Public Uw 103-227, Part C
ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

In accordance with Part C of Public Law 103-227, the "Pro-Children Act of 1994", smoking may not be permitted
in any portion of any indoor facility owned or regularly used for the provision of health, day care, education, or
library services to children under the age of 18. if the services arc funded by federal programs either directly or
through state or local governments. Federal programs include grants, cooperative agreements, loans and loan
guaramtees, and contracts. The law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities
funded solely by Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions or facilities used for inpaiient drug or alcohol
ireatmertl.

The above language must be included in any sub-awards that contain provisions for children's services and that
all sub-grantccs shall certify compliance accordingly. Failure to comply with the provisions of this law may result
in the imposition of a civil monetary penally of up to SI .000 per day.

Chief Ejrecutive Officer

Contractor Repres«tative Signature Contractor's Representative Title

Southem New Hampshire Services ■

Contractor Name Date
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EXAMFLEONLY

APPROVAL TO OBUOATE

FUEL ASSISTANCE PROGRAM

STATE

First S/3(V2022 AOMIN. FA PROGRAM SEAS ASSURANCE 16

Ejiblblt I

TOTAL

[CONTRACTED BUDGET 538^20.00 5,648.370.00 62,200.00 357.200.00 6,623,9904)0

EXPECTED BUDGET

PREVIOUSLY OeUGATEO '
0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00 .

0.00

0.00

0.00

[THIS APPROVAL TO OBLIGATE 0.00 0.00 ODO 0.00 1,165,5514)0

TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBUOATE
NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBLIGATE

0.00

536^20.00
1.165.55V00

4,450.819.00
0.00

82,200.00

0.00

357,200.00

1.165.551.00

5,456,439.00

BMCA

Fkst 8GCV2022 ADMIN. FA PROGRAM SEAS ASSURANCE16 TOTAL

[CONTRACTED BUDGET 06,663.00 1,003,966.00 12,905.00 69,960.00 1,182,1144)0 1
EXPECTED BUDGET

PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED 0.00 o.w 0.00 0.00

0.00

0.00

[THIS APPROVAL TO OBUGATE 0.00 207,112.00 0.00 0.00 207,112.00 [
TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE

NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBUGATE

0.00

95.663.00

207.112.00

796.474.00

0.00

12,905.00

0.00

69.960.00

207.112.00

975,002.00

SNHS

First 000/2022 ADMIN. FA PROGRAM SEAS ASSURANCE 16 TOTAL
[CONTRACTED BUDGET 183,777.00 1.718,152.00 34,968.00 64,2204)0 2,001,117.00

EXPECTED BUDGET

PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00

0;00

[THIS APPROVAL TO OBUGATE 0.00 354,578.00 0.00 0.00 354,578.00 j
TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE

NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBUOATE

0.00

163.777.00

354,576.00

1,363.574,00

0.00

34,966.00

0.00

84,220.00

354.576.00

1.646,539.00

SCS

FlrstO/30/2022 ADMIN. FA PROGRAM SEAS ASSURANCE 16 TOTAL

(CONTRACTED BUDGET •3,635.00 879.501.00 11,621.00 64,960,00 1,040.117.00 1
EXPECTED BUDGET

PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00

0.00

[THIS APPROVAL TO OBUOATE 0.00 181,504.00 0.00 0.00 1814104.00 1
TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBUGATE

NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBLIGATE

>  0.00

•3,639.00

161,504.00

697,997.00

0.00

11,821.00

0.00

64,960.00

181,504.00
858,613.00

CAPSO

First 9G0/2022 ADMIN. FA PROGRAM SEAS ASSURANCE 16 TOTAL

[CONTRACTED BUDGET 54,676.00 973,593.00 7,003.00 55,110.00 690,382.00 1
EXPECTED BUDGET

PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00

0.00

[THIS APPROVAL TO OBUOATE 0.00 118,373.00 0.00 0.00 118,373.00 [ ■

TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBUGATE

NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBUOATE

0.00

54,676.00

118,373.00

455,220.00

.  0.00

7,0034)0
0.00

55,110.00
118,373.00

573.009.00

TCCA

First 9G0/2022 ADMIN. FA PROGRAM SEAS ASSURANCE 16 TOTAL

1 CONTRACTED BUDGET 140,269.00 1.471,538.00 19,503.00 82,990.00 1.710,260.00 1
EXPECTED BUDGET

PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00

0.00

[THIS APPROVAL TO OBUOATE 0.00 303,964.00 0.00 0.00 303,984.00 1

TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBUGATE

NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBUGATE

0.00

140,269.00
303.964.00

1,167.594.00

0.00

15,903.00
0.00

62,990.00
303,964.00

1,406,276.00

SEAS2lOiNHOASS

CFDAi93.044

P37£U^I
Ceatneior Iniiuls .KV*



NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY •

STANDARD EXHIBIT J

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY
AND TRANSPARENCY ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accounlabiiily and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of
individual federal grants equal to or greater than S25.000 and awarded on or afler October I. 2010. to
report on data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of S25.000 or more.
If the initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modiftcations result in a total awanl equal to or
over S25.0(X). the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements as of the date of the award.

In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporiing Sub^^-ard and Executive Compensation Information),
the New Han^shire Department of Energy must report the following information for any sub-award or
contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:

1) Name of entity
2) Amount of award

3) Funding agency
4) NAICScodc forconlracts/CFDA programnumbcr for grants
5) Program source
6) Award title descriptive of the purposeofihc funding action
7) Location of the entity
8) Principal place of performance
9) Uniqueidentifieroftheeniity(UE{ I/)
10) Total compensation and names of the top Eve executives if:

a. More than 80% of annual ̂ ss revenues are from the Federal government and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually, and

b. Condensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipiertts must submit FFATA-required data by the crKi of (he nK>nth plus 30 days in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Furulmg Accountability and Transparency Act. Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-

252. and 2 CFR Part 170 {Reporting SiifMtward and Executive Compensation Information), arul further
agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections I.I I and 1.12 of the General

Provisiofu, execute the following Certification:

The below named ContriKtor agrees to provide needed inforTTtation as outlined above to the New
Harapshire Department of Energy and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal Financial
Acckintability and Transparency Act.aoilityand iransparenc}

/ida
or Representatip Signal

Donnalee Lozeau, Chief Executive Officer

ctor Representatip Signature) (Authorized Contractor Representative Name & Title)

V
Contractor Initials

D»ie /9 I9
Page 1 of 2
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT J

FORM A

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The Unique Bnlity Identifier (UEI) number for your entity is:
HLNreCYDGVM3

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans,
grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) S2S,000,000 or more in annual gross revenues
from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, sub-^nls, and/or cooperative agreements?

NO ' JC YES

If the answer to HZ above is NO, stop here.

If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the followiDg:

3. Does (he public have access to information about the compensation of the executives In your business
or organization through periodic repoits filed under section 13(a) or) S(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Inicmal Revenue Code of 1986? .

_N0 YES

If tbc answer to 03 above is YES, stop here.

If the answer to 03 above is NO, please answer tbc foilowing:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as foUows:

.  Name: Amount:

Name: Amount:

Name: Amount:

Name: Amount:

Name: Amount:

Co«tr»clor tniliab

PaseZofZ
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state of New Hampshire

Department of State

/

CERTIFICATE

I. David M. ScanUm. Secretar>-ofSiue ofihe SiaieofNcwHampshire.do h*reb> ccrti(>' ihoi SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE

SERVICES INC. is a New Hampshire Nonproni Corpoaiicn regtucred lo iransaci business in Nc\v Hampshire on Mo>- 28. I96S.

I further cenift' thai all fees and documcms required b> ihc Secreur>- of Slate's office have been received and is In good standing

as (ar OS this office 'is concerned.

Buslrtcss ID: 65506

Ceitincaie Number 000S7SS694

s

$%

la.

o "B
6^

A
fa

IN TESTIMONV WHEREOF.

I hereto sei my hand and cause to be aflixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 11th day of April A.D. 2022.

David M. Scanlan

Secreiarv of State



CERTinCATE OF VOTES

(Corporate Authority)

I. OryiWc Kerr. Cicrtc/Secretary of Somhem New Hampshire Services. Inc.
(Name) ' (Corpor«ion name)

(Hereiaafter the **CoiponUion"). a New Hamoshire cofDoration. herd>y certify that (1) I am the duly
(State)

elected and acting Clerk/Secretary of the Corporation; (2) I maintain and have custody and am familiar with the
minute books of the Corporation; (3) I am duly authorized (o issue certificates with respect to the contents of such
books; (4) that the Board of Directors of the Cwporation have authorized, on September 2r 2021. such authority

<  • . (D««)
to be in force and effect until 36. Slops' ■

(Contract teminattcfl date)

The person(s) holding the below listed positjoo(s) are authorized to execute and deliver on behalf of the
Coiporation any contract or other instrument for the sale of products and services:

r

Donnal«LoKaw Exwrnivt Pirwtor
(Name) (Prailtoa)

Rvan Clouthier Deoutv Djrector
(Name) (Positioo)

James Chaisson Olef Fiscal Officer
(NaiiM) (Petition)

(5) The meeting of the Board of Directors was held in accordance with New Hampshire
(State of incotporation)

law and the by-laws of the Corporation; and (6) said authorization has not been modified, amended or rescinded
and continues in full force and effect aa of the date hereof.

[N WnNESS WHEREOF. I have hereunto set my hand as the Clerk/Sccretary of the corporaUon this

/? davof - .20J^ ■ . -r'

STATE OF New Hampshire

Z
lerk/Secretaiy

COUNTYOF Hillffaorough

On this day of , 20 <5^ before me,
the undersigned Officer, personally qipeared Qrville Kerr who acknowledged hcr/himscIf to be
the SfiCIflaa of Southern New Hampshire Services. Inc. a corporation and that she/he
aa such Secretary being authorized to do so, executed the foregoing instrument for the purposes therein
contained.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto set my hand and ofiicial seal.

Notary Public/Justice of the Peace
Commission Expiration Date:

OEBRA 0. STOKRER
Notary PubQc • New Hampshim

My CommMon Expims Octotrar 7,2025



A^C^cf CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE OAfi paaoorrwY)

03/21/2022

TMS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERT1FICATC DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE P0UCIE8

.BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISBUINQ INSURER(8). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER. AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If th« CBiUflcatt holdof H an AOOmONAL INSURED, th« pollcy(iM) must havs AOOmONAL INSURED provisions or ba andorsod.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, aubfact to tha tarms and conditions of iha policy, caitatn polldai may raquirt an andorsamant A atatamant on.
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iDdependent AadUor^s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Andit of Financial

Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

To the Board of Directors
Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and Affiliate

Wc have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the combined financial statements of Southern
New Hampshire Services, Inc. (the Organization) and affiliate, which comprise the combined statement
of financial position as of July 31, 2021, and the related combined statements of activities, functional
expenses and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the combined firuincial
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated March 3,2022.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the combined financial statements, wc considered the
Organizations* intemal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the
combined financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Organizations* intemal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the cfTcclivcncss of
the Organizations* intemal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control docs not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
delect ar>d correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness Is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in intemal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the Organizations* combined financial statements will not be prevented or detected and
corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
intemal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by
those charged with governance.

Our consideration of intemal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in intemal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit wc did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that wc consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

ill! Lisbon Street • Lewbion, Maine04240 • Telephone: (207) 786-0328 . FAX: (207) 783-9377 . w'>vw.oacpa$.nel



Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and
afTiliate's combined financial statements arc free from material misstatemcnt, we performed tests of
their compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements,
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial
statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests
disclosed , no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
CovernmenI A uditing Standards.

Purpose of thb Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Organizations* internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Organizations' internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is twi suitable for any other purpose.

OtteOirtu ̂ A^sociaUSf
Certified Public Accountants

March 3,2022
Lewiston, Maine ^
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Independent Auditor's Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and on
Internal Control over Compliance and Schedule of Expenditures of

Federal Awards Required by the Uniform Guidance

T0 the Board of Directors

Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and Afniiatc

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Southern New Hampshire Services. Inc. (the Organization) and afHiiate's compliance
with the types of compliance requirements described in the 0MB Compliance Supplement that could
have a direct and material effect on each of Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and afTiliate's major
federal programs for the year ended July 31. 2021. Southern New Hampshire Services, inc. and
affiliate's major federal programs are identified ini the summary of auditor's results section of the
accompanying schedule of Findings and questioned costs.

Managemen1*s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and
conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Southern New Hampshire
Services. Inc. and afTiliate's major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance
requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America: the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States;
and the audit ̂ requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform
Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether nonccmpliance with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and
affiliate's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances.

We believe (hat our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Southern New
Hampshire Services, Inc. and afFiiiatc's compliance.
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and affiliate complied, in all material respects,
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material cfTcci
on each of its major federal programs forthe year ended July 31.2021.

Report CD iDternal Control over Compliaace

Managemem of Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and affiliate is responsible for establishing and
maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered Southern New
Hampshire Services, Inc. and affiliate's internal control over compliance with the types of requirements
that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
compliance for each major federal program and to lest and report on intcmal control over compii^ce in
accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not e.xpress an opinion on the
effectiveness of Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and affiliate's intcmal control over compliance.

A deficiency in infernai control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, nbncompliancc with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in Internal control over compliance, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that material noncompliancc with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
over compliance with a type of compliance rcquircmcni of a federal program that is less severe than a
material weakness in intcmal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those
charged with governance.

Our consideration of intcmal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any
deficiencies in inlemal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined
above. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of intcmal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of
the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.



Report on Schedule of Expeoditures of Federal Av^ardx Required by Uoiform Gutdaoce

We have audited (he combined financial statements of Southern -New Hampshire Services, Inc. and
affiliate as of and for the year ended July 31. 2021, and have issued our report thereon dated March 3,
2022, which contained an unmodified opinion on those combined financial statements. Our audit was
conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on (he combined financial statements as a whole. The
accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional
analysis as required by the Uniform Guidance and is not a required part of the combined financial
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates
directly to (he underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the combined financial
statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
combined financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling
such infomiation directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the combined
financial statements or to (he combined financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our
opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated in all material respects in relation
to the combined financial statements as a whole.

OwSetU ̂JissodaUi, ̂JL
Certified Public Accountants

March 3,2022
Lewiston, Maine
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERXL AWARDS

YEAR ENDED JULY 31, 2021'

NOTE I: BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule) includes the
federal award activity of Southern New Hampshire Services. Inc. and afftliatc under
programs of the federal government for the year ended July 31. 2021. The information in this
Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Co.r/ Principles, and Audit

Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only
a selected portion of the operations of Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and affiliate,
it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net assets, or cash
flows of Southern New Hampshire Services, inc. and affiliate.

NOTE 2: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such
ex{xnditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance
wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.

Pass-through entity identifying numbers are presented where available.

NOTE 3: HEAD START PROGRAMS CFDA #93.600

Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, the Organization was unable to meet its matching
requirements in accordance with terms of the grant award. The Organization received a
waiver from the Department of Health and Human Services due to the pandemic to remain in
compliance with the grant award during the year ended July 31, 2021.

NOTE 4: INDIRECT COST RATE

Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and affiliate has negotiated an indirect cost rate of
9.50% with the Department of Health and Human Services.
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

•  YEAR ENDED JULY 31.2021 ^

Sectloa 1 ̂ Summary of Auditor*^ Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report issued:

Internal control over nnancial reporting:
Material weakness(es) identified?

Significant denciency(lcs) identified?

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?

Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs:
Material weakness(cs) identified? .

Significant deficiency(ies) identified?

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance
for major programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required
to be rcDortcd in accordance with CFR Section
200,15o(a) of the Uniform Guidance?

IdenCificatioD of major programs:

Name of Federal Program or Cluster

Coronavirus Relief Fund

Emergency Rental Assistance Program
WlOA Cluster

CCDF Cluster

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
Type A and Type B programs:

V  No

V  None rep

Unmodified

Yes V  No

CFDA Number

21.019

21.023

17.258/17.278

93.575/93.596

SI.5 88.881

orted

Auditcc qualified as low-risk auditee? Yes

Section II Financial Statement Findings

No matters are reporlablc.

Section III Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

No matters are reportable.

No

10
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OUELLETTE & ASSOCIATES, P.A.
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
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INDEPENDENTAUD/rOR S REPORT

To the Board of Directors of

Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and Affiliate ^
Manchester, New Hampshire

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying combined financial statements of Southern New Hampshire Services,
Inc. (a nonprofit organization) and affiliate, which comprise the combined statements of financial position
as of July 31, 2021 and 2020, and the related combined statements of activities, functional expenses, and
cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the combined financial statements.

Management's ResponsibiUtyfor the Financial Statements
s

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these combined financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatcmcnt, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility ^

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these combined financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits In accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards.
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that wc plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the combined financial statements arc free from
material misstatemenL

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
combined financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment. Including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatemeni of the combined financial sutemcnts, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
Organizations' preparation and fair presentation of the combined financial statements in order to design
audit procedures that arc appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Organizations' internal control. Accordingly, wc express no such opinion. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used, and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
combined financial statements.

Wc believe that the audit evidence wc have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

nil LisbonStreci. Lcwiston, MaineO4240 • Telephone:(207) 78<)-0328 • FAX:(207) 783-9377 »\v\vw.oacpas.net



Opinion

In our opinion, the combined financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and afHliaic as of July 31, 2021 and 2020,
and the changes in their net assets and their cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

I  .

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 3,
2022, on our consideration of Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and afTiliaic's internal control
over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the
scope of our testing of inlema) control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the cfTectivcness of Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc.
and affiliate's intemal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part
of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Southern New
Hampshire Services, Inc. and affiliate's intemal control over financial reporting and compliance.

OutUktU ̂ AssocuOes,
Certified Public Accountants

March 3,2022

Lewiston, Maine



SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

COMBINED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

JULY 31. 2021 AND 2020

ASSETS

2021. 2070

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash

Investments

Grants receivable

Accounts receivable

Prepaid expenses

S 8,496,942

10,396,716

3,451,639

778,610

136,692

$ 6.456,196

9,102,421

3,346,435

721.595

159,842

Total current assets 23,260.599 19.786.489

FIXED ASSETS

Land

Buildings and improvements
Vehicles and equipment

3,045,918

13365,316

1375,022

3.050,918

13.310.566

1,501,951

Tptal fixed assets
Less • accumulated depreciation

18.186356

6304,453

17,863.435

5,729,951

Net fixed assets U.981.803 12,133,484

OTHER ASSETS

. Restricted cash 468376 457,683

TOTAL ASSETS S 35,710,678 S 32.377.656

LIABJUTIES Am NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Current portion of long-term debt

Accounts payable >
Accrued payroll and payroll ta.xes

Accrued compensated absences

Accrued other liabilities

Refundable advances

Over applied overhead
Tenant security deposits

s 79,998

691,695

1,187344

424,497

63.446

1,424,138

179.676

89,232

%

j

100,012

729,100

1,089,681

470.301

53.011

336,800

.  180,479

83,030

Total current liabilities 4,140,026 3,042.414

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Long-term debt, less current p^ion 2,878316 2,949,253

TOTAL LIABILITIES 7,018342 5.991,667

NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS 28,692,436 26.385,989

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS ^ $ 35,710,678 % 32.377,656

See independent auditot's report and accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

COMBINED STATEM ENTS OF ACT! VITIES

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JULY 31. 2021 AND 2020

1
2021 2020

REVENUES, CAINS AND OTHER SUPPORT
Gram revenue S 57,659302 S 38,244,769

Program service fees 822,662 796.505
~ Local funding 193,876 244,926
Rental income 1,227,156 1.191,263
Glf^s and other contributions 301,421 201,839
Interest and dividend income 228,980 302,600
Unrealized gain on investments 1,066,602 398,423

Miscellaneous 744.238 462,291

TOTAL REVENUES, GAINS AND OTHER SUPPORT 62344,237 41.842.616

EXPENSES

Program services:

Child development 9,606,743 9.330.031
Community services 1363,706 1,505,420
Economic and workforce development 5,786,299 7,4501261
Energy 10,666,407 12,651,510
Language and literacy 302,502 430,934

Housing and homeless 13360337 490,824
Nutrition and health 2,111360 2,307,558
Special projects 2316,753 1,876,426

Volunteer services 112310 127,449

SNHS Management Corporation 2367,679 2,447,708

Total program services 57,993306 38,618,121

Support services:

Management and general 1,943,894 1,876,897

TOTAL EXPENSES 59,937,790 40,495.018

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 2306,447 1347,598

NET ASSETS - BEGINNING OF YEAR 26,385.989 25,038,391

NET ASSETS - END OF YEAR S 28,692,436 $ 26385,989

See independent auditor's report and accompanying notes to the financial staiements.
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SOLm IKRN NliW I lAMPSI IIRH SRRVJOiS. INC. AND AFFILlATls

COMBINHO STKWJMmr 01' FUNCIIONAL EXPI^SKS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31. 2021

Program Scn'iccs

Child

Development

Community

Services

(icoftomic

Workforce

Development Encrgj-

Ljinguage and

Literac)-
1 lousing

and Homeless

Nutrition

and

1 Icalth

EXPENSES

Payroll $  5.475.948 J  797.163 S  2.740.989 S  (.286.379 S  204.412 $  725^85 S  912,550

Payroll ta.xc$ 409.962 59.844 204.551 97,778 15.619 54.970 68,761

Fringe benefits 1.677.891 I3p64 623.172 382.294 23.750 112.040 242.8U

Workers comp. irtsursncc (27.833 9.424 6.924 11.934 6.245 2,469 27.215

Rctiremcnl bcnclits 375.917 69.893 194.325 96.055 8.755 16.206 74.893

Consultant and conirBciual 72.997 85.282 695.516 970J(7 80! 238.467 9.785

Travel and Ireasportaiion 35,627 3.264 13.780 15.(13 - 1.045 9.210

Conferences and meetings - 7.250 - 2,245 . -
1,914

Occupancy 569.678 136.788 540.570 . 123.460 24.409 23,349 49.916

Advertising 574 640 800 2.418 - 600 .384

.Supplies 286.505 32.374 12.180 61.729 7.224 53.747 25.794

E<|uip. rentals and maintenanec 2.430 478 _ (4.5151 16.962 3.495 2.579 8.745

insurance 22.375 28.204 9.341 27.769 - 527 3.822

Telephone 80.815 21.885 32.839 36.030 2.712 14.294 55.657

Postage 3..36R 40 1.150 27.045 417 6.622 1.931

Printing and publications 40 ' - 6.DI2 1.156 - -

Subscriptions - - - 570 - - -

Program support -
181,694

■
59.109 • ■ -

Interest 9.335 - - - • • •  •

Depreciation (29.615 6.3IX) 42.909 5.276 ^ 1.266 • 13.187

Assistance to clients 234,976 3.992 676.974 7.518.979 22.107,876 393.992

Other e.\pcn.sc 167.824 - 10.872 2.937 - 300 224.649

Mi.sccllancous 37.305 1.39! 915 1.424 2J41 830 1.905

In-kind 1.203.823 - • - - - -

Crain on disposal ofassets - - - - - - -

SUBTOTAL

Over ipftlied indirect costs

EBmlnations

TOTAL EXPCNSCS

10.924^33

(U18«095)

I^JTO

(220W)

5303^2

(16^3)

10.751335 302302

(85323)

23361306

(869)

2,127,132

(15,872)
$  9,606.743 $ 1363,706 S 5,786399 $ 10366,407 S 302302 S 23360^37 $ 2,1(1360

Sec indepcoOcnt auditor's report and accompanying notes to the nnafKial statements.
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SOUTHORN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES. INC. AND AFFILIATE
COMBINED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES (Conlinucd)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31. 2021

Program Senriccit
Support

EXPENSES

Payroll

Payroll laxcj •

Frif^c benefits

Worters comp. insurance

Retirtmeni benents

Consuliani aitd contractual

Travel and transportatinn

Conferences and meetings
Occupancy

Advefiising

Supplies

Equip, rentals and maintenance

Insurance

Telephone

Postage

Priming and puhlkaiions

Subscriptions

Program support

interest

Depreciation

Assistance to clients

Other expense

Miscellaneous

lr>-4cind

Gain on disposal of assets

SUBTOTAL

Over applied tfldiretf costs

EUmhialloes

TOTAL EXPENSES

SNHS Management
Special VoluntCCT Management Total Program and

Projects Services Corporation .Services General Total Expenses

S  84.906 $  60.715 $  579.614 S 12367.96! $  l.290.9*)l S 14.158,952

6.517 4.220 45.415 967337 94,236 1.061373
6.176 17.742 223.039 3347390 183,099 3330389

1,770 157 10,661 204.632 7,679 2I23M
6.118 5.2r7 43.318 890.667 121,520 1,012.187

2.122.049 2,780 129,628 4327.622 106,077 4333399
I.I4I 1.973 33.587 114,740 4.283 119,023
1.454 50 14.412 27325 1.025 28350

15.201
- 641.741 1,125.112 44.864 2,169.976

- 1,766 3.232 10314 25 10,439
593 6.819 ' 21.240 508,205 58.39.1 566398

2.645 41 8,933 41,793 1.457 43350

3.636 1.762 55.107 . 151343 10.161 161,704

3.079 2.6.t3 26.997 276,941 6.779 283,720

• 605 1.470 42348 13.123 55.771

- • - - 7308 - 7308

• 900 630 2.100 - 2.100

560 ' - 45.948 287311 . 287311

• - 51.209 60344 60344

60.19!
• 405.478 664322 2.670 666392

2.101
■ 24..342 ■ 30,963332 - 30.963332

• • 7..t06 413388 . 797 414385

1,225 4,760 47.257 99353 2.711 101364

- •
- 1303323 - 1303323

(1.049) - .  (2J49) (3398) - (3398)
2JI7JI3 112^10 2,418,115 59.702.713 1.949390 61352303

- - - -- (809) (809)
(560) - (50,436) (1.708317) (5.187) (1.714304)

S  2JI6.753 S  112^10 S  2J67.679 S 57.993396 S  1343394 $ 59.937.790

I audiiof's repon and accompanying notes to the rinancial sluiemcnu.



SOUTIIHRN NHW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES. INC. AND AFKILIATU

COMBINED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXI'ENSBS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31. 2020

Program Scrvtces

Economic Nutrition

Child Community Workforce Language and Housing and

Developmcru 5ver\-ices Development Energy Literacy and Homeless Health .

EXPENSES

Payroll $ 5.556.933 S  933.868 S 2,939.525 S  iJ2l.964 S 298.880 S  88.866 S  962.139

Payroll taxes 419,856 70.488 . 221.893 1 17,494 23.413 6,797 73.387

Fringe hcncfils 1.573.633 137.463 615.794 463.923 28.359 21,715 238,512

Workers comp. inammce 118.066 9.585 7,651 15,806 2.062 233 30,576.

Rctirrmenl benefits .314.824 88.609 190.679 93.780 10.995 4.856 70.742

Consultant and contractujl 56.270 70.777 1,775.844 1.802.601 5.095 370 14.752

Travel and transportation 87.659 10.526 55.412 17.022 600 1,006 29.296

Conferences ortd meetings •  - 6.007 - 888 - 49 140

OccupaiKy 491.299 76,188 452.980 122:492 30J76 2.520 64.985

Advertising . • 2,664 3.955 2.990 I.I7I 50 8.169 424

Supplies 328.400 51.663 33.068 66.M7 5.006 3.604 .35.623

Ei^uip. rentals and maintenance 6J53 2.447 2IJ5I 12.146 2.943 - 10,096

Insurance 22.852 '  42.463 7.617 30.740 - 175 6,450

I'clcphonc 89.596 16,857 30,761 31,439 ■ 2.726 2,023 41,068

Postage 4.825 165 1.568 30.220 330 385 3.720

Printing aitd puhlicaiions 3.773 - - 483 1.851 - -

Subscriptions ■ • - 524 - -

Program support •
20.345 - 60.826 3.676 - -

interest 9.52^) - •  - - - • -

Depreciation 72.782 5.656 41.477 3.1-91 938 -
10.294

Assistance to clkmis 7.850 - 1.084.147 8,336.006 - 349.246 420.251

Other expense <- 181.944 9.940 7.450 9.318 -
800 303,005

MiscelUmcous 2U.004 688 364 1.862 13.734 (0 2.146

Irv^ind 1.472.831 • • - • ♦ -•

Gain on disposal of assets . . - - - • -

SUBTOTAL 10.842,143 1,557.690 7,490J7I 12,740,013 430.934 490.824 2.317.606

Over applied indirect costs - - - - - - -

CUmisatioiu (1.512.112) (52.270) (40,310) (88,503) - • (10,048)

total eXPENSGS S 9.330.031 S  1,505.420 $ 7.450J61 $12,651,510 S 430,934 $  490.824 $ 2J07.558

See independent auditor's report and accompanying notes to the firtancial stutemcnis.
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMf>5HIRE SERVICES. INC. AND AFFILIATE

COMBINED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES (Conlinued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31, 2020

Program Scfvlces
Support

Services

SNHS Management
Special Volunteer Management Total Program and ' Total

Projc«5 • Services Corporation Services General Expen.'ccs

eXPENSCS t

Payroll S 95.518 $  80J20 S  688.044 $13,166,266 $ 1,258.963 $14,425,229

Payroll taxes 7.446 6.021 45JI8 991313 93J8I 1.085.694

Fringe benefits 7J55 16.739 256,823 3J60,3t6 184,217 3.544.533

Wort en comp. insurtince 3,120 214 11,822 199,135 7.822 206,957

Reliremem benefils 5JR5 3.350 40,945 824.165 116J27 940,492

Consultant and contntctual 1.659,372 449 136.778 5.521308 87.416 5.609,724

Travel and transportuiion . 4,805 5,163 41.940 253,429 4,639 258,068

Conrcrences and meetings ."1.531 50 28.605 39.270 2.113 4(..n3

Occupancy 15.080 . 595.088 1.850.908 38.053 1.888.961

Advertising - 400 1.270 21.093 - 21,093

Supplies 1334 4.524 17.992 548.331 39.485 587.816

Equip, rentals arxl maintenance 4.971 63 15.835 76.405 1,398 77.803

Insurance 3.213 1.616 51.605 166.731 13,338 180,069

Telephone 2.700 2.350 29.193 248.713 6,146 254,859

Postage 7 632 1.207 43.059 15.840 58.899

Printing and publications - 84 8 6.199 61 6,260

Subscriptioas • \  * 534 1.058 - 1,058

Program su{^>nn .3.317 • 221373 310.537 - 310.537

Interest - - 55.013, 64.542 - 64342

Depreciation 46.914 388.881 570.133 673 570.806

Assistance to clients 12.708 - 68.129 10.278,337 - 10.278,337

Other expense 1.798 • 7.853 521108 4.435 526.54.1

Miscellaneuus 169 5,265 (30,823) 13,419 3,242 16,661

Irv4cind • - - 1,471831 - 1,472,831

Gain on disposal of assets - - (1450) (2.4501 • (2.450)

SUBTOTAL . 1,879.743 127,449 . 2,671183 40.549.156 1.877.349 42.426.705

Over applied Indirect costs • - . 3 3
Elliwinaffatts (3.317) . (224,475) (I,93l,()35) (655) (1.931.690)

TOTAL EXPENSES S 1.876.426 S  127,449 $ 2,447,708 $38,618,121 =L 1,876.897 $40,495,018

See independent auditor's report and aecompanying notes to the financial siaicraenis.
'



SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

COMBrNED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JULY 31. 2021 AND 2020

202i 2020

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Change in net assets S  2306,447 $  1,347,598
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net

cash flowrs from operating activities;

Depreciation 666,892 570,806

Gain on disposal of assets (3398) (2.450)
Unrealized gain on mvestments (1,066,602) (398,423)

(Increase) decrease in operating assets:

Contracts receivable (105304) 141,978

Accounts receivable (57,013) 99.970

Prepaid expenses 23,150 (64.645)
Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities:

Accounts payable (37,405) 71,424

Accrued payroll and payroll taxes 97,663 43,876
Accrued compensated abserKcs (45,804) 110.482

Accrued other liabilities 10,435 (174.692)
Refundable advances 1,087338 (691.943)
Over applied overhead (803) 152,740
Tenant security deposits 6302 ("301)

Total adjustments 575,449 (142,078)
NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 2381,896 1,205,520

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIF^

Purchase of fixed assets (560313) (1,304.678)

Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 48300 9.400

Purchase of investments, reinvested dividends and capital gains (227.693) (298,308)

Deposit to restricted cash accounts (10393) (46.103)

NET CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES (750,099) (1.639.689)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Payments on long-term debt (91.051) (96.173)

CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 2,040,746 (530342)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - BEGINNING OF YEAR 6,456,196 6,986.538

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - END OF YEAR 5  8,496,942 S  6.456,1%

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Cosh paid during the yw for interest S 60,S44 64,542

See indepetxlent auditor's report and accompanying rtotes to the financial statements.
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JULY3).202I AND 2020

NOTE 1: ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Natare of (be Orgaoizottoo
Southern New Hampshire Services. Inc. (SNHS) is a nonprofit umbrella corporation that ofTers an array of
services to the elderly, disabled, and low-incomc households in New Hampshire's Hillsborough County and
Rockingham County. The Organization's programs provide assistance in the areas of education,-child
development, employment, energy and its conservation, housing, and homelessness prevention. The
Organization is committed to providing respectful support services and assisting individuals and families in
achieving self-sufficiency by helping them overcome the causes of poverty. The primary source of revenues
is derived from governmental coniracis. Services are provided through Southern New Hampshire Services,
Inc. and SNHS Management Corporation.

v»

Basb of AccottotiDg and Presentatioo
The Organization prepares its combined financial stalcmenis in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the-United States of America, which involves the application of accrual accounting;
and accordingly reflect all significant receivables, payobles. and other liabilities. The financial statement
presentation follows the recommendation of (he Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting
Standards Update (ASU) 2016-M, Noi-For-Profu Enfiiies (Topic 958): Presentation of Financial
Statements ofNol-for-Prcfu Entities. Under ASU 2016-14. net assets, revenues, expenses, gains, and losses
are classified based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions. Accordingly, net assets of
the Organization and changes therein are classified and report^ as follows:

y  Net Assets wifhoui Donor Restrictions • Net assets that arc not subject to donor-imposed restrictions
and may be expended for any purpose in performing the primary objectives of the Organization.
These net assets may be used at the discretion of ihe Organization's management and.the board of
directors.

Net Assets with Donor Restrictions - Net assets subject to stipulations imposed by donors, and
' grantors. Some donor restrictions arc temporary in nature; those restrictions will be fulfilled and
removed by actions of the Organization pursuant to those stipulations or by passage of time. Other
donor restrictions are perpetual in nature, whereby the donor has stipulated the funds be maintained in
perpetuity.

Donor restricted contributions arc reported as an increase in net assets with donor restrictions. When a
restriction expires, net assets are reclassified from net assets with donor restrictions to net assets
without donor restrictions in the statement of activities.

The Organization has no net assets with donor restrictions at July 31. 2021 and 2020.

Combined Financial Statements

All significant intercompany items and transactions have been eliminated from the basic combined financial
statements. The combined financial statements include the accounts of SNHS Management Corporation
because Southern New Hampshire Services. Inc. controls more than $0% of the voting power.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of- combined financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts of
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reported period. Actual results may differ from these amounts.
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

JULY 31. 2021 AND 2020

NOTE 1: ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES tCominued^

Cosh ood Cosh Equlvaleats
' For the purpose of the combing statements of cash flows, the Organization considers all unrestricted highly

liquid debt insuoiments purchased with a maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. The
Organization has no cash equivalents at July 31.2021 and 2020.

CofTcol Valnenibilities Due to Certain Concentrations

The Organization maintains its cash balances at several financial institutions located in New Hampshire and
Maine. The balances arc insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Organization (FDIC) up to $250,000 per
financial institution. In addition, on October 2. 2008. the Organization entered into an agreement with its
principal banking partner to collatcralize deposits in excess of the FDIC insurance limitation on some
accounts. The balances, at times, may exceed amounts covered by the FDIC and collateralizaiion
agreements. It is the opinion of management that there is no significant risk with respect to these deposits at
cither July 31,2021 and 2020.

Accounts and Contracts Receivable

All accounts and contracts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from balances
outsuinding at year-end. Receivables are recorded on the accrual basis of accounting primarily based on
reimbursable contracts, grants, and agreements. Balances outstanding aflcr management has used
reasonable collection cfToris arc written off through a charge to bad debt c.xpense and a credit to the
applicable accounts receivable. Management does not believe an allowance for uncollectible accounts
receivable is necessary at July 31. 2021 and 2020.

Support and Revenue Recognitloo

Contracts with Customers

Program fees are repoired at the amount that reflects the consideration to which the Organization expects to
be entitled for providing chiidcare services to its clients.

Generally, the Organization bills customers and third-party payors several days afier the services are
performed. Revenue is recognized as performance obligations are satisfied. Performance obligations are
determined based on the nature.of the services provided by the Organization. The Organization measures
the performance obligations of its chiidcare services to the point when it is no longer required to provide
services to the client, which is generally weekly for chiidcare services. These services are considered to be a
single performance obligation. Revenue for performance obligations satisfied at a point in lime is
recognized when services arc provided, and the Organization does not believe it is required to provide
additional services to the client

Based on the nature of services provided by the Organization and due to the fact that all of the
Organization's performance obligations related to contracts with a duration of less than one year, the
Organization has elected to apply the optional exemption provided in PASS ASC 606-10-50-14(a) and.
therefore is not required to disclose the aggregate amount of the transaction price allocated to performance
obligations that are unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied at the end of the reporting period.

The transaction price for chiidcare services is based on standard charges for services provided to clients.
Under the terms of the State of New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services chiidcare
subsidy programs, reimbursement for chiidcare services provided may differ from established rates. It Is the
Organization's policy to set its raies to be consistent with current reimbursement rates. Therefore, amounts
due do not include significant variable consideration subject to retroactive revenue adjustments due to
settlement of reviews and audits.



. SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

JULY 31. 2021 AND 2020

NOTE ,1; ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Support and Revenoe RecogDitioo - CoDtinued

Controcis with Customers - Continued

The Organization has elected to apply the practical expedient allowed under FASB ASC 606-10-10-4 for
applying the revenue standard lo a portfolio of contracts with similar characteristics. The Organization
accounts for the contracts within each portfolio as a collective group, rather than individual contracts, based
on the payment pattern expected in each portfolio category and the similar nature and characteristics of the
clients within each portfolio. The portfolios consist of major payor classes for childcare services. Based on
historical collection trends and other analysis, the Organization has concluded that revenue for a ̂ ven
portfolio would not be materially different than If accounting for revenue on a contract-by-contraci basis.

The Organization has also elected to apply the practical expedient allowed under FASB ASC 606-10-32-18
for the financing component, as the period of time between the service being provided and the time that the
client or third-pany payer pays for the service is typically one year or less.

Private Grant Revenue and Contributions

Private grant contributions are recognized when cash, securities or other assets, an unconditional promise to
give, or notification of a beneficial Interest is received. Conditional promises to give are not recognized
until the corxlitions on which they depend have been substantially met. Support that is restricted by the
donor is reported as an Increase in net assets without donor restrictions, if the restriction expires in the
reporting period in which the support Is recognized. All other donor-restricted support is reported as an
increase in net assets with donor restrictions, depending on the nature of the restriction. When a restriction
expires; (that is. when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished), net assets
with donor restrictions are reciassifled to net assets without donor restrictions and reported In the combined
statements of activities as net assets released from restrictions.

Grants and Support
Grant revenue is derived from various federal grant agreements and various state and private entity pass-
through grant agreements end contracts to provide funding support of the Organization's programs and
services provid^ by the Organization including childcare. child development, social, health, nutrition,
employment, language, energy, and special needs services to families enrolled in the Organization's
programs. The Organization has evaluated its grant agreements against applicable accounting standard
guidance and determined that the grant agreements are contributions (nonreciprocal transaction)
conditiorted upon certain performance requirements and/or incurrence of allosvable qualifying expenses.
Amounts received are recognized as revenue when the Organization has incurred expenses in compliance
with specific provisions of the grant agreements. Refundt^le advances result from unexpended balances
from these conditional contributions and will be subsequently recognized as contribution revenue when
donor conditions are met. Federal and state grant revenue'comprised approximately 93% and 91% of total
revenue in the fiscal years ended July 31. 2021 and 2020. r^pectively.

In-Kind Donations

In-kind re\'enue$ and expenses represent fair market value of volunteer services and noivpald goods which
were donated to the Organization during the current fiscal year. All in-kind revenues In the fiscal year 2021
and 2020 were generated through the Head Start and Economic Workforce Development programs. Since
the recognition criteria is not met under financial accounting standards, no in-kind revenues are recognized
as contributions in the combined financial statements and the in-kind expenses have been eliminated.
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES. INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

JULY 31. 2021 AND 2020

NOTE I: ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investments

The Organization carries investments In marketable securities with readily deierminabic fair values and all
investments in debt securities at their fair values in the combined statements of financial position.
Unrealized gajns and losses arc included in ihe change in net assets in the accompanying combined
statements of activities. >

Fixed Assets

Fixed assets acquired by the Organization are capitalized at cost if purchased or fair value if donated. It is
. the Organization's policy to capitalize expenditures for these items in excess of $5,000. Major additions and
renewals are capitalized, while repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred. Depreciation is calculated
using the straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets, which range from three to forty
years. Depreciation expense for July 31, 2021 and 2020 was $666,892 end $570,806, respectively.

Fixed assets purchased with grant funds are owned by the Organization while used in the program for which
they were purchued or in other future authorized programs. However, the various funding sources have a
reversionary interest in the fixed assets purchased with grant funds. The disposition of fixed assets, as well
as the ownership of any proceeds is subject to funding source regulations.

Advertising
The Organization uses advertising to promote programs among the people it serves. The production costs of
advertising are expensed as incurred.

. Fonctional Allocation of Expenses
The Organization allocates its expenses on a functional basis among its various programs and support
services. Expenses that can be identified with a specific program and support services are allocated directly
according to their rtatural expenditure classification. Other expenses, that are common to several furKllons.
are allocated by management based oh effort. Supporting services are those related to operating and
managing the Organization and its programs on a day-to-day basis. Supporting services have been sub-
classified as follows:

Management and General • includes all activities related to the Organization's internal management.

Subsequent Events
Management has made an evaluation of subsequent events through March 3, 2022, which represents the
date on which the combined financial statements were available to be issued and determined that any
subsequent events that would require recognition or disclosure have been considered in the preparation of
these combined financial statements.

13



SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES. INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

JULY 31. 2021 AND 2020

NOTE 1: ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES fContmuedl

Recently Adopted Accottollng Pronoanceroents

Revenue Recognition
In May 2014. the FASB issued ASU 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, to clarify the
principles for rtcogniring revenue and to develop a common revenue standard for U.S. GAAP and
International Financial Reporting Standards. The core principle of the guidance requires entities to
recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount thai
reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or setvices.
The ASU was efTeclive for fiscal periods beginning after December 15. 2018. however ASU 2020-05,
Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606) and Leases (Topic 842) - EffectIw Dates for Certain
Entities, allowed for a one-year deferral for implementation due to the coronavirus pandemic. The
Organization implemented the guidance for the year ended July 31. 2021 combined financial statements.
The adoption of this update did not result in adjustments to net assets, or any other account balance and no
account has been alTected in the current period by the application of the guidance.

Contributions

In June 2018, the FASB issued ASU No. 2018-08: Clarifying the Scope and the Accounting Guidance for
Contributions Received and Contributions Made. The issuance of this ASU was in response to the difficulty
and diversity in practice of distinguishing between exchange transactions (reciprocal) and contributions
(nonreciprocal), as well as distinguishing between conditional and unconditional contributions. The
guidance is effective for die Organization's fiscal years beginning after June 15. 2018, with early adoption
permitted. Management has adopted the ASU elTective August 1. 2020. on a modified^prospective basis. As
a result, this ASU'has been ̂ li^ to the portion of revenue that has not been recognized before the
efTective date In accordance with current guidance. No prior period results have been restated, and there has
been no cumulative-effect adjustment to the opening balance of net assets on August 1. 2020.

Recent Acconnting FroaouocemeDts

Leases

In February 2016, the FASB released ASU 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842). which provides users of the
financial statements a more accurate picture of the assets and the long-term financial obligations of
organizations that lease. The standard is for a dual-model approach; a lessee will account for most existing
capital leases as Type A leases, and most existing operating leases as Type B leases. Both will be reported
on the statement of financial condition of the organization for leases with a term exceeding 12 months.
Lessors will see changes as well, primarily made to align with the revised model. The guidance is effective
for non-public entities for fiscal yean beginning after December 15. 2021. with early adoption permitted,
The Organization will implement the guidance in its July 31. 2023 consolidated financial statements.
Management is currently evaluating the impact of adoption on the Organization's financial statements.

NOTE 2: RESTRICTED CASH

The Organization, as stipulated in many of the loan agreements associated with the housing projects
included in SNHS Management Corporation, is required to maintain separate accounts, and make monthly
deposits into certain restricted reserves for the replacement of propert)- and other e.xpenditures. In addition,
the Organization is required to mainUiin separate accounts for tenant security deposits and any surplus cash
that may result from annual operations. These accounts are also not available for operating purposes and
generally need additional approval from oversite agencies before withdrawal and use of these funds can
occur.
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

JULY 31.2021 AND 2020 '

NOTE 3: FAIR VALUE MEASURRMFNTS ^

The framcNvork for measuring fair value provides a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the ir^)uts to valuation
techniques used to measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level I measurements) and the lowest priority to unoteervable
inputs (Level 3 measurements). Valuation techniques maximize the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimize the use of unobservable Inputs.

The three levels of the fair value hierarchy under Financial Accounting Standards Board Accounting
Standards Codification 820, Fair Value Measuremems, are described as follows:

Level I: Inputs to the valuation methodology arc unadjusted quoted prices for Identical
assets or liabilities in active markets that the organization has the ability to
access at the measurement date.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level t that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly, such as:

■  - ' . I

• Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets;

'  ' * Quoted prices for Ideiitlcai or similar assets or ilabilities in inactive markets; '

•  Inputs other than quoted prices that are obser^'able for the asset or liability;

•  Inputs that arc derived principally from or corroborated by observable maikci
data by correlation or other means.

If the asset or liability has a specified (contractual) term, the Level 2 input must
be observable for subsiamially the full term of the asset or liability.

Level 3: Inputs that are unobservable for the asset or liability.

The following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets measured at fair value. There
have been no changes In the methodologies used at July 31, 2021 and 2020.

Mutual Funds: Valued at the net asset value of shares held on the last trading day of the fiscal
year, which Is the basis for transactions at that date.

IS



SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

JULY 31. 2021 AND 2020

NOTE 3: FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS fContinued^

The following table sets forth by level, within the fair value hierarchy, the Organization's assets at fair value
asofJuly3l.202i and2020:

2021

Mutual Funds

ILsvrii) (Levt\2\ fLe>'el 31

$111526016 s ;

Mutual Funds

fLevel I)

19.102.421

2020

(LeysU)

5  -

(Level})

$  .

Total

19.102.421

N0TE4: INVESTMENTS

The following is a summary of investments as of July 31;

3021

Cost

Fair
Market liarcolized
Value Gains

2020

Cost

Fair
Market

Value

Urrreaiized
Gains

Mutual Funds $UL126216 $L55L648 $i6iU26 sm2Ml imm

The activities of the Organization's investment account arc summarized as follows:

Fair Value - Beginning of Year
Dividends and Capital Gains
Unrealized Gains

Fair Value • End of Year

2021

$9,102,421
227,692

_Lmm

2020
(

18.405.690

298.308
398.423

19.102.421
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES. INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOJES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
.  (Continued)

JULY 31, 2021 AND 2020

NOTE 5: AVAILABILITY AND LIOUIDITY

The Organization's financial assets available for c.tpcndiiure. that is. without donor or other restrictions
limiting their use, within one year of the statement of financial position dale comprise the following as of
July 31:

2021 2Q22

Cash and Cash Equivalents 5 8,496,942 5 6,456,196
Investments 10,396.716 9,102,421
Grants Receivable 3.451,639 3,346,435
Accounts Receivable 778.610 721.595

Total financial assets available within one year 523.123.907 519.626.647

None of the financial assets are subject to donor or other contractual restrictions. Accordingly, all such funds,
are available to meet the needs of the Organization in the next 12 months, in addition, the Organization
•maintains several reserve funds for property taxes, insurance e.xpenses. and repair and replaccnwnt or
emergency needs which arc required by financing aulhorities. These funds may be withdrawn only with the
approval of the financing authority and arc not considered by the Organization to have donor restrictions.

The Organization manages its liquidity by developing and adopting annual operating budgets that provide
sufficient funds for general expenditures in meeting its liabilities and other obligations as they become due.

NOTE 6: LONG-TERM DEBT

The following is a summary of long-term debt as of July 31:

SNHS.Inc.

2021 2m

Mortgage payable to City of Manchester, secured by real
estate located in Manchester. NH. A balloon payment of
$11,275 was due on June 30, 2010. Interest is at 0.000%.
SNHS, Inc. is currently negotiating with the City of
Manchester to obtain forgiveness. S 11,275 $ 11,275

Mortgage payable to bank, secured by real estate located on
Temple St., Nashua. NH, payable In fixed monthly principal
installments of 51.833 plus interest through 2020. The note
was refinanced on October I. 2020, payable in monthly
installments of $2,182 plus interest through 2030. Interest is
at 4.000% at July 31.2021 and 2020. -200.776 216.502

Subtotal S 212.051 $ 229.777
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES. INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

JULY 31.2021 AND 2020

NOTE 6: LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

Subtotal Carried Forward

SNHS M»npg?myni Cprpgratton

Mortgage payable to New Hampshire Housing Authority
secured by real estate located on Pleasant St.. Epping. NH.
payable in monthly installments orSI.0S4 including interest
through 2042. Interest is at 3.500%.

Mortgage payable to City of Nashua secured by real estate
located on Vine St., Nashua, NH. Mortgage will be forgiven
only if real estate remains low-irKome housing for 30 years.
Interest is at 10.000%, forgiven annually.

Note payable to City of Nashua secured by real estate
located on Vine St., Nashua, NH. Mortgage will be forgiven
only if real estate remains low-income housing for 30 years.
Interest is at 10.000%, forgiven annually.

Mortgage payable to New Hampshire Community Loan
Fund secured by real estate located on. Vine St.. Nashua,
NH. Mortgage will be forgiven only if real estate remains
low-income housing for 30 years. Interest is at 10.000%.
forgiven annually.

Mortgage payable to bank, secured by real estate located on
West Pearl St., Nashua, NH. Mortgage will be forgiven only
if real estate remains low-income housing for 40 years.
Interest is at 0.000%.

Mortgage payable to bank, secured by real estate located on
Allds St., Noshua, NH. payable in fixed monthly principal
installments of $2,613 plus interest through 2021. Interest is
at 2.906% at July 31,2021 and 2020.

Mortgage payable to MH Parsons and Sons Lumber, secured
by real estate located on Crystal Ave.. Deny, NH, payable in
monthly installments of $3,715 including interest through
2031. Inieresi is at 5.500%.

Mortgage payable to New Hampshire Housing Authority
secured by real estate located in Deerfield, NH, payable in
monthly installments of $3,327 including interest through
2033. Interest is at 7.000%.

2021

S 212.051

2020

i 229.777

188,106

900.000

20,000

194.418

900.000

20,000

250,000

170,000

348,801

326J32

250.000

170.000

26.131

373,238

342.777

Subtotal S2.41SJ90
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

JULY 31. 202! AND 2020

NOTE 6; LONG-TERM DEBT fContinued)

Subtotal Carried Forward

Mortgage payable to New Hampshire Housing Authority
secured by real estate located in Dcerfleld. NH with annual
prirtcipal repayments equal to 25% of cash surplus due
throu^ 2032. Interest is at 0.000%.

Mortgage payable to New Hampshire Housing Authority
secured by real estate located in Deerfield. NH with annual
principal repayments equal to 25% of cash surplus due
through 2032. Interest is at 0.000%.

Lew: Current Portion

Long-term debt, net of current portion

Principal maturities of long-term debt are as follows as of July 31

2021

392,924

1SO.OOO

2,958.214

79.998

2022 $  79.998

2023 72.455
2024 76.399

2025 80.571

2026 84.984

Thereafter 2.563.807

Total $2.95.8^

2020

^.506.341

392,924

150.000

3,049.265

100.012

^-949.253

NOTE 7; OPERATING LEASES

The Organization leases various facilities and equipment under several operating teases. Total lease
payments for the years ended July 31, 2021 and 2020 equaled S865,098 and $681,354. respectively. The
leases expire at various times through October 2025. Some of the leases contain renewal options (hat are
contingent upon federal funding and some contain renewal options subject to renegotiation of lease terms.
Annual leases with the Organization for the years ended July 31. 2021 and 2020 totaled $222,117 and
$133,204, respectively. These leases have been eliminated In the combined financial statements.

The following is a schedule of future minimum lease payments for the operating leases as of July 31:

2022

2023

2024

2025

Total

$266,156

77.617

37,598

36.096

S 417 467

19



SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

JULY 31. 202! AND 2020 ^

NOTE 8: RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Organization has an Employer-Sponsored 40j(b) plan ofTcring coverage to all of its employees.
Participating employees must contribute at least \% of their wages, while the Organization continbutes 10%
of their wages. The pwion expense for the yean ended July 31. 2021 and 2020 was SI.012,187 and
$940,492, respectively.

NOTE 9: RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES .

The Organization is operated in a heavily regulated environment. The operations of the Organization arc
subject to the administrative directives, rules, and regulations of fedieral. state, and local regulatory
agencies. Such administrative directives, rules, and regulations are subject to change by an act of Congress
or Legislature. Such changes may occur with little notice or Inadequate funding to pay for the related cost,
iiKluding (he additional administrative burden, to comply with a change.

NOTE lOrCONTINGENCIES AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Organization receives grant funding from various sources. Under the terms of these agreements, the
Organization is required to use the funds within a certain period and for purposes specified by the governing
laws and regulations. If expenditures were found not to have been made in compliance with the laws and
regulations, the Organization mi^t be required to repay the funds. No provisions have been made for this
contingency because specific amounts, if any, have not yet been determined.

Cotton Mill Square

In 2015, SNHS Management Corporation entered into a contract as pan of the Community Development
Investment Ta.x Credit Program with the Community Development Finance Authority (CDFA) and was
awarded SI.000,000 to provide funding for the development and adaptive reuse of an atondon^ historic
conon mill in downtown Nashua, NH. Under this program, the Project (Cotton Mill Square) created 109
units of housing and was required to reserve 55 of these units for low to moderate income households.

As stipulated by the contract and after a 20% program fee retained by the CDFA, SNHS Management
Corporation entered into a subrecipient agreement with the o\vners of the Project (Cotton Mill Square LLC)

•  to provide a promissory note and mortgage of the remaining award amount of $800,000. the 20 year note
to Cotton Mill Squats LLC is non-interest bearing and the (x-incipal is forgivable at a rate of 5% each year
the Project maintains the required minimum of 55 low to m^erate income household units.

The Cotton Mill Square Project was awarded the certificate of occupancy on August 22. 2014 and
remains in full compliance with the required regulations as of July 31. 2021 and 2020. SNHS
Management Corporation feels that.it is extremely unlikely that the Project will fall into noncompliancc
in future periods. Therefore. SNHS Management Corporation has not recorded any contingeiit receivable
or liability related to this transaction. The note repayment is accelerated If the units fall out of

.  compliarKe.
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

JULY 31, 2021 AND 2020

NOTE IO:CONT1NCENCIES AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES fConiinLiedl

Coltop Mill Souare fConHnacd)

In October of 2017, the subrecipicni agrccmenl with Conon Mill Square LLC was amended to cease the
annual S% debt forgiveness. This modification effectively holds the promissory note balance at S720.000
which will now be forgiven in full at the end of the agreement as long as the Project maintains compliance
with the original agreement's terms. This modification did not change the contingent receivable or liability
with SNHS.Management Corporation.

Coronavlrus Pandemic

An outbreak of a novel strain coronavirus (COVID-19) has spread to the U.S. and in March 2020, the
World Hulth Organization characterized COVID-19 as a pandemic. The Organization was unable to meet
its matching requirements in accordance with the terms of its Head Start Programs grant award due to the
COVID-19 pandemic but received a waiver from DHHS to remain in compliance. Many programs that
historically had direct contact with participants were closed or changed significantly while staff was
retained. However, the extent of the future impact of COVID-19 on the Organization's operational and
flnaiKial performance is not known as of the date these financial statements were issued, but management
will continue to monitor conditions as the COVID-19 pandemic continues and take further action if
considered necessary.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

To the Board of Directors of ^

Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and Affiliote
Manchester, New Hampshire

We have audited the combined financial statements of Southern.New Hampshire Services, Inc. (a
nonprofit organization) and affiliate as of and for the years ended July 31,2021 and 2020, and our report
thereon dated March 3, 2022, which contained an unmodified opinion on those combined financial
statements, appears on page I. Our audits were performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on the
combined financial statements as a whole. *

The combining information in Schedules A and B (pages 23-24), the schedules of revenues and
expenses • by grant (pages 25-29), required by the State of New Hampshire Governor's OifTice of
Strategic Initiatives, and the required schedules and financial information for Whispering Pines II, J.B.
Milcne Manor, and Sherbume Woods (pages 30-49), required by the New Hampshire Housing Finance
Authority arc presented for purposes of additional analysis and arc not a required pan of the combined
financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the combined financial
statements. The combining information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the combined financial slaicmcnis and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
combined financial statements or to the combined financial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In
our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the combined financial
statements as a whole.

OiuLktu <iLjissociaus,
Certified Public Accountants

March 3,2022

Lewiston, Maine

nil Lisbon Street • Lewiston. Maine04240 . Telephone: (207) 786-0328 • FAX: (207) 783-9377 . \^nvw.oacpa$.net



SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES. INC. AND AFFILIATE

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF FINANCIAL POSITION

JULY Jl. 2021

ScheduU A

CURRE.NT ASSETS

Ctsh

lattstmeitu

Onms receivable

Accotino rccch-abic

Pteptid expenws

Doc from other corporaliom

Total eurresitucu

n.XED ASSETS

Land

B«ildiafS and improvements

Vehicles and cqdpmctu

Toui Tixed assets

Less • accumolalcd depredaiien

Net Axed assets

OTHER ASSETS

Restricted cash

TOTAL ASSETS

SNHS

Mantgemeni

SNHS.Inc. Corporation SuthTolal Elnuination Total

ASSETS

i  175.0O2 S  t.32I.SSt3 S  8.496.942 S  - $ 8.496.942

. 10.396.716 I0J96.716 - 10.396.716

3.419.743 31.896 3.451.639 • 3.451.639

. 771.610 77J.6I0 - 778.610

76.0S9 60.603 136.692 • 136.692

3,926.131 ll.52S.08t) 2.401.757 12.401.757} •

7.597.732 18.064.624 25.662.356 (2.401.757} 23.260.599

619.910 2.426.008 3.045.918 3.045.918

2.221.57i n.343.738 13.565.316 - 13.565.316

IJ20.322 254.700 1.575.022 - 1J75.022

4.161.110 14.024.446 11.116.256 18.186.256

1.683.134 4.52 U19 6.204.J53 6.204.4SJ •

2.478.676 9.503.127 11.911.803 11.981.803

29.235 439.041 468.276 468J 76

S  10.105.643 S 21.006.792 5 38.112.435 S  C2.40l.757) $ 35.710.678

LIABILITIES A.ND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Convm podioo of loftt'ienn debt

Aocoiinu pa)-able

Accrued pax roll sad pa)Toil laxn

Accrued compensaied absences

Accrued other liabilities

ReAindabie adttrtces

Over applied overhead

Tenant securit)* deposits

Due to ether corperatioBS
Total rurresl liabiliiin

\

LONG-TERM LlABILHIES

Lont-eerm debt, kss current portioa

TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

t  29.770

624.231

254.234

50.755

1.424.138

179.676

30.528

1.341.985

i  5p.228

67.464

933.110

42J.497

12.69!

58.704

1.059.772

$  79.998 $ - S

691.695

1.187.344

424.497

63.446

1.424.138

179.676

19.232 ,

2.401.757 " (2.401.757)

79.991

691.695

1.117 J44

424.497

61.446

1.424.138

179.676

19.232

3.933J17 2.606.466 6.541.783 l2.40l.757) 4.140.026

II2JII .  2.695.935 2.878.216 2.I78JI6

4,117.598 5J02.40I 9.419.999 (2.401.757) 7.018.242

5.9SS.045 22.704.391 28.692.436 / - 21.692.436

5  10.105.643 S 28.006.792- $ 38.112.435 $ (2.401.757) S 35.710.678
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ScMutt B

SOITTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES. INC. AND AFFILIATE

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF ACTIVITIES

FOR TVIE YEAR ENDED JULY 31. 2021

•

SNHS

•

Managemeni

SNHS.Inc Corporation Sub-Total Elimination Total

RCVENUeS. CAi.VS A.VD OTHER SUPPORT

Gnni revenue S  57.9-16.613 S S 57,946.613 S  (287.311) S 57.659.302

Prognm ser\-ic« fees 2.329 820.3)3 822.662 -
822.662

Local rundini - 193.876 193.876 • 193.876

Renul income - 1.227.156 1.227.156 •
1.227.156

GiOi and other coMribtniocu 185.272 il6.tJ9 301.421 - 301.421

Interen Income ISS 228.825 228.980 • 228.980

Unrestiied pin on invesmcnu - 1,066.602 1.066.602 • 1.066.602

In-kind -"1.203,823 - 1,203.823 (1.203.833)
-

Mi}ccilaneou5 550.07) 417.033 967.108 (222.870) 744.238

TOTAL REV6.NUES. CAINS A.NO OTHER SUPPORT 59.8*8,267 4.069.974 63.958.241 (1.714.004) 62.244.237

EXPENSES

Prepvn servicei

Child Development 10,924,833 -
10.924.838 (1.318.095) 9.606.743

Conununi(>- Services t.584.2 70 • 1,584.270 (^0.564) 1.363.706

Economic and Workforce Oev i.803.29: 5.803.292 (16.993) 5.786.299

Energx- 10.751,835 - 10.751.835 (15.428) 10,666,407

Lanfuap and Literacy 302,502 302302 •
302.502

Housirvgand Homeless 23.361,206 23.361,206 (869) 23.360.337

Nutniien attd Health 2,127.132 - 2,127.132 (15.172) 3.111.260

Special Projects 2.317,313 2,317.313 (560) 2.316.753

Volunteer Services II2JI0 • 112.210 •
112.210

SNHS Manapcracni Corporation 2.418.115 2.418.115 (50.436) 2.367.679

Toul program services S7.284J08 2.418.115 59,702.713 (1.708,817) 57,993.896

Support services

Managcmertt and |eneral 1.949,081 - 1.9492)81 (5.187) 1.943.894

TOTAL EXPENSES 59.233,679 2,418.115 61.651.794 (1.714.004) 59.937.790

CHANCE IN NET ASSETS 654,588 1,651.859 2.306.447 •
2J06.447

NET ASSETS - BtCINMNC OF YEAR 5.333.457 21.032J32 26.385.989 . 26.385.989

NET ASSETS • END OF YEAR S  5.988,045 S  22.704.39! i  28.692.436 S  ■ 8 21.692.436
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES - BV GRANT

'  . . FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY3I.2021

State of NH Governor's Office of Strategic Initiatives

Head start Pro^m

For the Period

August 1.2020 to July 31.2021

Fund 1^305

REVENUES

Program funding

Irvkind

Allocated corporate unrestricted revenue

Total revenue

5,744,821

1,055,443

18,027

6.818,291

EXPENSES

Payroll

Payroll taxes

Fringe benefits

Workers comp. insurance

Retirement benefits

Consultant and contractual

Travel and transportation
Occupancy

Advertising

Supplies

Equip, rentals aixl maintenartce

Insurance

Telephone

Postage

Printing and publications

Depreciation

Assistance to clients

Other expense

Miscellaneous

In-kind

Administrative costs

Total expenses

Excess of e.xpenses over revenue

2,971.787

222,486

1,002,519

67.870

218,254

41,070

27,457

353,209

434

189,024

2.213

13,873

34,794

1,119

40

24.089

-12,259

61.278

24,106

1,055,443

494,967

6,818,291
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES - BY GRANT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31. 2021

Stale of NH Govcmof's Office of Strategic Initiatives
LIHEAP Program
For the Period
October 1,2020 to July 31,2021 ^
Fund 0 630-20

5' '. 'U.

REVENUES
Program funding
OOtcr revenue

Allocated corporate unrestricted revenue
Total revenue

EXPENSES

' Payroll
Payroll taxes

. Fringe benefits
Workers comp. insurance
Retirement benefits

Consultant and.contractual
Travel and transportation
Conference and meetings
Occupancy
Advertising
Supplies
Equip, rentals and maintenance
Insurance

Telephone
Postage
Printing and publications
Subsaiptions
Program support
Depreciation
Assistance to clients

Other expense
MiscellarKOus

Administrative costs

Total expenses

Excess of expenses over revenue

8,010,833
■50

2,167
B.013.050

236.761
17,758
82.919

590

15.257
18,181

5,301
328

47,143
366

18.751
1.805

835

15.952

13.273

3,006
285

39,653
2.163

7.448.172
5

599

43.947

8.013.050
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SOLTTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES - BY GRANT

'  FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31.2021 .

State of NH Governor's Office of Strategic Initiatives

LIHEAP Program

For the Period

August J. 2020 to September 30.2020

Fund# 630-19

REVENUES

Program funding S 137,270

Total revenue 137,270

EXPENSES

Payroll 66.838

Payroll taxes 5,031
Fringe benefits 25,140

'Workers comp. ihsurartce 189

Retirement benefits 3,732

Consuhant and contractual 5,533

Travel end transportation ' 857

Occupancy 7,200

Advertbing 50
Supplies 2.678

Equip, rentals and maintenance 460

Insurance 1,807

Telephone 2,089
Postage 1,217

Program support 3.649

Assistance to clients (343)

Miscellaneous 28

Administrative costs it, II5

Total expenses 137.270

Excess of expenses over revenue S

27



SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILjATE

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES - BY GRANT

^  FORTHE YEARENDEDJULY 31.2021

State of NH Govemor's OHice of Strategic Initiatives

Early Head start Program

For the Period

August t, 2020 to July 31, 2021

Fund 0 300

REVENUES

Program funding

In-kind

Allocated corporate unrestricted revenue

Total revenue

EXPENSES

Payroll

Payroll taxes

Fringe benefits

Workers comp. insurance

Retirement benefits

Consultant and contractual

Travel and transportation

Occupancy

Advertising

Supplies
Equip, rentals and maintenance

Insurance

Telephone

Postage

Inieresi

Depreciation

Other expense

Miscellaneous

livkind

Administrative costs

Total expenses

Excess of expenses over revenue

1,434,1 14

l2i;20S

I2JZI3

1,567.535

767,1S4

57.829

222.132

17,389

49,041

3325

3,077

86,815

75

35,540

42

2^03

21.161

55

9J35

29.938

17.130

980

121.208

122,876

1.567,535
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES. INC. AND AFFILIATE

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES - BY GRANT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31.2021

Electric Exiergy Assistance

For the Period

August 1.2020 to July 31. 2021

Fund 0 665

REVENUES

Other revenue S " 669,174

Allocated corporate unrestricted revenue 1.018

Total revenue 670,192

EXPENSES

Payroll 323,953

Payroll taxes 24.492

Fringe benefits 106,513

Workers comp. insurance 828

Retirement benefits 20,855

Consultant and contractual 23,368

Travel and transportation 3,189

Conference and meetings 328

Occupancy 53,321

Advertising 41^

Supplies 24,416

Equip, rentals and maintenance 2,265

Insurance 2,424

Telephone 13,720

Postage 9,501

Printing ar>d publications 3,006

Subscriptions 285

Depreciation 787

Other expense 5

Miscellaneous 347

Administrative costs 56,173

Total expenses 670,192

Excess of expenses over revenue 5 •

29



WHISPERING PINES II

(FORMERLY: EPPING SENIOR HOUSING ASSOCIATES LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)
(PROJECTNo. AI99991-046)

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

JULY 31.2021 AND 2020

ASSETS

2021 2020

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash • Operations

Prepaid Expenses

S 30.530

7,405

15.319

8,433

Total Current Assets 37.935 23.752

DEPOSITS HELD IN TRUST. FUNDED

Tenant Security Deposits 12.884 11.484

RESTRICTED DEPOSITS AND FUNDED RESERVES

Replacement Reserve
Operating Reserve
Tax Escrow

-Insurance Escrow

21.712

79473
5428

2.911

40,591

79,253

8,531

2,791

Total Restricted Deposits and Funded Reserves 109424 131.166

RENTAL PROPERTY

Land

Building and Building Improvements
Total Rental Property
Less Accumulated Depreciation

166.600

592.108

758.708

75.722

166,600

580,758

747,358

59401

Net Rental Property 682,986 688,057

TOTAL ASSETS $ 843,029 $ 854.459

L/AB/UrrESAND IVETASSETS

CURRENT LIABIUTIES

Current Portion of Mortgage Loan Payable
Accounts Pa)able

Accrued Expenses

S 6437

2,488

38

S 6412

5,548

205

Total Current Liabilities 9,063 12,065

DEPOSIT LIABILITIES

Tenant Security Deposit Liability 12,884 11,484

LONG-TERM LUBILITIES

Due to Afnilate

Mortgage Loan Payable, Net of Current Portion

29,019

181469

18,312

188,106

Total Long-Term Liabilities 210,588 206,418

Total Liabilities 232435 229.967

NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS 610,494 624,492

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS s 843.029 S 854.459
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WHISPERING PINES 11

(FORMERLY: EPPING SENIOR HOUSING ASSOCIATES LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)

(PROJECT No. A199991-046)

STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES *

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JULY 31, 2021 AND 2020

RENTAL OPERATIONS

Income

Tenant Rental Income

Laundry- Income
Other Income

Interest Income • Unrestricted

Interest Income • Restricted

Total Income

Expenses (See Schedule/

Administrative

Utilities

Maintenance

Depreciation
Interest • NHHFA Mortgage Note

General Expenses

Total Expenses

CHANCE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS - BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS - END OF YEAR

202J 2020

5  170,685 $  171,842

2,475 2.275

1,684 1.466

12 14

21! 1,345

175,067 176,942

31,548 42,309

45,016 42,448

62,604 39,165

16,421 15,853

6,704 6,921

26,772 35,878

189,065 182,574

(13,998) (5,632)

624,492 630,124

S  610,494 S  624,492
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WHISPERING PINES II

(FORMERLY: EPPINO SENIOR HOUSING ASSOCIATES LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)
(PROJECT No. A199^ I -046)'

SCHEDULES OF RENTAL OPERATIONS EXPENSES

EXPENSES:

Administraiive

Management Fees

Salaries and Wages
Fringe Benefits
Legal Expenses

Telephone
Other Administrative Expense

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSE

U'llitics

Electricity

Fuel

Water and Sewer

Other Utility Expense

TOtAL UTILITY EXPENSE
Maintenance-

Custodial Supplies
Trash Removal

Snow Removal

Grounds/Landscaping
Elevator Repairs and Contract
Repairs (Materials)

Operation (Contract)

TOTAL MAINTENANCE EXPENSE

Depreciation ,

Interest - NHHFA Mortgage Note

General Extxnses

Real Estate Taxes

Payroll Taxes

Retirement Benefits

. Workman's Compensation

Insurance

TOTAL GENERAL EXPENSES

TOTAL EXPENSES

2021 2O20

S  14,400 S  14.400

6,781 16,704

2,033 4,701

56 .

3,153 2,953

5,125 3.551

31,548 42.309

19,887 20,098

8,177 9.677

15,713 1 1,613

1,239 1,060

45,016 42.448

n 318

2,245 2,064

10,153 10,951
- 17

3.718 5,045

37,829 17,218

8,587 3,552

62,604 39,165

16,421 15,853

6,704 6,921

19,163 26.490

516 '  1.273
631 1,670

385 915

6,077 5.530

26,772 35.878

S  189,065 $  182,574
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WHISPI-RINO PINES n

(FORMERLY: EPPtNG SENIOR HOUSING ASSOCIATES LIMITED PARTNERSHIP!
(PROJECT|4o AI9999I.4N6)

SCHEDUU OF RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS

PROJECT OPERATING ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEARENDED JULY Jl. 2021

SOI RCEOF FUNDS

Remil OCTtrom

Income

Tensm Paid Reni

Map ReniSubsidv'

Ton! R<nm Income

Service Income

ItMcresi lacome

Commercbl Income

Otha Income

Ton! Rennl QnefiilMW Rweitm

Expcnaea

AdmiAlstraiivc

Utilkiet

MaratcBUce

Inieresi - NHHFA Klongate Note
Inimsi - OtbcT Noice

General

Olher

Tom Remal Ooemieni Dtrtwricmentt

C««h Provided b^ Rcnol QeefOieni

AiHortlralipn of Moriaate

C«ih Provided b\' Retrtal OncnlioM

Aftet Debt Service

S  156.712

1J.97J

2.475

1.6t4

20.617

45.016

65.664

6.704

26.772

6.212

S  I70.6S5

174.156

(I74.t43)

13

OTHER RECEIPTS

Due lo Mtnetwnffli Ateni

Owner Advtftcei

TntHfer from Rcerricted Cash Rc<er>^

and Eecrowi

OTHER DIS8URSE.MENTS OR TItANSFERS

Treaifiers to Reflrkied Ca<h Rcaenxi

andEfcrowa

PufchaeeofFivcd Aaeta

Rfcm meni of Owner Advancea

Qrtw Pannefihro ExoeMea

Tramfcrt» Ttnaiti Secufift- Dcpwit Accoinn

10.707

61.561

46.415

11.350

79.275

57.765

N« InercaM or fPretraaet m Preicci Account Caih

Prmeet Accotint Ca^ Balance at B^einnirte of Year

Preieci Accenni Cabi Balance al End of Year

Cfltiwiiiimn at Project Aecpunt Caah

ftalaittf al End nf Year

15.2H

I5JI9

30.530

30.530

Caih

IJnfKirietcd Reaetve tif atmlicaWcJ

Dccoraiiat Reeerve
Openiitti Reter\«
Oiher Rcjcfvc

Tfltal Petiv Caeh and UnrHtiined Reservee

Tmal Project Accoihh Caih

ai End afYcar S  30.530
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• WHISPERING PINES II

(FORMERLY: EPPING SENIOR HOUSING ASSOCIATES LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)
(PROIECT No, AI9WI^6)

SCHEDULE OF RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS

PROJECT OPERATING ACCOUKT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY Jl. 2020

SOlUCe OF FUNDS

Rertil Ooeraiioni

Income

Teauil Paid Rem

HAP Rent Subsidy

Total FUnial Income

Servico Income

incrni Income

Commefcial Income

Other Irtcomc

Total Rental Onerations RecciMs

Etacnses

Administrative

UiUitles

Mainletunee

Ifitercst - NHHFA Mort|ft{c Note

Ittteresl • Other Notes

Ccfsenl

Other •

TonI Rental Qnetatiotts Disbursements

Cntfi PiPvidH K' Rftnal Qnemtions

Amofiiniion ofMortgaec

Cnsh Pros tdeti h\ Reaul Operations

After Debt Sets ice

S MS.gtl

22.961

2:27}

U

1.466

45.446

42.44S

iS.JSI

6.921

33.87S

6.095

S  171.842

175.597

(166.044)

9.55)

J.458

OTHER RECEIPTS

Due lo Manwctncnl AeetH

P\>tm AijiYIWgl
Triftsfet from Restricted Cnh Rcset>w

fwfi

OTHER DISBURSEMlLVrS OR TR.4NSFERS

Transfers to Restricted Cash Reief%ei

atid Escroui

PiHchise of Fixed Aiscts

Ream tisent of 0»nef Ad*-atKCS

Other PartirershtB Eanetises

Trwsfcrs to Tenant SecutiK- Deposit Aceooni

; i).79n

50.659

4).739

36.861

43.739

Net Increase or (Decrease) in Protect Account Cash

Pmteet Account Cnh Balance at Betinntni of Year

Protect AccQcinl Cash Balance at End of Year

(3.413)

U.732

15.319

Comnmitkm of Pmieei Accoont Cash

Balance at Fnd of Year 15.319

P«" t^-ash

Unrestricted Reserve (if aeoltctble)

Deconiint Reserve
Opentiai Rcsene

Other Reser%-e

Total Petty Cash and Unrestricted Reser^-cs

Tottl Protect Accoimt Cash

atEadofYeat I5JI9
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WHISPERING PINES II

(FORMERLY: EPPING SENIOR HOUSING ASSOCIATES LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)
(PROJECTNo. A199991-046)

SCHEDULE OF RESTRICTED CASH RESERVES AND ESCROWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31.2021

Descripcion of Fund Deposits

Transfers

Balance From

Beginning of Operations

Period Accouni

Interest

Withdrawals

Transfers to

Operations

Account

Balance

End of

Period

Restricted Accounts:

Insurance Escrow

Ta.\ Escrow

Replacement Reserve

Operating Reserve

2.791 $ • 7.840 $

8,531 28,375

40,591 10,200

79,253

7  5 7,727 $

21 31.699

29,14263

120

2,911

5,228

21,712

79,373

Total Restricted Cash

Reserves and Escrows S 131.166 S 46.415 S 211 S 68.568 S 109,224

SCHEDULE OF SURPLUS CASH CALCULATION

JULY 31,2021

NET LOSS

ADD: DEPRECIATION

DEDUCT REQUIRED PRINCIPAL REPAYMENTS

DEDUCT REQUIRED PAYMENTS TO

REPLACEMENT RESERVES

ADD/DEDUCT NHHFA APPROVED ITEMS

Repair and Maintenance Expenses Reimbursed Through Replacement Reserves

SURPLUS CASH (DEFICIT)

S  (13,998)

16,421

6,312

10,200

29,142

$  15,053
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WHISPERING PINES II

(FORMERLY; ERRING SENIOR HOUSING ASSOCIATES LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)
(PROJECTNo. AI9999I-046)

YEAR-TO-DATE COMPILATION OF OWNERS' FEE/DlSTRIffUTION

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31,2021

YEAR

MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE

DISTRIBUTION

DISTRIBUTION

RECEIVED BALANCE

243,855

12/31/2002 $ 243.855 S S 487,710

12/31/2003 S 243,855 $ 5.895 s 725.670

12/31/2004 -s 243,855 s 7,200 s 962,325

12/31/2005 s 243,855 s _ s 1,206,180

12/31/2006 $ 243,855 s 6.120 $ 1,443,915

12/31/2007 s 243,855 % S 1,687,770

\in\i2m s 243,855 % s 1,931,625

12/31/2009 s 243.855 s $ 2,175,480

12/31/2010 s 243,855 $ s 2,419,335

12/31/2011 $ 243,855 s $ 2.663,190

12/31/2012 $ 243,855 s s 2,907,045

12/31/2013 s 243,855 $ 7,200 s 3,143,700

12/31/2014 % .  243,855 s s 3,387.555

12/31/2015 s 243,855 $ s 3,631,410

7/31/2016 s 142.249 s s 3^773.659

7/31/2017 s 243,855 s s 4.017,514

7/31/2018 s 243,855 s s 4,261.369

7/31/2019 $ 243,855 s s 4,505.224

7/30/2020 $ 243,855 s $ 4.749.079

7/30/2021
y

$ 243,855 s - s 4,992,934

. t
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J.B.MILETTE MANOR

(FORMERLY: J.B. MILETTE LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

JULV 3i;202l AND2020

ASSETS

2021 2Q20

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash - Operations
Prepaid Expenses

S 17,999

9,077
S 19,889

9,178

Total Current Assets 27,076 29,067

DEPOSITS HELD IN TRUST, FUNDED

Tenant Security Deposits 16,746 16,316

RESTRICTED DEPOSITS AND FUNDED RESERVES .

Replacement Reserve

Operating Reserve
Tax Escrow

99,929

70,015

6,552

84,264

69,966

6,548

Total Restricted Deposits and Funded Reserves 176,496 160.778

RENTAL PROPERTY

Land

Building and Building Improvements
176,000

1.157,330
176,000

1,157,330

Total Rental Property
Less Accumulated Depreciation

1,333,330

153,032

1,333,330

121,276

Net Rental Property 1,180498 1.212,054

TOTAL ASSETS S 1,400,616 s 1,418,215

UA BIUTfES A ND NET A SSE TS

CURRENT LUBILITIES

Accounts Payable
Accrued Expenses

S 2,203
1,081

$ 2,908

714

Total Current Liabilities 3,284 3,622

DEPOSIT LIABILITIES

Tenant Security Deposit Liability 16,763 16,332

LONG-TERM LIABIUTIES

' Due to AfTlIiate

Mortgage Loan Payable. Net of Current Portion
49,710

1,170,000

45,834

1.170,000

Total Long-Term Liabilities 1419,710 1,215.834

Total Liabilities 1439,757 1,235.788

NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS 160,859 182.427

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS s 1,400,616 s 1.418,215
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J.B.MILETTE MANOR

(FORMERLY; J.B. MILETTE LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)

STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JULY 31, 2021 AND 2020

2021 2020

RENTAL OPERATIONS

Income

Tenant Rental Income S  206368 ̂ $  209,157
Laundr)'Income 1,527 1.355

Other Income - 150

Interest Income • Unrestricted 15 21

Interest Income • Restricted 118 124

Total Income 208,228 210,807

Expenses (See Schedule)

Administrative 53312 60.452

. Utilities 61,643 59,251

Maintenance 48,666 66,329

Depreciation 31,755 31,397
General Expenses 34,420 32.437

Total Expenses 229,796 249,866

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS (21368) (39.059)

NET ASSETS - BEGINNING OF YEAR 182,427 221.486

NET ASSETS - END OF YEAR $  160,859 S  182,427

J
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J.B.MILETTE MANOR

(FORMERLY: J.B. MILETTE LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)

SCHEDULES OF RENTAL OPERATIONS EXPENSES

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JULY 31,2021 AND 2020

EXPENSES; 2021 2O20

/^dminislratlve

Advertising S $  25

Management Fees 17,688 17,688

Salaries and Wages 27,751 28,918

Fringe Benefits 3,582 8,636

Legal Expenses 20 446

Telephone 1,446 1352

Other Administrative Expense 2,825 3387

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSE 53312 60,452

Utilities

Electricity 33,466 32,400

Fuel 14,900 15,602

Water and Sewer 11,865 10.067

Other Utility Expense 1,412 1,182

TOTAL UTILITY EXPENSE 61,643 59.251

Maintenance-

Custodial Supplies 1,115 689

Trash Removal 2,862 2,617

Snow Removal 7,971 4.170

Elevator Repairs and Contract 6,238 6;047

Repairs (Materials) 26,098 48,763

Repairs (Contract) 4,382 4,043

TOTAL MAINTENANCE EXPENSE 48,666 66329

Pepre^iation 31,755 31397

C>ener{t|

Real Estate Taxes 22,098 20.974

Payroll Taxes 2,121 2,225

Workman's Compensation 1.120 827

Retirement Benefits 645 -  .

Insurance 8,436 8,411

TOTAL GENERAL EXPENSES 34,420 32,437

TOTAL EXPENSES S  229.796 $  249.866
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J.B. MiLETTE: MANOR

(FORMERLY. J,B. MILETTE LIMITED PARTNERSH1P»

SCHEDULE OF RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS
PROJECT OPERATING ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY ) 1. 2021

SOURCE OF FUNDS

RfBMl Qocfationi

IfKome

TcuM Ptid Rent

HAP Rcflt SaMid)

Toal Rcnol Income

Scnke Income

liuemi Income

CommmU iBcome

OtherIneocnc

Toal Renal OpemlkiM Reccioti

Etoenirt

Adminbtrem-e

Utilities'

Mainleaance

Inleml • NHHFA Mortgatc Note

Interest • Other Notes

General

Other

Tanl Renal Onefaiions Qiihunements

Cash Provided M- RctuI Qoenitlons

AmmiiTatlanflfMoitme

CMh Prw-ided fteatal Qpcattona

After Debt Sers kc

S  116.697

19.171

1.527

13

52.844

61,643

49.371

34.420

S  206.568

208.110

(198.278)

9.832

9.832

OTHER RECEIPTS

DoetoMimteementAeenl

Owner Advances

Tnnsf«?r from R«trklfd Cash Reserxes

tnti EWf9)*l

OTHER DISBURSEMENTS OR TRANSFERS

Tansfers to Restrrcied Cash Resers-cs

arwlEserowi

PurchaaeofFwetl Awets

Reravmeiit ofOw tter Advances

Other Pirtnershm Etnernw

Transfers IP Tcnam Security Deptwii Accotint

3.876

15.600

(21

3.876

15.598

Net Increase or tPecrctsel in Protect Acctwm Cash

Proieci Account Cash Balapce at Beainninc of Year
Prweci Accotmt Cash Balance at End of Year

CnmfMMition of Protect Account Cash

BatinceatEnd ofYetr

(1.890)

19.889

17.999

17.999

Pffl^-Cash

Uniettricied Reserve (if tpoltciblc)

DccomUt Reserve

Operaiiflf Reserve
Other Reserve

Total Petty Carh and Unrestricted Reserves

Toal Praiect Account Cash

it End of Year S  17.999
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JB. Ml I.ETTE MANOR

(FORMERLY, i B MiLETTE LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)

SCHEDULE OF RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS

PROJECT OPERATING ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31. 2020

SOURCE OF FUNDS

RfMlOoefXtefw

Iftcpme

Teowii Paid Rciv

hlAP Rent Sub$id>'

Tool Rgnul Intomt

S<n'iccliKon«

lotctnt locanw

CofflmercttI Isconw

Other Income

Tottl RctoI Qpcf tiont Rettk/i

ISDSSSSi
Adminiscntive

Ulilkiet

Mauuensnce

Intereai • NHhIFA Monp^e Note
Interest • Other Notes

Cenertl

Other

S  IM.73d

2M2I

U55

21

ISO

62.467

S9.2SI

W,776

32.437

Tatil Renal Ot»er«ioiw DistHiraemeim

C«h Pros idfd M- Rentil Oecntiofu

Amanintioti ofMorteite

Ce^li Prm idcd bv Rentil Qpfrnions

After Debt S<f\ icg

OTHER RECEIPTS

Dae to Menaeement Aeent

(Xmer Advances

Transfer from Reetrkicd Cish Reserves

artd Escrows

OnieR DISBURSEMENTS OR TRANSFERS

Transfer! lo Restricted Cash Reserses

■nd Escross!

PwchttenfFnetl Asset!
Rents mem of Os»Tscr Advances

Other Piftnershio Expenses
Transfen » Tentnt Seciiriis- Deootrt Accowrw

217

1)2.474

13,600

13.955

5  209.157

2I0.6S3

(2JI.93I)
(t.24|)

(t.24|)

112.691

I0IJ55

Net Incrette oflDecitascl In Praleci Aceown Ctsh
Pmieel Accocnl Cish Balince ii Beelnnint of Yew
Pretccl Aceouni Cish Balance tt End nf Year

Cofraosition af Project Accocnt Cash
Bilincett End af Year

PrmCfth

Unrestricted Reserve I if teolicaMcl
Decorating Reserve
OpcraiiHg Resersc
Other Reserve

2.m
17.001
I9.IS9

I9.tt9

Total Petty Cash and Unrestricted Reserves

Totit Project Accoimt Cash
at End of Year S  19.119
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J.B.MILETTE MANOR

(FORMERLY: J.B. MILETTE LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)

SCHEDULE OF RESTRICTED CASH RESERVES AND ESCROWS

.  FORTHEYEARENDEDJULY3I,2021

Description of Fund

Balance

Beginning of
Period

Dgposits

Transfers

From

Operations

. Account

Interest

Earned

Withdrawals

Transfers to

OperBtions
Account

Balance

End of

Period

Restricted Accounts:

Tax Escrow

Replacement Reserve

Operating Reserve

$  6,548 $

'84,264 15.600

69,966

4  S

65

■49

S  6.552

99,929

70,015

Total Restricted Cash
Reserves and Escrows S 160,778 $ 15,600 $ 18

SCHEDULE OF SURPLUS CASH CALCULATION

JULY 31.202I

S  176,496

NET LOSS

ADD: DEPRECIATION

DEDUCT REQUIRED PRINCIPAL REPAYMENTS

DEDUCT REQUIRED PAYMENTS TO ^
REPLACEMENT RESERVES

add/deduct NHHFA APPROVED ITEMS
Repair and Maintenance Expenses Reimbursed Through Replacement Reserves

SURPLUS CASH (DEFICIT)

(21,568)

31,755

15,600

S  (5,413)
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SHERBURNE WOODS

(FORMERLY: SNHS DEERFIELD ELDERLY HOUSING LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)
(PROJECT No. HAP PBA 901-02-05)

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

JULY 31. 202) AND 2020

ASSETS

2021 2020

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash - Operations
Prepaid Expenses

S 80,916 '

7,851

$ 100,810

7,936

Total Current Assets 88,767 108,746

DEPOSITS HELD IN TRUST, FUNDED

Tenant Security Deposits 15,517 14,871

RESTRICTED DEPOSITS AND FUNDED RESERVES

Replacement Reserve *
Operating Reserve
Tax Escrow

Insurance Escrow

Total Restricted Deposits and Funded Reserves

180,572

- 67,945

6,707

3,046

258,270

153.325

67,842

5.927

■  3,480
230,574

RENTAL PROPERTY

Land

Building and Building Improvements
Total Rental Property
Less Accumulated D^reciatlon

211,000

907^00

1,118,200

75,935

211,000

907,200

1.118,300

52,355

Net Rental Property 1,042,265 1,065.845

TOTAL ASSETS $ 1,404,819 S 1,420.036

LIABIUTIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Current Portion of Mortgage Loan Payable

Accounts Pa>-able
Accrued Expenses

s 17,642

2,214

38

s 16,453

370

Total Current Liabilities 19,894 16,823

DEPOSIT LIABILITIES

Tenant Security Deposit Liability 15,467 14,822

LONG-TERM LUBIUTIES

Due to Affiliate

Mortgage Loan Payable. Net of Current Portion
94.862

851,614
133,513

869,248

Total Long-Term Liabilities 946,476 1,002.761

Total Liabilities 981,837 1,034,406 .

NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS 422,982 385,630

TOTAL LUBILITIES AND NET ASSETS $ 1,404,819 s 1,420,036
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SHERBURNE WOODS

(FORMERLY: SNHS DEERFIELD ELDERLY HOUSING LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)
(PROJECTTNo. HAP PBA 901-02-05)

STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES

2021 2020

RENTAL OPERATIONS

Income

Tenant Rental Income S  266,018 S  250,537

Laundr>' Income 2,670 2,545

Other Income 1,290 1,084

Interest Income • Unrestricted 53 68

Interest Income - Restricted 370 2420

Total Income 270,401 256,554

Expenses (See Schedule)

Administrative 29,567 44,581

Utilities 34,566 33,892

Maintenance 89426 68443

Depreciation 23480 . 23,580

Iniere^ - NHHFA Mortgage Note 23,473 24,582

General Expenses 32437 34,005

Total Expenses 233,049 228.883

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 37452 27,671

NET ASSETS - BEGINNING OF YEAR 385,630 357,959

NET ASSETS - END OF YEAR S  422,982 S  385,630
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SHERBURNE WOODS

(FORMERLY: SNHS DEERFIELD ELDERLY HOUSING LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)
(PROJECT No. HAP PBA 901-02-05)

SCHEDULES OF RENTAL OPERATIONS EXPENSES

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JULY 31. 2021 AND 2020

EXPENSES: 2021 2O20

Advertising S  25 S 150

Management Fees 18,000 18,000

Salaries and Wages 1,909 16,085

Fringe Benefits 104 4,911

Legal Expenses 284 -

Telephone 2J72 2399

Oiher'Administraiive Expense 6,873 3,136

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSE 29367 44,581
Utilities

Electricity 20,810 20399
Fuel 7386 9.276
Water and ScNvcr 4339 2.425

Other Utility Expense 1331 1,892

TOTAL UTILITY EXPENSE 34366 33.892

Maintcnanqp

Custodial Supplies > - 121

Trash Removal 2,789 3.170

Snow Removal 28,761 21,724

Repairs (Materials) 37318 43,228
Repairs (Contract) 20358 -

TOTAL MAINTENANCE EXPENSE -89326 68343

Depf^lation 23380 23.580

Interest - NHHFA Mortifa^e Note 23,473 24.582

Oenerai E:^pcn5es

Real Estate Taxes 26,926 26,673
Payroll Taxes 146 1337
Workman's Compensation 105 788

Retirement benefits 144 276

Insurance 5,216 5.031

TOTAL GENERAL EXPENSES 32337 34,005

TOTAL EXPENSES $  233^049 S 228.883
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SHERBURNE WOODS

(FORMERLY; SNKS DEERF1ELD ELDERLY HOUSI!^ LIMITED PARfNERSHIPl
(PROJECT Mo. HAP PBA 90I-02-0S)

SCHEDULE OF REITEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS

PROJECT OPERATING ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31. 2021

SOI RCC OF FUNDS

ECDULQCEQliSffi

lnc<m>c

Tcnui Piid Rest

HAP Rent Subsidy-

Total Rtnul Inconw

Serrice incone

hNercst locooK

Commeicol Incoroe

Other Income

Totil Rcfflil OorraiiflfM Receinti

Exnemea

AdmtnoUilive

Utilities

Ltetmenance

iBtcrcsi • NHHFA Mertftie Note

ismrsi - Other Note*

Gcarral

Other

Tout Rontal (3aef«iioor Dkfaonemeaa

Cash Pfoeidcd tw' RctWil Qoerjtioits

Anwiintion of Morttue

Cash Prm ided bs- Rental Oocfntiofti

After Debt Scn ict

S  12).'>I9

M2i29

2.670

53

1.290

29.444

J4.566

t7.4t2

23.473

32.537

16.445

S  266.011

270.031

(207..M)2)

62.529

46.014

OTHER RECEIPTS

PuctoManaeemcntAftflt

Ow ner Advances

Transfer rrem Restricted Casti Resers-cs

and Escrows

OTHER DISBURSEMENTS OR TR.\NSFCRS

Transfers to Resirtcicd Cash Reserves

indEKrgyi

Puiehase nfPhed Assett

RenarttKat ofOwirer Advaoees

Qthrr Partnership Expenses

Tratafm to Tenaai Securtts- Dertosh Accoant

32.642

59.961

31.651

32.642

91.620

Net Increase or tPecreasel in Praiect Amnmt Cash

Prmecr Aecoonf Cash Balance at Beamtimt of Year

Proieci AccoBRl Cath Balance at End of Year

ComwwitiQfi of Project AccotwW Cash

BiltncTPlE/xlgfYnf

(19.1941

ioo.iio

10.916

10.916

Unrestricted Reserve tif aorttcabtt I

Decondi^ Rcscrsc

Opcralinf Reufxe

Other Reserve

Tod Petty Cash end Unrestricted Reserves

Tool Profeci Aecount Cash

ai End nf Year 5  10.916
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SH£IIBURNE WOODS

tFORMERLY: SNHS OEERFIELD EtOERLY HOUSING LIMITED RARTKERSHin

(PROJECT No. HAP PBA 901-02-05)

SCHEDULE Of RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS

PROIECr OPERATING ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY J I. 2020

SOI RCE OF n?sOS

RfttBl Owfft'oni

Intwne

Tcmni P>id Rent

HAP Rent Sut»id\-

Tool Renal Ihcook

S«Tvkc Incevne

J Merest lacome

CoBKnacbl Income

Other Income

Totil Remil Qpmiions RecriHti

Eveeiwes

Adminotniive

Uliliiin

Miiaienence

lilercsl • NHHFA Monf»|e Note
I aicmt - Other Notes

Oeaenl

Other

Totil Rentsi Oncrittorti Dirbursementi

Cnh Prmided h\- Rerwst Qnemiionr

Amonfcmk>wofMott«>te

Ctih Prm ideil b\ Remil Opermiofw

After Debt SeT\ ice

S  115.921

156.616

2.545

6t

I.0S4

46J9]

}).I92

72.11)

24.512

34.005

15.))7

S  250.5)7

254.234

|2l0.9t5)

43.249

27.912

OTHER RCCeiPTS

Put la Mutteemeirt Aeent

OwTCT Advsnccs

Tnaifer ftom Rettrictcd Ctih Reserves

OTHER DI5BURSCME.VTS OR TR.A.\5FXRS

Tisnsrers to Rertrictcd C«h Reserxet

iwd Escfor^t

PurchaicofFixed Airen

Retm-mmt ofO^rrer Advsftees

Otto PmiKTshtB Expcmrt

Tramfcn lo Tenant Secuntx- Dettoai Aecoent

37.340

5S.i54

(2.091)

(1)

37.340

56.072

Net Incfcue or tDeeiMMl w Prorecl Accoani Csrh

Prwsi AW") CbH BtliPtt II Bfltipqitt of
Prciect Account Cesh Bilanee tl End of Yeir

9. HO

91.630

iOOJtO

CotnoQfitwn of Proicci Account Cash

BsltneetlEnil of Year lOO.tlO

PctnCtsh

Unrwirrctfd RcrcrvcfifsopticiMc)

Dccoruiat Reserve '

Operuiirg Rcscr^ e
Other Resers'c

Tanl Prtfv C«rh ind Unrerlricttfd Reterves

Toal Project Accoont Csrh

itEndofYcsr S  lOO.tIO
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SHERBURNE WOODS

(FORMERLY: SNHS DEERFiELD ELDERLY HOUSING LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)
(PROJECTNo. HAP PBA 901-02-05)

SCHEDULE OF RESTRICTED CASH RESERVES AND ESCROWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31, 2021

Description of Fund

Balance

Deposits

Transfers

From

Beginning of Operations

Period Account

Interest

Earned

Withdrawals

Transfers to

Operations

Account

Balance

End of

Period

Restricted Accounts:

Insurance Escrow

Tax Escrow

Replacement Reserve

Operating Reserve

3.480 $ 5.219 $

5.927 27.749

153,325 27,000
V

67.842 ,

7  5 5.660 $ 3.046

13 26,982 6,707

247

103

180,572

67,945

Total Restricted Cash

Reserves and Escrows S 230.574 $ 59,968 S 370 $ 32,642 J 258,270

SCHEDULE OF SURPLUS CASH CALCULATION

JULY 31.2021

NET INCOME

ADD: DEPRECIATION

I

DEDUCT REQUIRED PRINCIPAL REPAYMENTS

DEDUCT REQUIRED PAYMENTS TO

REPLACEMENT RESERVES

ADD/DEDUCT NHHFA APPROVED ITEMS

Repair and Maintenance Expenses Reimbursed Through Replacement Reserves

SURPLUS CASH (DEFICIT)

$  37,352

23,580

16,445

27.000

$  47,487
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SHERBURNE WOODS

(FORMERLY: SNHS DEERFIELD ELDERLY HOUSING LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)
(PROJECT No. HAP PBA 901-02-05)

YEAR-TO-DATE COMPILATION OF OWNERS" FEE/DISTRIBUTION

FOR THEYEARENDEDJULY3I.2021

YEAR

MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE

DISTRIBUTION

DISTRIBUTION

RECEIVED BALANCE

12/31/2003 S 113,850 S s 113,850

12/31/2004 S 113,850 s s 227,700

12/31/2005 s 113,850 s s 341,550

12/31/2006 s 113.850 s s 455,400

12/31/2007 s 113,850 s s 569,250

12G1/2008 s 1 13,850 s s 683,100

12/31/2009 s 113.850 s s 796,950

12/31/2010 s 113,850 s s 910,800

12/31/2011 s 113,850 s s 1,024,650

12/31/2012 s 113.850 s s 1,138,500

12/31/2013 s 113,850 s  - s 1.252,350

12/31/2014 s 113,850 s s 1,366,200

12/31/2015 s 113,850 ^ s s 1,480,050

12^0/2016 s 1 13,850 s s 1,593.900

12/30/2017 s 113,850 s s 1.707.750

7/31/2018 s 66.413 s s 1,774,163

7/31/2019 s 113,850 s s 1,888,013

7/30/2020 s 113,850 s s 2,001,863

7/30/2021 s 113,850 s s 2,115,713
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Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc.

Board of Directors

August 2022

Senator Lou D'Allesandro, Chairman

Dr. Kevin Moriarty, Vice Chairman

Thomas Muliins, Esq., Treasurer

Orville Kerr, Secretary

Representative Sherm Packard

Commissioner Toni Pappas

James Brown

Carrie Marshall Gross

Anna Hamel

Bonnie Henault

Wanda Kennerson

German Ortiz

Peter Ramsey



SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC

The Community Action Partnership serving Hlllsborough and Rockingham Counties
Mailing Address: PC Box 5040, Manchester, NH 03108

40 Pine Street, Manchester, NH 03013

Telephone: (603)668-8010 FAX: (603) 645-6734

List of Key Administrative Personnel

Octobe 2022

Title Name Annual Salary Percentage Amount

Chief Executive Officer Donnaiee Lozeau $201,874 0.00% 0

Chief Operation Offtcer Ryan Oouthier $129,511 0.00% 0

Chief Financial Officer James Chaisson $145,200 0.00% 0



DONNALEE LOZEAU

Community/CMc
Involvement- Current

• NH Communitv Action Partnership

• HB4 aiff Effect Working Group,
Co-chair

• Governor's Office for Emergency
Reilef and Rewvery Stakeholders
Advisory Board, Chair

• Whoie Family Approach to Jobs NH

Chapter, Co-chair

• St. Joseph Hospital Board of

Directors, Quality Council Chair
• St. Mary's Bank Supervisory

Committee, Chair

• NH Healthy. Families Board of

Directors

• Mary's House Advisory Board
• The Plus Company

• NH Tomorrow Leadership Council
• Community College System of NH s
• American Council of Young Political

Leaders, Alumni Member

• State Workforce Innovation Board

Communlty/CMc

Involvement- Past

• Reaching Higher NH

• NH Center for Public Policies

Studies

• Governor's Judicial Selection

Commission

• Big Brothers Big Sisters Board of

Directors, Past President

• Greater Nashua Dental Connection

. BOO, Founding Member

• Great American Downtown,

Founding Member

• Domestic Violence Coordinating

Council Nashua

• US Conference of Mayors
• No Labels

• Fix the Debt

• NH Center for Public Policy Studies

« Greater Nashua Chamber of

Commerce, Director

• Greater Nashua Workforce

Housing Coalition, Founding

Member

EXPERIENCE

Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. (www.SNHS.org}

Manchester, NH (January 201S-Present)

Chief Executive Officer

• Development and oversight of Community Action Partnership serving
NH's two largest counties, Hitlsborough and Rockingham

• Cooperation and engagement with local, state and federal agencies and
organizations on issues and programs that intersect with the
Community Action Mission

• Work to fundamentally enhance the deUvcry of service to targeted
community to vvrap services around clients and streamline the

-' application process by implementing the Whole Family Approach

CitY of Nashua, New Hampshire (2008-2016) - Elected

Mayor

• Full time overall day to day management and operations of 2nd largest
city in the state of NH with development and implementation of $245
million dollar (2016) annual budget

• Worked with elected boards including Board of Aldermen; Public
Works; Board of Education and others to prioritize and balance budget
requirements and the needs of the community

• Chaired Board of Public Works and the Finance Committee

• Successfully negotiated the City's purchase of the publicly traded
water company (Pennlchuck) after a prolonged case before the NHPUC
and the NH Supreme Court

Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. (1993 - 2008) Manchester, NH

Director of Program and Community Development

• Assessed the need for services throughout Hillsborou^ County
through community outreach by developing partnerships,
collaborations and rvew initiatives with service providers and
businesses

• Negotiated purchases and contracts and presented projects before
local boards, commissions and departments relative to housing,
support services and economic deveiopn^nt

• Designed and implemented strategies for developing working
relationships with town and city officials, local service providers and
appropriate private sector officials in order to project a positive image
of Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc.

• Founded Mar/s House 40 units of housing for homeless women and
developed 219 units of Elderly Housing

• Pioneered initiatives for the Community Corrections and Academy
Programs

• Expanded Head Start Services and developed the program and secured
the site for Economic Opportunity Center



Past Community/CMc
tnvotvement Continued

• Greater Na^ua Asset Building
Coalition, Founding Member

• New Hampshire Charitable
Foundation State Board,

Member

• Eagle Board of Review

Education and Training

• CCAP, Certified Communltv

Action Professional

• CCAP Proctor

• Riyler College, Nashua-
Undergraduate work in Political
Science

• Restaurant Management

Institute

• Mediation and Alternative

Dispute Resolution Training
• Leadership Institute, Aspen

• Justice of the Peace

NH State Representative, Hm$t>orough County, District 30
(1984-2000hElected

Deputy Speaker of the NH House of Representatives.
(1996-2000)

• Addressed constituent concerns

• Assisted NoivProfit organizatbns and local businesses with governmental
concerns and steering legislation through the political process by working with
members and leadership in the NH House of Representatives and the NH
Senate and representatives of the Executive and Judicial branches

• Managed floor debates and supervised House Calendar content

• Responsible for functions of the House on behalf of or in the absence of the
Speaker

Committee Assignments:

« HouM Rules Committee, Vice Chairman

• House Legislative Administration Committee

• Joint Facilities Committee

• New Member Orientation. Chair

• House Corrections and Criminal Justice Committee, Vice Chairman

• House Judkiary Committee

• Criminal Justice Sub-Committee, Chairman

• State and Federal Relations Committee

Appointments:

• Joint Legislative Performance Audit and Oversight Committee

• Juvenile Justice Commission, Chairman

• Supreme Court Guardian Ad Litem Committee

• Superior Court Alternative Dispute Resolution Committee

• Work Force Opportunity Council

• Interbranch Criminal and Juvenile Justice Council

•  Subcommittee oh Offenders, Chairman
•  Space and Prison Programming ^
•  Juveniles Subcommittee, Co-Chair

• National Conference of State Legislatures Law and Justice. Vice Chair

• Council of State Governments Intergovernmental Affairs, Corrections and
Publk Safety

City Streets Restaurant, (1986-1991)

City Streets Diner, (2000 - 2003) Nashua, NH Co-Owner/Operator

• Operated 4S0 seat restaurant and banquet facility and effectively managed
financial accounts, staff and Ikensing requirements



RYAN I
CLOUTHIER

0 OBJECTIVE

Seeking i leaderd)ip role which will alioiv me ihe opponuncty lo utilize and build upon my knowledge and
passion for the work performed by Community Action Agencies in the state of New Hampshire, while at the
same time being the support and strength for the Communities we serve.

EXPERIENCE

CbiefOperaling Omcei^ Sotithera New Hampshire Services Inc.
FEB. 2018-PRESEKT

Serving as pert of the Executive Management Team and is responsible for providing in^siring leadership to the
Southern New Hampshire Services (SNHS) senior manigemcm team and developing a perfonnance culture to
ensure the effective management of a comprehensive array of over sixty programs. The Chief Operatii^ Officer
will lie the varicxis component ptograms Including: nutrition: housing: energy: workforce development: income
enhancement; education; and elderly services to the agency, to each other, and to the geT>eTal community, by
protnoting and commuaksting the mission of Community Aaion. In conjunaion widt the Chief Executive
Omccr and Fiscal OfTicer the Chief Operating Olticcr provides the stewardship of SNHS by being actively
involved with the agettcy's high-performance senior leadership team in the development, implementation, end
management of the program content as well as annual budgets. Responsible for ensuring that services and
programs provided fulfill the agency's mission, and arc in compliance uiih all federal, state, funding, and city
regulations. certifKBiions, and licensing requirements.

Energy and Housing Operations nireclor) Southern .New Hampshire Services inc.
2016 - 2018

Responsible for providing the various SNHS Energy and Crisis programs, Information Technology, Housing and
Maintenance programs with mission, vision and leadership. Responsible for the planning, implementation, and
evaluation of all hKets of fiscal and prt>gram management, cfTectiveness while providing general overaight for all
of die program's adminbtration and day-to*day management, including budget management, grant writing and
purchasing. Also responsible for maintaining a wotking relationship with governmental oFTiciab, local boards
and agencies In developing and managing the programs. In conjunaion with the Executive Director and Fiscal
OfTicer ihb positions provi^ the stewardship of SNHS by being aaively involved with the agency's high-
performance senior leadership team (n the development, implementation, and management of program content as
well as annual budgas. Responsible for ensuring that services and programs provided fulfitl the agency's
mission and art in compliance with all federal, sute. funding, city, cenificaiions, and licensing rcquiitments

Energy Director | Southern New Hampshire Scrsices Inc.
2013-2016

Responsible for coordination, implementaiioo. budgeting, overall supervision and management of the Fuel and
Electric Assistance Programs. Crisb Programs, Wesdierizaiion Progyam. Lead Hazard Control Program, and
YouthBuild Program for Hillsborough and Rockin^am Counties. Develop and Maintain relationships with
federal state and local gramors. InterveiK on behalf of the Community Aaion pertaining to the Core Utility
Weaiherizaiion Energy Efficiency Programs. Maintains a strong working relationships with OCA. NH Legal
Assistance, Office of Strategic Initiative, DOE. Liberty Utilities. Eveisource, NHEC. Uniiil, NHHFA, NREL.
Apprise and other local non-prtrfit and private companies In the industry. Participates in multiple Healthy Home
strategic planning committees.

WeatherfzatioD Director | Southern New llamp.shlre Services Inc.
2006-20I.T

Responsible for coordination, implementation, budgaing. overall supervision and monogcmcni of the
Wesiberization. Lead Abatement, and YouthBuild Programs for Hillsborough and Rockingham Counties.
Developed and Maintain relationships with federal, state and local grantors. Intervened on behalf of the
Community Aaion Association during the merge of Liberty Energy and National Grid Gas along with filings
pertaining to the Core Energy Efficiency Programs. Developed strong working relationships with OCA. NH



Legal Assistance, Office of Energy tttd Planning. DOE. Liberty Energy. Evcisource. NHEC, Uniiil, NHHFA,
NREL, Apprise and other local non-profii and private companies in the industry. Served on the Department of
Energy special task force designed to implement a National Best Practices Manual for JTA/KSA for
Weatberization EiKrgy Auditor Certification. Panicipaicd in a "One Touch" pilot eltort which became a
stfl^ide practice and has received national recognition

Energy Audilor | Soutfafrn Nen Hampshire Scr\'lces Inc.
2004-2006

Responsible for performing field energy audits of low income residential properties; record the data in written
and computerized formats to determine cost ciTectivcness of conservation measures needed; generate work order
specs for the contractors. Conduct proper follow dirough and field inspections to assure quality installations and
client saiisfftction.

o

Nfrivork Anah'st | Cenulty
2004 - 2006

Responsible for monitoring the Genuity Dial up network supporting AOL Domestic and Intenjationa! subscribers
including Japan, USA and Canada. Responsibilities include isolating and troubleshooting problems/outage and
configuration issues, on different types of Cisco routers. Lucent APX's, M.AX's. and Nortel CVX's.
Troubleshooting consistsof isolatingproblems through head to head testing with dilTercni Tclco's. Also
responsible for creating, troubleshooting, and closing tickets in a group ticketing queue. Demonstrated strengths
in ̂ e areas of interpersonal skills and negotiation.

EDUCATION

2000 NH Community Technical College
1994.1998: Dover High School
Other: Weaiherizaiion written and field certification. Department of Energy Quality Control Inspector
Certification, multiple national and regional •wcatherization best practices trainings. Intro to Cisco routers, T1 and
T3 design and troubleshooting training. ATM and Frame Relay network design training. LAN and WAN
training, 0C3. OC48. and OC192 design and troubleshooting training. BP! Energy Analyst Lead contractor
abatement Cenincation. RRP certification. OSHA 30 hour worker safety. DOE Lead Safe Weatheriaiion
certification.

SKILLS

Problem solving
New Business Development

Social Media

Public Speaking

Data Analysis/Analytical thinking
Strategic Planning
Operations Management
Contract Negotiations

'Team and Relationship building
Planning and forecasting

Budget and Financial management
Leadership
Community Assessment

Computer skills specific to job include,
TREAT. NEAT, OTTER, FAP/EAP

Microsoft 365. PowerPoint, Outlook,

Word. Excel. Web. EmpowOR and CSST
and many others that can be bencfictal.

ACnvmES/ACCOMPLISHMENTS
•  Numerous press articles related to Wcaiherizittion including visits from the Assistant Secreury of Energy

Efficiency from the Department of Energy and Vice President Joe Biden.
•  Member of the City of Nashua Healthy Homes Strategic Planning Committee.
•  MemberofiheCityofManchesier Healthy Homes Strategic Planning Committee.
•  Union Leader 40 under 40 Class of 20IS.

•  Vice President of the Neighbor hetping Neighbor Board.
•  Member of the Energy Efficiency arid Sustainable Energy Board.
•  Member of the Residential Ratepayera Advisory Board.



JAMES M. CHAISSON

SUMMARY

Dedicated accounting professional with 8 years of non-profit experience and over 20 years of broad
experience in manufacturing, distribution, reorganizations, mergers and acquisitions, sales/operations
planning/forecasting and establishing & monitoring performance metrics in a manufacturing environment.
Experienced In private and public corporations, including 8 years in a private equity environment with a strong

focus on equity sponsor communication and liquidity management. Complete knowledge of P&L, balance
sheet, cash flow and cost accounting. Proven skills at staff leadership, training and development in a team
environment. Professional Experience:
•  Fiscal Officer in nonprofit organization

•  Controller in MFC & Distribution

•  Treasury and Cash Flow Management

•  Financial & Capital Budgeting, Reporting & Control

•  Cost Accounting Manager

•  General Accounting Manager

•  Business Performance Metric Establishment and Measurement -•

PROFESSIONAL EXPEIRENCE

r

Southern New Hampshire Services, Manchester, NH 5/2009-Present
Southern New Hampshire Services (SNHS) is a non-profit entity dedicated to helping people help themselves.

SNHS accomplishes this through a variety of programs offered at centers, offices, dinlcs. and Intake sights
located throughout Rockingham and Hillsborough counties. The agency also oversees 29 housing facilities

with approximately 1000 tenants. SNHS receives and administers $36 million In program funds annually with
over 450 employees.

Chief Fiscal Officer 1/2017 to Present

•  Oversee financial and accounting compliance, maintaining controls and managing potential business

risks

• Manage the annual budget process and analysis activities

•  Prepare presentation For Board of Directors meetings presenting the organization's financial results

•  Develop and maintain banking relationships

• Manage the Annual Audit process

Senior Accountant^ 5/2009-1/2017
Assisted Fiscal Director In overseeing alt fiscal and financial activities Including compliance with federal, state,
and funding source requirements as well as accordance with GAAP

•  Developed and Implemented indirect cost calculation and Interfaced with General Ledger

• Monitored and prepared monthly budget vs actual reporting; recommended adjustments and forecast
spending

•  Created specialized reports for the individual grant's reporting requirements

•  Designed allocation methods for properly billing shared Items to individual grants and programs
•  Prepared monthly agency program reviews for Fiscal Director's Board of Directors review



James M. ChalS5on

WOOD STRUCTURES, INC. BIddeford, ME 2001-4/2009
WSI, Is 3 highly leveraged business owned by Roark Capital, a private equity furrd, headquartered In Atlanta,
GA. WSI Is a $70 million manufacturer of roof and floor trusses, wall panels and a distributor of engineered
wood products. The company's products are sold Into the residential arid light commercial construction
markets

Controller 2006-4/2009
Managed all aspects of accounting and reporting in a truss manufacturing plant as well as an engineered wood
products distribution location that included 2 locations in Maine and l In Massachusetts.
•  Calculated and assisted In the management of the company's covenants

• Worked closely with senior management during the sale process from the seller {Harbour Group) and
buyer (Roark Capital)

•  Identified cost drivers and implemented process changes to reduce the monthly closing cycle from 18
to 5 days

•  Conducted monthly reviews with the managers on financial results and measurement

•  Oversaw the payroll function of 160^ employees

Aeeountlnd Monaaer 2001-2006

Recruited to company to restore financial controls and establish best practices concerning both general ledger
and cost accounting processes. Responsible for overseeing the accounting of 2 locations in Maine and 1 in
Alabama.

•  Established the reporting protocols of the company used by both equity sponsors
•  Educated, motivated and developed a staff of 3 to succeed in their rolls of financial responsibility
•  Identified and implemented processes and procedures for all intercompany sales, transfers,
.  consolidation and eliminations

•  Streamlined the payroll process that included transferring to an external supplier (AOP), which reduced
cost t)y 40%

•  Conducted physical Inventories and defined their policies and procedure at all locations.

VISHAYSPRAGUE,Sanford,ME 1978-2001
Vishay Sprague Is a division of VIshay Intertechnology Inc. (NYSEL VSH) a global manufacturer of discrete
semiconductors and passive electronic components. The Sprague Division manufactures solid tantalum
capacitors with annual sales of $200 million and 1,400 employees.

Plant Cost Accounting Manager

Division General Accounting Manager

Division Operation Accountant

Division Fixed Asset Accountant

Master Snaineerina Technician

Lead Production Technician

1997-2001

1995-1997

1989-1995

1987-1989

1984-1987

1978-1984

EDUCATION

NASSON COLLEGER, Sprlngvale, ME

B.S. In Business Administration
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
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Febojary 15,2022
His ExceDency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honoratrio Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301
REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division of Long Term Supports
and Services, to enter Into a memorandum of understanding with the New Hampshire
Department of Energy (Vendor # 359894-BOpi). Concord. New Hampshire, in the amount of
$82,200 for Senior Energy Assistance Services, with the option to renew for up to six (6)
additional years, effective Octot)er 1,2022, or upon Governor and Council approval whichever
Is later, through September 30,2024. 60% Federal Funds. 50% General Funds.

Funds are available In the following account for State Fiscal Year 2023 and are
antWpatod to be available In State Fiscal Years 2024 and 2025. upon the availability and
continued appfopriatlon of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust
budget lir>e Items within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years
through the Budget Office, if needed and justified. ^

0M8-4a481010-7872 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS, HHS: ELDERLY AND ADULT SERVICES, GRANTS TO LOCALS, ADM ON AGING
GRANTS

Stote

Fiscal

Year

Claaa/

Account
Class Title Job Number Total Amount

2023 049-584952
Transfer to Other

State Agency 48130308
$30,625

2024 049-584952
Transfer to Other

State Agency 48130306
$41,100

2025 049-584952
Transfer to Other

State Agency 48130306 "  $10,275

Total $82,200

Tin Dtptrtmmt p/Htallh end Human Striien' Minion it to join nmmunUkt and foMilin
iM proiddlui eppotiunUits for cUUtnt (e orA^ Ktahk end Imdtpendencr.



EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to enter Into a Memorandum of Urulerstandlng with the
New Hampshire Department of Energy (DOE) to provide energy assistance In the form of fuel
oil, electrldty, gas or wood to New Hampshire residents over sixty (60) years of age. The DOE

- is the designated administrator for the statewide Fuel Assistance Program and has the capacity
and expertise to serve the Department's Bureau of Elderly ̂  Adult Services' population of
eligible older adults.

Approximately 152 households wiD be served annually from October 1, 2022 to
September 30, 2024.

The Senior Energy Assistance Program (SEAS) provides energy assistance funds for
Individuals. 60 years of age or oldef, who are over income under the low-income Home Energy
Assistance Program (LINEAR). The goal is to allow individuals to be able to stay In their home.
This assistance win to provided by the DOE to provide support throughout the State. Senior
Energy Assistance Ser^ces (SEAS) assists in the prevention of an energy emergency that is
defined as conditions that pose serious threat to the health and safety of individuals torn ttie
lack of adequate home energy.

The DOE'S performance will be measured by their ability to provide energy assistance to
senior households In acoofdar>ce with the terms of the Memorandum of Understanding as
evidenced by monthly Invoices and reports submitted to the Department. In addition, by May
15th of each State Fiscal Year, the DOE will report to the Department the outcome of client
feedback about the quality of services provided by the DOE.

As referenced in Section 2, Term, Subsection 2.2. of the attached agreement, the parties
have the option to extend the agreement for up to six (6) additional years, contingent upon
saUsfactory delivery of services, avaBable funding, agreement of the parties, and Oovemor and
Council approval.

Should the Oovemor and Council not authorize this request, the assistance provided to
these senior households may to reduced to a level that could jeopardize their ability to remain
In their homes. These energy assistance services allow the elderly to maintain maximum
bidependerice, health and quality of Bfe, which supports the Department's mission for individuals
aged sixty (60) and over to remain In the community.

Area served; Statewide.

Source of Federal FurxJs: Assistance Listing Number #93.044. FAIN #2101NHOASS.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

(7^
Lori A. Shibinette

Commissioner

TfU DtfOrtmtni cfHtatih «nd Huncn. S*n>iett'Miuien u 19 join eommunitut and fomilitt
luprptiidindPfipafUiniliajbreitutna lo athitiMhtaUh end btdtpt»idt*te4.
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MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN
THE STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

AND

N«w Hampshire Department of Energy

1. GENERAL PROVISIONS

1.1. TWs Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) is between the New Hampshire
- Department of Health and Human Services. Division of Long Term Supports and
Services. Bureau of Elderly arx) Adult Services (DHHS), 129 Pleasant Street.
Concord, NH 03301 and the New Hampshire Department of Energy (DOE), 21 South
Fruit Street. Suite. 10. Concord. NH 03301 (referred to as the "Parties').

1.2. The purpose of this MOU is to set forth the roles and responsibilities of the Parties.
The OHHS will provide statewide energy assistance through the Senior Energy
Assistance Services (SEAS) as part of the statewide Fuel Assistance Program (FAR)
BdministGrBd by the DOE; and

1.2.1. The DOE is responsible for the disbursement of the OHHS energy
assistance funds by contracting with the five (5) Community Action
Agencies (CAAs) to carry out the duties of the FAP in New Hampshire
which are Community Action Program of Belknap-Merrimack Counties,
Inc.; Southern New Hampshire Services Inc.; Soulhwostern Community
Services. Inc.; Communily Action Partnership of Strafford County; and
Tti-County Communily Action Program. Inc.; and

1.2 2. The goal of this service is to ensure New Hampshire residents, age sixty
(60) and older, are able lo remain in their homes and communities and
to ensure that the services they receive assist them In remaining
indeperxient; and

1.3. In connection with the performarwe of this MOU. the Parties agree to comply with ail
appficable laws and regulations.

2. TERM

2.1. Effective Date: This MOU is effective October 1. 2022 or upon Governor and
Executive Council approval, whichever is later.

2.2. Duration: The duration of this MOU is from the Effective Date through September 30.
2024. The Parties may extend (he MOU for up to six (6) years upon satisfactory
delivery of services, avaiiablo funding. agrcTKncnt of the parties, and approval of the

( Governor and Executive Oxmcil,

2-3. Modification: The Parties may modify (his MOU by mutual written agreement at any
time, subject to appropriate State approval.

2.4. Termtnatton: Either party may. at its sole discretion, terminate this MOU for any
reason. In whole or in part, by providing thirty (30) days written notice to the other
party. In the event of an early tormination of this MOU for any other reason than the
completion of services, the DOE shall deliver to OHHS. not later than thirty (30) days
after the termir^tion, a Termination Report'.describing in detail all activities performed
and the MOU funds used up lo and Including the date of termination.

{7
MOU-2023-0(.TSS-01-ENERQ P^oiofC UOU-I.O

2/2^/2022
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Memorandum of Understanding Between DHHS and The New Hampshire Department of
Energy

2.5. In the event the services and/or prescribed outcomes described within this MOU are
not met to the satisfaction of DHHS. DHHS reserves the right to immediately terminate
this Agreement upon written notice.

3. RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY (DOE)
3.1. The New Hampshire DOE agrees to:

3.1.1. Provide energy assistance to eligible households. Require all individuals ages
sixty (60) and older applying for energy assistance to complete a FAR
application. Ensure those households svlth members age sixty (60) and older
vwfx) are Ineltgible for benefits under regular FAP program guidelines are rTotified
by their CAA that they may be eligible for SEAS benefits. The DOE shall
determine eligibility for energy assistance as specified in The Older Americans
M of 1965, as amended and through the FAP application process as set forth
in the Fuel Assistance Procedures Manual, in coordinallon with the CAAs.

3.1.2. Monitor all applications and payment procedures of the CAAs. The DOE shall
ensure the CAAs maintain records for each individual recipient and maintain
rmancial records.

3.2. Rules and Policies:

3.2.1. The DOE shall provide services according to the rules and policies of DOE'S
Senior Energy Assistance Services (SEAS) as part of Ihe slatewkJo. Fuel
Assistance Program (FAP) and DHHS svhich ore incorporated by reference Into
this MOU, and as specified in the State Plan on Aging and Ihe Older Arr>erlcans
Act, of 1965 as amended, and in effect at any time during the MOU period as they
may be adopted or amended.

3.3. Reporting and Quality Assurance:

3.3.1. The DOE shall collect and report the following de-klentlfied aooreoafe data to
DHHS on a monthly basis:

3.3.1.1. Number of clients served by town;

3.3.1.2. Number of units of service delivered to clients:

3.3.1.3. Monthly program amounl by direct and indirect costs; and
3.3.1.4. Other data related to service provision as requested by DHHS.

3.3.2. The DOE shall report the data on a standard template provided by DHHS.
3.3.3. The DOE shall submit completed data reports to BEAS. Finance and Business

Operations. 129 Pleasant Street. Concord. Ne%v Hampshire 03301-0387.
3.3.4. The DOE agrees to obtain client leedback as to the quality of services provided

by the CAAs and report tho outcome to B^S by May 1 of each year of the
MOU arrd to participate in any future Quality Assurance Measures adopted by
BEAS.

3.3.5. The DOE shall forward the information collected from the CAAs pertaining to
DHHS Exhibit J Certification regarding the Federal Funding AccountablHly and
Transparency Act (FFATA) Compliance to BEAS.

3.4. Performance Pleasure:

mou-202mxiss-om:nero i»aQ» ? ore
MOU-I.O

2
?/24/2022
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Memorandum of Understanding Between DHHS and The New Hampshire Department of
' Energy • *

To ensure the provision of SEAS home energy services, to assist in the prevention of
an energy emergency that Is defined as a conditbn(s) that poses serious threat to the
health arid safety of Individuals from the {acl< of edoquatc home energy fuel, the DOE
shall ensure the CAAs follow up with the client after delivery of service to confirm the
energy emergency was prevented.

3.5. Coneunwr Appeal Process:

The DOE shall maintain an appeal and administrative fair hearing process as set forth
In DOE'S Fuel Assistance Procedures Manual, for irxfividuais who have been denied
FAR services or question the FAP benefits provided.

3.6. Criminal Background and BEAS State Registry Checks:

The DOE shall require the CAAs to conduct crlrninal background checks for all
employees, applicants for employment, volunlcers and applicants for volunteer
positiorts if those positions could possibly have client contact in the client's place of
residenco.

3.7. The DOE shall require the CAAs to comply with RSA 161-F: 49 Registry, Vll, which
• requires the submission of the name of a prospective employee wtV3 may have dient-
cpntact. (or review against the BEAS State Registry, effective July 1.2007.

3.8. The DOE shall require the CAAs to submit a detailed description of the language
assistance serv'ices they will provide to persons with Limited English Proficiency to
ensure meaningful access to their programs and/or services, within ten (10) days of
the effective date of the contract agreement between DOE and (he CAA.

4. RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

4.1. The DHHS agrees to:

4.1.1. Subject to the DOE's compliance with the terms and conditions of this MOU,
reimburse the DOE at (he rate and for up to the units of services provided to
eligible Individuals as follows In Table A: Service Rates and Units.

Table A: Services Rates and Units

Service State Fiscal Year

. Rate Per

Unit

Numt>er of Units

(Households)

Energy AssistafK^o

2023 (July 1.2022 to

June 30. 2023) " $270.38 114

Energy Assistance

2024 (July 1,2023 to

June 30. 2024) $270.38 152

Energy Assistance
2025 (July 1.2024 to
Septemt>er 30. 2025) $270.38 38

5. PAYMENT TERMS

MOU-20a3OLTSS Ot-ENpnO f*Qgo3olC UOU-I 0

?/?4/2027.
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°! Between DHHS and The New Hampshire Department of

luue ̂  ° ® available for reimbursement under this MOU fromDHHS to the DOE shall not exceed $30,825 In State Fiscal Year 2023 $41 100 In
Slate Fiscal Year 2024, and $10,275 in Slate Fiscal Year 2025.

shall submit an invotce and supporting documents to DHHS no later than
the nfloenth (15th) working day of the following month. The DOE shall;

6.2.1. Ensure the invoice is on DOE'S telterhead.

5.2.2. Ensure the Invoice kienlifies the dates that services were provided, actual units
provided and total dollar amount for allowable costs incurred in the previous
month.

5.3. In lieu of hard copies, all invoices with supporting documentation may bo assigned an
eloclronic signature and emailed to BEASInvolces@dhhs.nh.gov. or Invoices may be
mailed to: , ' •

Financial Manager
Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasdnl Street

Concord.'NH 03301

5.4. DHHS shall make payment to the DOE within thirty (30) days of receipt of each invoice
and supporting documentation for authorized expenses, subsequent to approval of the
submitted invoice.

5.5. The nnal Invoico and supporting documentation for authorized expenses shall be due
to DHHS no later than forty (40) days after the MOU completion date.

■ 5'®- 's provided by the Administration (or Community Living Title
IIIB Supportive Services. Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance # CFDA 93 044
Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN) 2101NHOASS (Federal Funds) and State
General Funds. Account 05-095-48-481010-78720000-049.584902 (General Funds).

5.7. Notwithstanding any provision of this MOU to the contrary, all .obligaUons of DHHS
hercunder, trx:luding wit^ut limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder. are
wnting^ upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds. DHHS shaD not
be r^uired to transfer funds from any other source in the event that funds from Federal
and General Funds are reduced or'become unavailable.

Parties may agree to changes limited to adjusting amounts within the price
limitation and adjusting encumbrances belvyeen State Fiscal Years and budget class
linM through the Budget Office may be made by written agreement of both parties,
wlhout obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council If needed and
justinod.

.6. IT IS FURTHER UNDERSTOOD AND AGREED BETWEEN THE PARTIES

6.1. pispdes arising under this MOU thai cannot bo rosotved botweon the agerKies shall
be referred to the Now Hampshiro Department of Justice for review and resolution.

6.2. This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the laws of the Stale of New
Hampshire.

6.3. The parties hereto do not intend to benefit any third parties and this MOU shall not be
construod to confer any such benefit.

WOU-202>Ol.TSS-Ol-eNERG I'floe d ol 8
MOU-1.0

2/71/2022
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Memorandum of Understanding Between DHHS and The New Hampshire Department of
Energy

6.4. In the event any of the provisions of this MOU are held to be contrary to any state or
federal law, the remaining provisions of this MOU will remain in full force and effect.

6.5. This MOU. which may be executed In a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire MOU and understandings between the
parlies. arxJ supersedes all prior MOU and understandings relating hereto.

6.6. Nothing herein shall be construed as a waiver of sovereign Immunity, such Immunity
being hereby specifically preserved.

MOU-20230LTSS41-EMCR0 Pii<jK.Ssin MOU-10

2/M/2Q22
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Memorandum of Understanding Between OHHS and The New Hampshire Department of
Energy

APPROVALS:

CUtVuU. i/2^/2022
Chrisllne Santanleiio Dale

Associate Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services

W  2/24/2022
JaietTSScome^ Date
Commissiorw
NH Department of Er>6r9y

The preceding Memorartdum of Understandir>g. having t>een reviewed by this ofTice, Is
approved as to form, substance, and execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL
1

fcJ-t-nj) 2/24/2022
;4«na44M uM

NameiRobyn Guartno Oate

Tille: Attorney

The foregoitTQ Memorandum of Understanding was approved by the foilowing authority of the
State of New Hampshire:

Name: Oate
Tllie:

UOU 2023 DLTSS 016NERG Pago 6 o« 6
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